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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
“STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
small and mid-sized companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential
risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision
to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk
profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market
more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and
mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM
may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities
traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will
be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.
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Financial Highlights

As at 31 December

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
R+=A=+-AH
“E-\fE Z—E—+F TR E —T-1Ff —T-@EF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FET AT TR AT THT
Results E4
- Revenue — I 108,716 49,749 36,379 217,068 25,865
- Loss -B# (88,431) (39,998) (39,189) (81,455) (10,571)
- Loss per share -BREB
Basic (in HK cents) BRI (5.89) (2.94) (0.62) 2.07) (0.33)
(restated) (restated)
(&) (mE7))
Financial Position BN
- Non-current assets - ERBEE 488,312 516,382 457,038 57,275 3,446
- Current assets -RYEE 65,605 17,124 25,695 26,486 34,758
- Current liabilities -nEYBE 61,903 51,169 53,765 3,244 1,063
- Non-current liabilities - ERBEE 134,599 261,230 206,611 = =
- Equity R 357,415 221,107 222 357 80,517 37,141
Financial Ratios o 35
- Current assets/Current liabilities —RBIEE /REE & 1.1 0.3 0.5 8 33
- Assets/Equity ~EE/##n 1.5 2.4 2.2 1.0 1.0
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CEQ’s Statement

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Global Strategic Group Limited (the “Company”), | am hereby
pleased to present the audited results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred as, the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2018 for your review.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

For the year under review, although the development of the natural
gas business was limited to the gas restriction policy, but also
benefited from the pace of China’s implementation of coal to gas,
the demand for natural gas in the Yichang industrial area increased
rapidly, which driving its segment revenue hugely increased to
approximately HK$42,147,000 (2017: HK$7,906,000). The segment
revenue of the commodities trading business is approximately
HK$64,529,000 (2017: HK$41,843,000). The segment revenue
of the leasing business of the steel support axial force servo
system launched in 2018 is approximately HK$2,040,000. The
technical consultation on e-commerce integration and application
customisation business segment, currently classified as discontinued
operations, segment revenue at approximately HK$21,000 in 2018
as compared with approximately HK$636,000 in 2017. After further
considering the corporate expenses, finance costs and certain other
expenses, the Group recorded a net loss attributable to owners of
the Company of approximately HK$70,595,000 in 2018 against that
of approximately HK$33,225,000 in 2017.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

In the backdrop of the market uncertainties by the US-China trade
war from 2018, the Group will face number of challenges ahead. The
management of the Group will embrace those challenges and will
continue to optimise the operation efficiency in all Group’s current
business segments, in particular emphasizing the development of the
leasing business of steel support axial force servo system launched
in 2018, and the newly developed chemical commodity trading
business in the first quarter of 2019 for developing the services of
commodities network step by step. Meanwhile, the Group will look
for new potential growth opportunities in a very diligent manner
through merger & acquisition, business integration and expansion in
order to sustain the growth and profitability of the Group.
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CEQ’s Statement

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Here, on behalf of the Board of the Company, | hereby wish to
extend my gratitude for the hard work contributed by all staff and
the Directors, as well as the support to the Company from all our
customers, creditors, business partners and the shareholders. At
the same time, we welcome Mr. Wu Guoming who acts as executive
director since April 2018. We will adhere to proven management
strategy, grasp market trend and opportunities, and endeavor to
bring greater value to our shareholders and make new contribution
to the community.

Cheung Tuen Ting
Chief Executive Officer

28 March 2019
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BEENWR O
Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year under review, the Group regarded the solutions and
technical consultation on e-commerce integration and application
customisation business (“IT Solutions”) as discontinued operation.
Its revenue decreased to approximately HK$21,000 in 2018 as
compared with approximately HK$636,000 in 2017.

As a result of the above changes, the continuing operations of
the Group recorded revenue of approximately HK$108,716,000 in
2018 as compared with approximately HK$49,749,000 in 2017,
gross profit of approximately HK$6,048,000 in 2018 against
approximately HK$2,573,000 in 2017 and net loss of approximately
HK$82,911,000 in 2018 as compared to approximately
HK$38,492,000 in 2017. The discontinued operation recorded a
net loss of approximately HK$5,520,000 in 2018 as compared with
approximately HK$1,506,000 in 2017.

Analysis on the performance of the Group including revenue and
results of commodities trading business, supplying of natural gas
pipeline business and leasing business before allocation of the
corporate overheads is set out in note 11 “Segment Information” to
the consolidated financial statements.

The trading of copper in commodities trading business was
generated revenue of approximately HK$64,529,000 in 2018 as
compared to approximately HK$41,843,000 in 2017.

The Group generated sales of natural gas and pipeline installation
services of approximately HK$42,147,000 in 2018 as compared to
approximately HK$7,906,000 for the year ended 31 December 2017.
In 2018, Yichang Biaodian has begun to supply natural gas to most
of intended customers and the Company will monitor closely the
sales operation of Yichang Biaodian and will continue to implement
the development and construction plan of natural gas pipeline in an
efficient manner.

The Group has launched its leasing business of the steel support
axial force servo system in September 2018, and generated revenue
of approximately HK$2,040,000 for the year ended 31 December
2018.

MBREHEE
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SPEIERECI R

Management Discussion and Analysis

The total operating expenses for the year ended 31 December 2018
was approximately HK$88,839,000 as compared to approximately
HK$44,087,000 in 2017,
which was due to increase in finance costs of approximately

representing an increase of 101.5%

HK$20,000,000 and share option expenses of approximately
HK$5,358,000.

Finance costs of the Group were approximately HK$25,697,000
for the year ended 31 December 2018 (31 December 2017:
approximately HK$5,670,000),
interest expense on non-current interest free loan from a related

which represented the imputed

party and non-controlling shareholders of the Company and
adjustment by early repayment.

Loss for the year ended 31 December 2018 was increased by
121.10% to approximately HK$88,431,000, compared with loss
of approximately HK$39,998,000 for the year ended 31 December
2017. The increase in loss for the year ended 31 December 2018
was mainly due to increase in finance costs of approximately
HK$20,000,000.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group’s operation is being financed by internally generated
cashflow, bank borrowings and external financing. The Group
follows a policy of prudence in managing its working capital. The
management will continue to closely monitor the financial position of
the Group to maintain its financial capacity.

Grant of Share Options

On 18 January 2018 and 9 October 2018, the Board announced to
resolve to grant share options (the “Options”) to certain individuals
(the “Grantees”) to subscribe for a total of 12,400,000 and
37,200,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.025 each in the share capital
of the Company respectively, subject to acceptance of the Grantees,
under the share option scheme adopted by the Company on 30
November 2012 and the payment of HK$1 by each of the Grantees
upon acceptance of the Options. The equity-settled share option
expenses for the year ended 31 December 2018 was approximately
HK$7,804,000 (2017: HK$2,446,000).

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BEEMEBER A T
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BEENWR O
Management Discussion and Analysis

On 183 February 2018 and 10 April 2018, total in 1,000,000 and
400,000 share option respectively, were exercised at the price of
HK$0.556, resulting in a total of 1,132,400,000 issued shares as at
10 April 2018.

Share Consolidation

On 16 October 2018, the Board proposed to consolidate every five
issued and unissued share of HK$0.005 each into one consolidated
share of HK$0.025 each. The share consolidation was approved by
the Company’s shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting on
16 November 2018 and became effective on 19 November 2018.

Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders of a subsidiary
and its related parties

As at 31 December 2018, the amounts due to Hubei Biaodian
Natural Gas Co., Ltd (“Hubei Biaodian”) and its subsidiary and
Mr. Xiong Songgan (“Mr. Xiong”) and his controlled entities
were approximately HK$20,397,000 and HK$19,253,000
respectively, when comparing approximately HK$134,939,000 and
HK$41,765,000 in 2017 respectively. Hubei Biaodian owns 41%
of Yichang Biaodian and Mr. Xiong is the controlling shareholder of
Hubei Biaodian.

The advance made by the above non-controlling shareholders of the
Company during the year was used for Yichang Biaodian’s capital
expenditure purpose.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIRE R EE B R A 7
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SPEIERECI R

Management Discussion and Analysis

Bank Borrowings

The bank borrowings assigned RMB17,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$19,358,000) carry an interest at a variable rate, with an effective
interest rate of 8.01% per annum. The remaining of the unutilised

bank loan has been used up at the beginning of the year of 2018.

The bank borrowings are guaranteed and pledged with several

properties owned by Mr. Xiong, his spouse and certain companies

held and controlled by him.

As at 31 December 2018,

(a)

the Group’s aggregate amount of bank and cash balances
was approximately HK$2,297,000 (as at 31 December 2017:
approximately HK$7,069,000).

the Group’s total borrowings comprised (i) amounts due to
non-controlling shareholders of a subsidiary and its related
parties; (i) amount due to a shareholder of the Company;
and (iii) bank borrowings, (iv) amount due to directors; (v)
non-convertible bonds; and (vi) convertible bond designated
at fair value thought profit or loss totalling approximately

HK$98,046,000 (as at 31 December 2017: HK$208,059,000).

the Group’s total gearing ratio was approximately 36% (as at
31 December 2017: 187%). The gearing ratio was calculated
as the Group’s total borrowings divided by total equity
attributable to owners of the Company.

the current ratio of the Group was approximately 1.1 (as at 31
December 2017: approximately 0.3).

The management will continue to closely monitor the financial

position of the Group to maintain its financial capacity.
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BEENWR O
Management Discussion and Analysis

CAPITAL RAISING AND USE OF PROCEEDS

Issue of Convertible Bond

Pursuant to subscription agreements entered into by the Company
on 3 May 2018, the Company issued convertible bond with
aggregate principal amount of HK$20,000,000 (“Bond”), to an
individual subscriber on 4 June 2018. The Bond entitled the holder
to convert them into ordinary shares of the Company at an initial
conversion price of HK$0.54 per share of the Company at any
time before the two anniversary date of the initial issue date. The
Bond bears interests at 10% per annum. The net proceeds of
the Bond issue, after deduction of expenses, were approximately
HK$17,214,000. The net proceeds arising from the issuance of Bond
were applied for general working capital of the Group.

Placing of shares under general mandate

On 21 June 2018, the Company entered into a placing agreement
with Grand China Securities Limited (the “Placing Agent”)
under which the Placing Agent agreed to place up to a total of
120,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.025 each (with a total
nominal value of HK$3,000,000) in the Company (the “Placing
Shares”) to independent third parties on a best effort basis at a
price of HK$0.355 per Placing Share. The closing price as quoted
on the Stock Exchange on 21 June 2018, being the date of the
placing agreement was HK$0.425 per share. The placing of all
111,040,000 Placing Shares to not less than six independent
placees was completed on 13 July 2018 and raised net proceeds,
after deducting related placing commission, professional fees and
all related expenses, of approximately HK$38,280,000 which were
intended to be used for the development of the solar photovoltaic
power generation and as the Group’s general working capital.
According to the announcement of Change in Use of Proceeds
dated 21 September 2018, because of the government policy
published by National Development and Reform Commission,
Ministry of Finance and National Energy Administration on 31 May
2018. The Group will no long proceed with solar photovoltaic power
generation project. The Company had resolved to apply all of the
proceeds with the solar photovoltaic power generation project
approximately HK$25,000,000 towards repayment of the Company’s
outstanding borrowings. As at 31 December 2018, approximately
HK$25,000,000 has been utilised for repayment of borrowings.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

On 11 September 2018, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with ChaoShang Securities Limited (the “Placing Agent”)
under which the Placing Agent agreed to place up to a total of
60,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.025 each (with a total
nominal value of HK$1,500,000) in the Company (the “Placing
Shares”) to independent third parties on a best effort basis at a
price of HK$0.5 per Placing Share. The closing price as quoted
on the Stock Exchange on 11 September 2018, being the date
of the placing agreement was HK$0.51 per share. The placing of
all 60,000,000 Placing Shares to not less than six independent
placees was completed on 2 October 2018 and raised net proceeds,
after deducting related placing commission, professional fees
and all related expenses, of approximately HK$28,933,000 which
were intended to be used for the expansion and development of
commodities trading business and as the Group’s general working
capital. As at 31 December 2018, approximately HK$12,000,000
has been utilised for the expansion and development of commodities
trading business.

Further details of the above placing were set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 21 June 2018, 29 June

2018, 13 July 2018, 11 September 2018, 21 September 2018, 26
September 2018 and 2 October 2018.

Note: The number of share and share price have been adjusted pursuant to
the share consolidation effective on 19 November 2018.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had no pledge of assets (as at
31 December 2017: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2018 (as at 31 December 2017: Nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PROSPECT

In the backdrop of the market uncertainties by the US-China trade
war from 2018, the Group will face number of challenges ahead. The
management of the Group will embrace those challenges and will
continue to optimise the operation efficiency in all Group’s current
business segments, in particular emphasizing the development of the
leasing business of steel support axial force servo system launched
in 2018, and the newly developed chemical commodity trading
business in the first quarter of 2019 for developing the services of
commodities network step by step.

Meanwhile, the Group will look for new potential growth
opportunities in a very diligent manner through merger & acquisition,
business integration and expansion in order to sustain the growth
and profitability of the Group.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Capital contribution on Yichang Biaodian Natural Gas
Utilization Co., Ltd.

On 4 January 2019, Hong Kong Global Billion Access Investments
Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into the Capital Contribution Agreement with 41t 1Z H
XARBMR AR (Hubei Biaodian Natural Gas Co., Ltd.*) (“Hubei
Biaodian”) and the Subscribers pursuant to which the Subscribers
agreed to make capital contribution in the aggregate amount
of RMB134,695,000 (as to RMB13,475,000 by Mr. Li Wanging,
RMB67,347,500 by H & aEJR AR 2 A (Yichang Platinum
Port Energy Co., Ltd.*) (“Yichang Platinum”) and RMB53,872,500
by EE&X%E/FEBR AR (Yichang Meiyan Energy Co., Ltd.*)
(“Yichang Meiyan™) into BEEMEZARXARKFAER QA (Yichang
Biaodian Natural Gas Utilization Co., Ltd.*) (“Yichang Biaodian”).
Upon completion, the Group’s interest in Yichang Biaodian will be
diluted from 49% to 25%. However, it remains as a subsidiary of the
Group as the Directors concluded that the Group has a sufficiently
dominant voting interest to direct the relevant activities of Yichang
Biaodian under the new agreements with the shareholders and
therefore the Group has control over Yichang Biaodian. Further
details regarding the transaction are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 4 January 2019.
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Exploring new product on Commodities Trading business

On 22 February 2019, Zhejiang Free Trade Zone Anzhu Energy Co.,
Ltd* (“Zhejiang Anzhu”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a purchasing contract with F{b A L E B R A 7
(China Petrochemical Sales Co., Ltd.*) (“China Petrochemical”),
pursuant to which Zhejiang Anzhu has agreed to sell and China
Petrochemical has agreed to purchase 12,000 tonnes of methanol at
the consideration of RMB29,430,000. Further details regarding the
transaction are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 27
February 2019.

*

The English translation of Chinese names of the entities are included
for information purpose only, and should not be regarded as the official
translation of such Chinese names.

EXPOSURE TO EXCHANGE RATE
FLUCTUATIONS

The Group’s foreign currency exposure is limited as most of its
transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars and Renminbi.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 31 December 2018, the Group employed 50 staff members
(2017: 42 staff). Remuneration is determined with reference to
market terms and the performance, qualifications and experience
of the individual employee. Remuneration includes monthly salaries,
performance-linked bonuses, retirement benefits schemes and
other benefits such as medical scheme and share option scheme.
The Group’s remuneration policies and packages are reviewed by
management on regular basis. The Company has established a
Human Resources and Remuneration Committee. The Directors’
emoluments are determined with reference to Directors’ duties,
responsibilities and the operating performance of the Group.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheung Tuen Ting (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Cheung Tuen Ting (“Mr. Cheung”), aged 37, has been the
executive Director since 26 July 2017. Mr. Cheung obtained a
bachelor of commerce degree majoring in accounting and finance
from Deakin University Australia in 2007. Mr. Cheung also was the
director of Panamax Aktiengesellschaft, a company listed on the
Frankfurt Stock Exchange, from June 2016 to June 2017. Prior to
that, Mr. Cheung also was a financial planning manager at Bank
of China from July 2010 to March 2012, a financial consultant at
Convoy Financial Services Limited from July 2007 to October 2009
and a financial planning manager at Ftlife Insurance Company
Limited from September 2012 to February 2019.

Mr. Wu Guoming

Mr. Wu Guoming (“Mr. Wu”), aged 54, has been the executive
Director since 30 April 2018. He holds a degree in Business
Management from Wuhan University, a degree in Civil Engineering
from China University of Petroleum and a degree in Economic
Management from Shanghai Jiao Tong University. Mr. Wu was the
engineering manager and the deputy general manager at Shanghai
Guangda Construction Decoration Engineering Company* (_E/& %
KEBLEEHHTIEAR]) . Since 2001, Mr. Wu has been the general
manager and the chairman of Shanghai Guangda Basic Engineering
Co., Ltd ( B EEREM TRRER A A]) . Furthermore, Mr. Wu is the
director of China Civil Engineering Society (FAEl + K Ti2& & ) and
a construction technology committee member of Chinese Institution
of Soil Mechanics and Geotechnical Engineering — China Civil
Engineering Society (Bl + A TREE2E€+ HEREFTTREHE) . Mr.
Wu has vast experience in business management and construction
business development.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Long Wenming

Mr. Long Wenming (“Mr. Long”), aged 55, has been the executive
Director since 8 January 2018. Mr. Long holds a Bachelor’s Degree
in Power and Automation Engineering from Tianjin University and a
Master’s Degree in Engineering from the Electric Power Research
Institute of the Ministry of Power Industry of the People’s Republic of
China. Mr. Long is currently the executive managing director at Hefei
Boshijie Power Technology Co., Ltd.* (& IETEHEE HEMER A
7)) . He had previously served as a chief economist of the state grid
NG
and a chief economist and the supervisor of the planning department
of State Power Grid Development Co., Ltd.* (A EE HER

[R/A@]). Mr. Long also served as the supervisor of the planning
department of State Power Grid Development Main Co., Ltd.* (7
EHERE QT . Furthermore, Mr. Long was the general manager
of Anhui Power Electric Development Company* ( Z# 1R E 1%
&R A®]) and the deputy director, director, senior engineer and office

department at State Electric Power Corporation* (BIZX &

supervisor at Anhui Province Electric Power Industry Bureau* (%
BEENITERB). Mr. Long has vast experience in the design and
operation of power systems, planning of new energy power stations
and power planning of microgrid. He is also experienced in systems
development, application and coordination of power systems and
project development.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Chen Hualiang

Mr. Chen Hualiang (“Mr. Chen”), aged 49, has been the executive
Director since 8 January 2018. Mr. Chen holds a Bachelor’s Degree
in Metal Materials Engineering from Jilin University and a Master
of Business Administration Degree from The University of North
Alabama. Mr. Chen had previously served as an investment vice
president at Jiangsu Hengtong Investment Holdings Limited* (/T &k
STEREERABERAE). He was the vice president of operations
of Youngy Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd.. Mr. Chen also
served as the administrative deputy general manager, the foreign
trade headquarters operations deputy general manager and the
merchandising centre director of Ningbo Ruifu Industry Group
Co., Ltd* (BRI F LEEBBRAF) . Furthermore, he was
the general manager of Wenzhou Weldstone Welding Equipment
Co., Ltd>x CRMEZEMATAIEE M AR A7) and Changzhou ZAP
Welding Equipment Co., Ltd* (&ML EEZEERAE) . M.
Chen was the chief operating officer of ECOVACS Electrical Co.,
Ltd.. He was the general manager of Soundway Plastic Packaging
(Shanghai) Company Limited* (BERZRB X (LEEB)ERA
A]) . Moreover, Mr. Chen was also employed by Gongli Electronic
Industrial (Suzhou) Co., Ltd.* (XX EF T2 (&) BRAR))as a
manufacturing and project manager deputy. Mr. Chen has extensive
experience in industrial management, strategic management and
investment management. He is also familiar with the energy industry
and is experienced in the organisation and implementation of the
industrial financial business in energy-related projects investment.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Han Leiping

Mr. Han Leiping (“Mr. Han”), aged 38, has been the executive
Director since 8 January 2018. Mr. Han holds a Bachelor's Degree
in Finance from Tianjin Institute of Finance & Economics and a
Master’s Degree in Science in the Social Sciences in Accounting
and Management Science from the University of Southampton. He is
currently the executive director of Beijing Zhongdian Ronglian New
Energy Technology Company Limited* (1t 5 /0 & g Bt 5 68 IR BHE
BPRR/AF]) . Mr. Han had previously served as the general manager
of Beijing Star Harvest Era Investments Limited* (it R £ £ & R
HEBMRAR). He was the financial manager of Financial Street
Holdings Co., Ltd (stock code: 000402), a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Mr. Han was also the financial and forex
manager of the Bank of Communications (Qingdao branch). Mr.
Han has extensive experience in strategic cooperation and project
management. He is also familiar with the application of energy in
different settings, and is experienced in project development and
platform construction, coordination of new energy power station and
resource integration of microgrid.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Kwan Sin Yee

Ms. Kwan Sin Yee (“Ms. Kwan”), aged 56, has been the independent
non-executive Director since 16 October 2014. Ms. Kwan has been
in the financial sector for decades, being an enterprise planner
and senior investment consultant, she is an expert in interpersonal
communications. She has a wide network in the field having taken
part as senior manager in many companies. During her time she
had been the executive of various companies. Ms. Kwan is the
director and chief executive officer of Roots Management Co.
Ltd., an executive wealth management services company in Hong
Kong. Ms. Kwan is the Chairman & Managing Director of Man Lap
International Sports Group, establishes Inter Academy Hong Kong,
focuses on internationalisation of football and other sports, promotes
“sports for all” and sports culture. Ms. Kwan is devoted in charity;
she is currently the committee member and vice-president of the
examination committee of the Hong Kong CU Movement Charity
Fund.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin

Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin (“Mr. Leung”), aged 38, has been the
independent non-executive Director since 16 October 2014. Mr.
Leung has been serving as an independent non-executive director
of KNT Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1025) since 31 January 2019.
Mr. Leung holds a Bachelor’s Degree of Commerce in Accounting
and Finance from the University of Toronto in Canada. Mr. Leung
is the general manager of TL Property Consultants International
Ltd. (“TLP”), a consultancy group principally engaged in asset
management of real estate sector. Prior to joining TLP, he had
worked at a multinational accounting and auditing firm for about 8
years. Mr. Leung is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors.

Mr. Sun Zhi Jun

Mr. Sun Zhi Jun (“Mr. Sun”), aged 51, has been an independent
non-executive Director since 24 August 2015. Mr. Sun graduated
from Shanghai Medical Instrumentation College in the PRC in 1988.
Mr. Sun currently serves as Director of Strategy and Business
Development for Deep Voxel Intelligent Technology (Shanghai) Co.,
Ltd* (ZEZERH (EB)BRAFR), a company specializing in
artificial intelligence development in the medical field in PRC.

Ms. Huang Yu Jun

Ms. Huang Yu Jun (“Ms. Huang”), aged 61, has been an
independent non-executive Director since 24 August 2015, She
was a financial manager of a branch office of Shanghai Electric
International Economic & Trading Co., Ltd. ( E/8E @ EIR&HE
28R A7), a subsidiary of Shanghai Electric Group Company
Limited (stock code: 2727, a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange). Ms. Huang obtained a certificate of accounting
profession from Ministry of Finance in the PRC. In 2005, she
graduated from Shanghai TV University (now known as Shanghai
Open University) in the PRC with a professional certificate in
business administration.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Hank, Daniel

Mr. Chan Hank Daniel (“Mr. Chan”) has been appointed as the
Company Secretary since 7 October 2016. Mr. Chan obtained
his Bachelor of Laws and Bachelor of Commerce from Macquarie
University, Australia in 2000. He is a practising solicitor and was
admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 2003. Mr. Chan is the
company secretary of GT Steel Construction Group Limited (a
company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 8402)
and Tech Pro Technology Development Limited (a company listed on
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 3823) since March
2017 and January 2019 respectively.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Nip Chi Kin
Mr. Nip Chi Kin (“Mr. Nip”), aged 38, is the Financial Controller of the

Group since June 2019. He had 18 years’ experience in auditing,
accounting and financial field.
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Report of the Directors

The Directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 24 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Business review of the Group is set out in the paragraph headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 58 and 59.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the year in property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in note 20 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during
the reporting period are set out in note 40 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Report of the Directors

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE OF THE COMPANY

The share premium of the Company is available for paying
distributions or dividends to its shareholders subject to the
provisions of its Memorandum and Articles of Association and
provided that immediately following the distribution or dividend
payment the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in
the ordinary course of business. In accordance with the Company’s
Articles of Association, dividends can be distributed out of the
profits, special reserve and share premium of the Company. The
Company’s reserve available for distribution to its shareholders as
at 31 December 2018 amounted to approximately HK$99,211,000
(2017: HK$95,383,000).

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:
Executive Directors:

Mr. Cheung Tuen Ting, Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Wu Guoming
(appointed on 30 April 2018)
Mr. Long Wenming (appointed on 8 January 2018)
Mr. Chen Hualiang (appointed on 8 January 2018)
Mr. Han Leiping (appointed on 8 January 2018)
Mr. Weng Lin Lei (resigned on 19 April 2018)
Mr. Wei Yuetong
(re-appointed on 5 February 2018 and resigned on 6 June 2018)
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A TR A - R B 4 ROAR 19 08 (B DAR B AR
B-R_ZE—NF+-_A=+—H &AQAT
AR T H R R 2 FHE 4 /99,211,000 7T
—Z—+%:95,383,000/87T) °

BEE
FARBERRETEEHIL EFA:
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SRS SE A TR
REREE
(RZZ-\FOA=+HREZEE)
BXHEE (R-T-N\F-ANREEZE)
REREE(R-_ZT—N\F—-A\BEEZE)
BRI EE(RZE-N\F-ANBEZE)
SRERE(R_F-N\FHATNLBEE)
BAERE
(RZE-NF_ARHEEHZE
YR —F—N\FRANBEEI)

Independent non-executive Directors: BYKHITES:
Ms. Kwan Sin Yee BiERZ L
Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin RS E
Mr. Sun Zhi Jun BREEXRE
Ms. Huang Yu Jun BEEARL
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Report of the Directors

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Wu Guoming, Mr. Chen Hualiang, Ms. Kwan Sin Yee
and Ms. Huang Yujun will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

No director has a service contract which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has a service
contract with the Company for a term of one year commencing on
the date of their respective appointment but is subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at an annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the section titled “Connected Transactions”
below, no Director or connected entity of a Director had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance to the business of the
Group to which the holding company of the Company, or any of the
Company’s subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the
year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURE OF THE COMPANY OR ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of each
Director and chief executive in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQ”)) which were recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the required standard of dealings by the Directors as
referred to in Rule 5.46 of GEM Listing Rules were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S EERBETHRAERAEATH
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN HEBEZENRGD  HERORE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND HEEBRRE (#)

DEBENTURE OF THE COMPANY OR ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (continuead)

Interests in the Company REQLF 2=
The table below sets out the aggregate long positions in the shares, TERHIARREZNHZETHRABREAR

underlying shares and debentures of the Company held by the RAFMD - FEERND MEH 2 7R A%
Directors and chief executives of the Company:

Number of
underlying
shares
held under Long (L) or
Corporate equity Total short (S) Percentage
Directors/chief executive interests derivatives interests position of interests
REER
fT£EI8
BEZ #E(L)
EEX/BRTHAS AREE HEROHE BES LAR(S) BEEOH
Mr. Cheung Tuen Ting 56,000,000 6,000,000 62,000,000 L 4.76%
(Note)
Rme L4 Lik3)
Mr. Wu Guoming 137,200,000 6,000,000 143,200,000 L 10.99%
(Note)
REIA % & (PiaE)
Mr. Long Wenming - 4,000,000 4,000,000 L 0.31%
(Note)
EXHALE (P aE)
Mr. Chen Hualiang - 4,000,000 4,000,000 L 0.31%
(Note)
RERFE (B aE)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND

DEBENTURE OF THE COMPANY OR ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (continuead)

Directors/chief executive

EZ /BRTHAE
Mr. Han Leiping
BETRE

Ms. Kwan Sin Yee
BERTL

Mr. Leung Oh Man Martin
REXRE

Ms. Huang Yu Jun
BERRLL

Mr. Sun Zhi Jun
BREERE

L: Long position

Number of
underlying
shares
held under
Corporate equity Total
interests derivatives interests
BERER
fTEIR
BEZ
ARER  HERGHE BES
- 4,000,000 4,000,000
(Note)
(F)
- 600,000 600,000
(Note)
(Fi)
- 600,000 600,000
(Note)
(F)
- 600,000 600,000
(Note)
(Fi)
- 600,000 600,000
(Note)
(Fi)
L: &2

EENRESTHRAEBERAERATH
HEBLIENKRY  HERORE
HEEBRARR (&)

Long (L) or
short (S) Percentage
position of interests
HRL)
HAR(S) BZEDML
L 0.31%
L 0.05%
L 0.05%
L 0.05%
L 0.05%

Note: These interests represented the interests in underlying shares MiaT: ZEERERANATBRTFES CEREM

in respect of the share options granted by the Company to the

directors.
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Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND

DEBENTURE OF THE COMPANY OR ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (continuead)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (as defined in Part
XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Exchange pursuant to the required standard of
dealings by the Directors as referred to in Rule 5.46 of GEM Listing
Rules.

EENRESTHRAERAEATH
HEBEIENRY  HERORE
%ZE@&}&F (&)

BEXPBEEEN R N\F+_H
=T B BRARABARBEESMAEKRIE
BRFATHEZELMIEM T HRIE
GEMEMRAIFES46GEHREFTETERL
EARERMARRBRZSAAITERZEBHM
ARAEZARSTHRABMBEEARRAHL
HAiBuEE (E& RESF L ABEIIEXVED)
ZBAn RN RESTRE TAERK

S
IR °
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND FTEREREMALTREARATR
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT HREHEROD ZERZR AR
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING

SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2018, other than the interests and short R-_Z—NF+-A=+—H BEZELHK
positions of the Directors disclosed above, the following person (not  Hi & {&HI 53365 R EARNNFIBETFE 2 &
being a Director or chief executive of the Company) had interests or TRk * Br EXIWE 2 EF S AR N
short positions in the share or underlying shares of the Company as R A L (WIEARARESFHKHZETHAL)
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under RN &) 2 A% 15 S48 B8 A% 179 b %8 B 7 25 3 %

Section 336 of the SFO:

Name of shareholder

BRR#E/£8

Hong Kong Hao Yue International Trading Co., Limited
ERRBEAREFIERRF

Mr. Zhang Hai Ping

RETRE

Mr. Wu Guoming
REBEE

L: Long position

PN

=

Number of shares held,
capacity and nature of interest

FEROEE SO RERNEE

Approximate

Directly Through percentage of
beneficially controlled the issued
owned corporation Total share capital
HEBTRE
ERREHER EAZRAEE BE BRBEDH
223,200,000 (L) - 223,200,000 (L) 17.12%
(Note)
(PBaE)
- 223,200,000 (L) 223,200,000 (L) 17.12%
(Note)
()
137,200,000 (L) — 137,200,000 (L) 10.53%
L FE

Note: Hong Kong Hao Yue International Trading Co., Limited is wholly- & : BEHUBEEESERARARKEFEE

owned by Mr. Zhang Hai Ping.

2EHEE-

Save as disclosed above, none of the substantial shareholders or Bk EXFTIFTEEIIN R —N\F+ = A
other (other than Directors and chief executive of the Company) =+—H EAQXFREELSRASENE
person had any interest or short position in the shares or underlying 3361§7B ¥ & 2 Bk~ TERE
shares of the Company according to the register required to be kept FHEMA LT (AT EERESTHRAER
by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO as at 31 December %) 3 #EHE B A A & B& 10 S AR BE AR 19 2 #E 255X

2018.

NN
KB o
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CONVERTIBLE BOND

On 3 May 2018, the Company and Mr. Lo Hou On (the “Subscriber”)
entered into a subscription agreement, according to which the
Company agreed to issue, and the Subscriber agreed to subscribe
for in principal amount of HK$20,000,000 with interest rate of 10%
per annum, convertible bond due 2020.

The Convertible Bond are convertible into shares at the initial
conversion price of HK$0.54 per conversion share at the option of
the holder thereof, at any time on or before the issue date up to the
4:00 p.m. on the prior to the maturity date. There was no conversion
of the convertible bond as at the date of this annual report. The
Company will redeem each Convertible Bond on the maturity date
at its principal amount together with accrued and unpaid interest
thereon. The issue of Convertible Bond were completed on 4 June
2018. Upon full conversion of the outstanding Convertible Bond, the
Company may issue 37,037,037 shares, adding the issued shares
of the Company to 1,340,477,037 shares. Details of the Convertible
Bond during the year are set out in note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND DIRECTORS’
RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

On 30 November 2012, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “Scheme”). As at 31 December 2018, 58,600,000
option has been granted by the Company under the Scheme.
Particulars of the Scheme are set out in note 41 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND DIRECTORS’
RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES (continued)

The purpose of the Scheme is to attract and to retain quality
personnel and other persons and to provide them with incentive to
contribute to the business and operation of the Group. Under the
Scheme, the Directors may grant options to any eligible persons
of the Group, including (i) any director, employee or consultant of
the Company, a subsidiary or an affiliate; or (i) any discretionary
trust whose discretionary objects include any director, employee
or consultant of the Company, a subsidiary or an affiliate; or (iii) a
company beneficially owned by any director, employee or consultant
of the Company, a subsidiary or an affiliate; or (iv) any person or
entity whose service to the Group or business with the Group
contribute or is expected to contribute to the business or operation
of the Group as may be determined by the Directors from time to
time, to subscribe for shares of the Company. Options granted are
exercisable for a period (up to ten years from the date of grant of the
option) as decided by the Board.

The exercise price (subject to adjustment as provided therein) of the
option under the Scheme is equal to the highest of (i) the nominal
value of share; (ii) the closing price per share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of grant of the option,
which must be a business day and (i) the average closing price per
share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant. The
maximum number of shares in respect of which the options may be
granted under the Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company at the date of Shareholders’ approval of the
Scheme. However, the total maximum number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding share options must not
exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the Company from time
to time. The number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to any one grantee in any 12-month period is not permitted
to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue on the last date
of such 12-month period from time to time, without prior approval
obtained from the Company’s shareholders.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND DIRECTORS’
RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES (continuead)

During the year, the Company has granted 12,400,000 and
37,200,000 share options to the Company’s Directors and
employees at the exercise price of HK$0.785 and 0.466 per option
share respectively. Details of specific categories of options, please
refer to note 41 to the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Details of the movements of share options granted, exercised or
cancelled/lapsed during the review period and outstanding as at 31
December 2018 are as follows:

Number of share options
BREYA

BRENSEREEZEBERHMOIE
HFZRER (#)

FRAAAAARAAREEREERH
12,400,000%.37,200,00017 B& A% # - 171 (B
R R ER D 5 B /£0.785% 7T %0.466
BT BRI ARBERINGFS  BF2MA
EEFRAMBHREWEA -

REBBMER-FE—N\F+-A=+—AH
HRAT RS B (T Y, e R
EEBHEDT

At Granted Exercised Cancelled/
1 January during during Lapsed during
2018 the period the period the Period

R-E-NE
-A-A RAREL HEATE REREE/ AN

Outstanding Closing price

asat immediately

31 December  Exercise period before the

2018 (both dates inclusive) Exercise price date of grant
RZ2-NF

t-A=t-A RERLEHN

HAfE 8 (BRERRA) k& HlHE

HKS HKS

BT w1

Directors 1
Mr. Weng Lin Lei A

BEE 600,000 = = (600,000)
Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin PELE 600,000 5 - -
Ms. Kiwan Sin Yee BEiat 600,000 = - -
Mr. Sun Zhi Jun BEERE 600,000 - - _
Ms. Huang Yu Jun ETERT 600,000 - - -
Mr. Cheung Tuen Ting FRERE 6,000,000 = - -
Mr. Long Wenming EXHEE - 4,000,000 - -

Mr. Chen Hualiang REREE - 4,000,000 - -

Mr. Han Leiping BRTAE - 4,000,000 - -

- 21 December 2017 to 0.556 0555
21 December 2019
SELETCACt-RE
Z3-NETZAzt-A
600,000 21 December 2017 to 0.556 0.556
21 December 2019
Z5-+Ft-f-t-HE
Z2-AE+ZAZt-R
600,000 21 December 2017 to 0.556 0555
21 December 2019
ZF-t5tzAzt-8%
“E-AET-ACT-A
600,000 21 December 2017 to 0.556 0.555
21 December 2019
ZE-+F+-AZ+-BE
ZE-NETZAZt-A
600,000 21 December 2017 to 0.556 0.555
21 December 2019
“5-+F+-f-t-BE%
ZE-AETZAZT-B
6,000,000 21 December 2017 to 0556 0555
21 December 2019
ZRETCACT-BE
“E-AETZACT-A
4,000,000 18 January 2018 to 0.785 0.72
18 January 2020
ZE2-\E-AfNEE
TE-ATNR
4,000,000 18 January 2018 to 0.785 072
18 January 2020
“E-\§-ATNEE
Z2C2E-ATNR
4,000,000 18 January 2018 to 0.785 0.72
18 January 2020
“2-\5-AtNRZ
ZZoEE-ATNR
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND DIRECTORS’
RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES (continuead)

BREGEREEZEBERHDIE
FZER (&)

Number of share options
BREHA
Outstanding Closing price
At Granted Exercised Cancelled/ asat immediately
1 January during during Lapsed during 31 December  Exercise period before the
2018 the period the period the Period 2018 (both dates inclusive) Exercise price date of grant
RZB-N%
RZZ-NF tZB=t-8 SERLAHH
-A-8 REARYE REATE REABE/ %4 WAfTE 8 (BEEERA) k& HbmE
HKS HKS
AT A1
Mr. Wy Guoming REREE - 6,000,000 - - 6,000,000 9 October 2018 to 0.466 0475
9 October 2020
ZE-\EtANRE
ZZ-RETANA
Total Directors Eziy 9,000,000 18,000,000 - (600,000) 26,400,000
Employees €8 4,400,000 - (1,400,000) 2,400,000) 600,000 21 December 2017 to 0.556 0.555
21 December 2019
ZE-tEt-AZt-BE
“E-AETZACT-R
- 400,000 - - 400,000 18 January 2018 to 0.785 0.72
18 January 2020
—2-\%-At/N\BZ
ZE-3F-ATI\A
- 31,200,000 - - 31,200,000 9 October 2018 to 0.466 0475
9 October 2020
“E-N\EtANRE
ZIZTETANA
Total Employees EE8Y 4,400,000 31,600,000 (1,400,000) 2,400,000) 32,200,000
Total All Categories FERRIEs 13,400,000 49,600,000 (1,400,000) (3,000,000) 58,600,000

On 31 December 2018, the total number of shares options of the
Company available for issue under the Scheme had been fully
granted. Unless otherwise determined by the Directors, there is
no minimum period required under the Scheme for the holding of
an option before it can be exercised. There is no consideration for
the application or acceptance of an option under the Scheme. The
remaining life of the Scheme is approximately four years and to be
expired on 30 November 2022.

RZZB-NF+_A=+—R REZE
ATERTZARABREARDBEEL -
BREF R 1TA] BAS - %At 830 & A5 E BB A
RAIITER AR A 2 &8 HRE - RiEZ a8l
AR EABREGARE -ZFEZHRT

HEOR/EE 1R

Sy

—_—=—

F+—

BIEF
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the five largest customers of the Group accounted
for about 80% of the turnover of the Group and the largest customer
of the Group accounted for about 37% of the total turnover.

During the year, the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for
about 98% of the purchases of the Group and the largest supplier of
the Group accounted for about 39% of the total purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital), has an interest in any of
the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.

Details of the subsidiary’s controlling shareholder’s beneficial interest
in the Group are further explained in the section titled “Connected
Transactions” below.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group had the
following continuing connected transactions, details of which were
disclosed in compliance with the requirements of Chapter 20 of GEM
Listing Rules.

Continuing Connected Transactions - Upstream Natural Gas
Sales Agreement

On 28 December 2017, Yichang Biaodian and Yichang PetroChina
Kunlun Natural Gas Co., Ltd (“Yichang Kunlun”) entered into the
upstream natural gas sales agreement (the “Upstream Gas Sales
Agreement”) pursuant to which Yichang Kunlun agreed to supply and
Yichang Biaodian agreed to buy natural gas for the period from 1
January 2018 to 31 December 2018.

The transaction amount and annual cap (“Annual Cap”) amount of

such transaction for the year ended 31 December 2018 are about
RMB13,934,000 and RMB19,500,000 respectively.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing Connected Transactions - Upstream Natural Gas
Sales Agreement (Continued)

As Yichang Kunlun is owned as to 49% by Hubei Biaodian and
Hubei Biaodian is a substantial shareholder (within the meaning of
GEM Listing Rules) of Yichang Biaodian holding 41% equity interest
in Yichang Biaodian, whereas Mr. Xiong, is the ultimate controlling
shareholder of Hubei Biaodian and a director of Yichang Biaodian,
each of Yichang Kunlun and Hubei Biaodian, is connected person
of the Company and the transactions (the “Continuing Connected
Transactions”) contemplated under the Upstream Gas sales
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions for the
Company under GEM Listing Rules.

Given that: (i) Yichang Kunlun is a connected person of the
Company only at the subsidiary level; (ii) the Board has approved the
Continuing Connected Transactions; and (iii) having considered the
terms of the Upstream Gas sales Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder (including the Annual Cap), all the
independent non-executive Directors have confirmed that the terms
of the Continuing Connected Transactions are fair and reasonable,
the Continuing Connected Transactions are on normal commercial
terms or better and in the interest of the Company and the
shareholders of the Company as a whole, the Continuing Connected
Transactions (including the Annual Cap) are exempted from the
circular, independent financial advice and Shareholders’ approval
requirements under Rule 20.99 of GEM Listing Rules. The continuing
connected transactions are subject to the reporting, announcement
and annual review requirements under Chapter 20 of GEM Listing
Rules.

The management has monitored and ensured that (a) the continuing
connected transactions have been conducted in accordance with
the pricing policies or mechanisms (if applicable) under the Upstream
Gas Sales Agreement, as appropriate; and (b) the Company’s
internal control procedures are adequate and effective to ensure that
continuing connected transactions are so conducted.
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Report of the Directors

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing Connected Transactions - Upstream Natural Gas
Sales Agreement (Continued)

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
continuing connected transactions under Upstream Gas Sales
Agreement and have confirmed that such continuing connected
transactions were entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course
of business of the Group; (i) on normal commercial terms and (iii) in
accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders
of the Company as a whole.

RSM Hong Kong, the Company’s auditors, were engaged to report
on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information and with reference to Practice Note 740
Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. RSM Hong Kong have issued their
unqualified letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect
of the continuing connected transactions disclosed above by the
Group in accordance with GEM Listing Rule 20.54 of GEM Listing
Rules. A copy of the auditors’ letter has been provided by the
Company to the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosures
requirements in accordance with Chapter 20 of GEM Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2018.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report, there is
sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issue
shares as required under GEM Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman lIslands which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

COMPETING INTERESTS

During the year, none of the Directors, the controlling shareholders
of the Company (as defined in GEM Listing Rules) or their respective
associates had any business or interest which competed or might
compete with the business of the Group nor had any other conflict of
interest with the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part
of the business of the Group was entered into or existed during the
year.
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Report of the Directors

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration of the employees of the Group is determined with
reference to market terms and the performance, qualifications and
experience of the individual employee.

The emoluments of the Directors were recommended by the
Human Resources and Remuneration Committee of the Company
after considering factors such as the Company’s Directors’ duties,
responsibilities and the operating performance of the Group.

The Company has adopted the Scheme as an incentive to Directors
and eligible employees. Details of the scheme are set out in note 41
to the consolidated financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant events occurring after the reporting period are
set out in note 49 to the consolidated financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors is
currently in force and was in force throughout the reporting period.

Appropriate insurance cover on Directors’ and officers’ liabilities
has been provided by the Company to cover potential legal actions
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of
any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of
their duties.
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Report of the Directors

AUDITORS

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”), who was the auditor of
the Group from 2000 to 2017, has resigned as the auditor of the
Group with effect from 30 January 2019. Deloitte, in their letter of
resignation, confirmed that there were no matters in connection
with their resignation that needed to be brought to the attention of
holders of securities or creditors of the Company. The Board also
confirmed that there was no disagreement or unresolved matter
between the Company and Deloitte, and that they were not aware
of any matters in relation to the resignation of Deloitte as auditor of
the Group that needed to be brought to the attention of holders of
securities of the Company.

The Company has appointed RSM Hong Kong as the auditors of the
Company for the Year with effect from 30 January 2019. RSM Hong
Kong will retire and, being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. A resolution to re-
appoint RSM Hong Kong and to authorise the Directors to fix its
remuneration will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Cheung Tuen Ting
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

28 March 2019
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. It met all the code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) set out in Appendix 15 of
GEM Listing Rules in the year ended 31 December 2018 except for
the following deviation:

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The Company did not appoint a chairman
from 19 April 2018. The Board will keep reviewing the current
structure from time to time and appoint candidate with suitable
knowledge, skill and experience as chairman of the Company, if
identified.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealing set out
in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of GEM Listing Rules (the “Required Standard”)
as the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the
Directors. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors
confirmed that they had complied with the Required Standard during
the year ended 31 December 2018.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company confirms it has received from each of its independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of GEM Listing Rules, and
considers that the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is governed by a board of directors (the “Board”)
which has the responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company. The Directors are collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Group by directing and supervising the Group’s
affairs. The Board set strategies and directions for the Group’s
activities and lead the Group’s management team through the
Directors with a view to developing its business and enhancing
shareholder value.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board’s composition
and the individual attendance of each Director at the Board
meetings, board committee meetings and shareholder meetings
during the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in the table
below:

& )
= (&)
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REBE-F

EFeMEREENEER#EE

mE

=
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Attendance/Number of Meetings held
during the tenure of his/her office in the year

HERY/ ERERENETEERY

—“NF+-A=+—BLFE &
E-NF+=
A=+t RLFEHFEEEEER EFZX
SR MBERARENBERANTXR:

Human
Resources &
Board  Remuneration Nomination Audit Shareholder
Meeting Committee Committee Committee Meeting
ADERR
Ezgel Mz REZEE ENZEE REAE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Cheung Tuen Ting RmT A THAEH 15/15 N/A N/A N/A 2/2
Chief Executive Offcer TEm TEm TE A
Mr. Wu Guoming REBLE (RZE-N\E 4/8 N/A N/A N/A 0/2
(appointed on 30 April 2018) MA=+BEZA) TEA TEHA TER
Mr. Long Wenming EXHEE(RZE-NE 12/14 N/A N/A N/A 0/2
(appointed on 8 January 2018) —ANBEZf) TEA TEA TER
Mr. Chen Hualiang RERTE (RZB-N\E 14/14 N/A N/A N/A 0/2
(appointed on 8 January 2018) —ANBEZf{) Tam TEm TE A
Mr. Han Leiping BRTLE(RZE-N\E 14/1 N/A N/A N/A 0/2
(appointed on 8 January 2018) —ANBEZf{) TEA TEA TER
Mr. Weng Lin Lei PRELE(RZZ-N\E 6/6 N/A N/A N/A N/A
(resigned on 19 April 2018) MATNBEMR) TEA TEA TER TEHA
Mr. Wei Yuetong RAELE (RZZ-N\%E 2/5 N/A N/A N/A N/A
(re-appointed on 5 February 2018 and ZARAEENZARR TER TEHA TER TR
resigned on 6 June 2018) “E-\EXAARREL)
Independent Non-Executive Directors ~ BIFH{TES
Ms. Kwan Sin Yee BERTT 10/15 3/3 3/3 4/5 0/2
Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin 2L 14/15 3/3 33 4/5 12
Mr. Sun Zhi Jun REEXE 15/15 3/3 33 4/5 0/2
Ms. Huang Yu Jun HIENL 14/15 3/3 3/3 5/5 2/2

N/A: Not applicable

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board held fifteen
Board meetings to review, among other matters, the Group’s
financial and operating performance and discuss the business
direction and strategy. Agenda and accompanying board papers

were sent to all Directors in a timely manner.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Directors who could not attend in person could participate the Board
meetings and Shareholder meetings through other electronic means
of communications.

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 17 to 22 in this annual report.

The Company is committed to arranging and funding suitable
training to all Directors for their continuous professional
development. During the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to
the date of this report, Mr. Cheung Tuen Ting, Mr. Wu Guoming, Mr.
Long Wenming, Mr. Chen Hualiang, Mr. Han Leiping, Ms. Kwan Sin
Yee, Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin, Mr. Sun Zhi Jun and Ms. Huang
Yu Jun engaged in business activities in their respective fields as
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills so as to ensure that their contributions to the
Board remain informed and relevant. Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin
has participated in continuous professional development programs
required by The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The Directors also participated in other trainings and professional
developments such as attending seminars, studying reading
materials relating to the Group or its industries and businesses; rules
and regulations; business management; or the roles, functions and
duties of a listed company director.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the leadership of the
Board, ensuring its effectiveness in all aspects of its role and for
setting its agenda and taking into account any matters proposed by
other directors for inclusion in the agenda. Through the Board, he is
responsible for ensuring that good corporate governance practices
and procedures are followed by the Group.
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Human Resources
and Remuneration Committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) held
three meetings. The Remuneration Committee has reviewed and
approved the Group’s remuneration policy, including that for the
executive Directors, and the levels of remuneration paid to executive
directors and senior management of the Group. The terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee follow the guidelines set
out in the Code and it is responsible for, among other things, making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management.

The remuneration paid and payable to the Directors for the year
ended 31 December 2018 is set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The remuneration paid and payable to the senior management of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2018 is within the range
of HK$1,000,000 to HK$1,500,000.

BOARD DIVERSITY

The Board has adopted a policy concerning diversity of Board
members (the “Board Diversity Policy”) which is summarized as
follows:

The Company is committed to maintaining a highly effective Board
which should have a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of its business. When
deciding on the appointment of directors, it is the policy of the
Company to consider a number of factors, including but not limited
to, gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, and other qualifications, skills and experience which the
Company considers that it will make a positive contribution to the
performance of the Board.
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BOARD DIVERSITY (Continued)

The Nomination Committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) monitors the implementation of the Board Diversity
Policy and reviews it from time to time and shall bring to the
attention of the Board any significant issues or recommendations
as and when necessary and appropriate. Any reviews, updates and
amendments to the Board Diversity Policy shall be approved by the
Board.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee have been
determined with reference to the Code.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for identifying potential
new directors and making recommendations to the Board for
decision. A director appointed by the Board is subject to re-election
by shareholders at the first annual general meeting after his/her
appointment. All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every 3 years. In accordance with the Company’s Articles
of Association, one third of the directors are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election by shareholders at each annual general
meeting of the Company.

Potential new Directors are selected with reference to the Board
Diversity Policy whenever necessary and appropriate.

The Nomination Committee held three meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2018 and work performed included reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board, the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors and the nomination of
new Directors.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BEEMEBER A T

EEERES L)

ARBlZRAZEE ([ RE2ZESERE
EFERBELEBR 2T AR FELR
AERERREERAEEERHEIENEER
EHXER - EFEXNESZTLRRALM
me EHREAKETSRB-

REZEES

ARBIE2ETAEITREZBGZRESR
B

RAZESABVMEREENRNEIESL
AL UHEBESELRERMEBZH A
EFeR I EFARAEERIRZEBER
RBFAELEBRREE-MEEFTAKRD
B=FHERT X -RAE REAQEZHE
BERMA ARRBERRBEFAE LA
BE=N2EFHERERCRREE-

REAZEENVEREERZ2ZEZEKE
ZTEBRRERBERRHIEEST AL

HE-_ZE—N\F+_A=+—HBLLFE &
HLEEeHRHBITREgFE HIEBEER
EETeRE AHMRAN -BUFNTES
BRI ERE ZIRA-

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 %




TEERME
Corporate Governance Report
RZZT—N\F+ZB=+—H AsAt31 December 2018

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has adopted the terms of reference for corporate
governance functions set out in the Code and has delegated the
Group’s corporate governance functions to the Audit Committee of
the Company (the “Audit Committee”).

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, with the inclusion
of the corporate governance functions, follow the guidelines set out
in the Code. The Audit Committee is responsible for, among other
things, having relationship with the Company’s auditors, reviewing
the Group’s financial information and its financial reporting, financial
reporting system, risk management and internal control systems and
corporate governance, including the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of
the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function. The Audit
Committee reports to the Board any significant issues relating to its
terms of reference.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Audit Committee held
five meetings and work performed included reviewing the Group’s
quarterly, half-yearly and annual results, its risk management and
internal control systems, and corporate governance matters for
inclusion in the Company’s Annual Report.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to RSM Hong Kong for audit services for
the year ended 31 December 2018 amounted to approximately
HK$1,080,000.

The remuneration paid to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu for audit and
non-audit services for the year ended 31 December 2017 amounted
to approximately HK$950,000 and approximately HK$1,080,000
respectively. The non-audit services provided by Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu to the Group were in relation to the review service on
taxation, quarter results, interim results, and limited assurance
services on continuing connected transaction.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
accounts of the Company. As at 31 December 2018, the Directors
are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the Directors
have prepared the consolidated financial statements of the Company
on a going-concern basis.

The responsibilities of the external auditors about their financial
reporting are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report attached to
the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2018.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

The Board has, through the Audit Committee, conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control system with an aim to safeguard the shareholders’
investment and the Company’s assets in compliance with the
provisions of the Code. The purpose is to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatements, errors,
losses or fraud, and to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in
achieving the Group’s business objectives.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Group maintains an effective internal control and risk
management systems. It consists, in part, of organisational
arrangements with defined lines of responsibility and delegation of
authority, and comprehensive systems and control procedures in
order to safeguard the investment of the Company’s shareholders
and the Group’s assets at all times.

The Audit Committee performs the duties of risk management and
internal control on behalf of the Board to oversee the management
in the establishment, maintenance and monitoring of effective risk
management and internal control systems.

The Audit Committee reviewed the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems in respect of the year ended 31 December
2018 and considered the system effective and adequate. The Board
assessed the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control by considering the reviews performed by the Audit
Committee. The Group’s risk management and internal control
systems have segmented reviewed by an independent professional
party. The Company complies with the code provisions relating to
internal control contained in the Code.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary is Mr. Chan Hank, Daniel since 7 October
2016. He undertook totally not less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the year ended 31 December 2018.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company seeks to maintain a balance between meeting the
shareholders’ expectations and prudent capital management with a
sustainable dividend policy. The Company’s dividend policy aims to
allow shareholders to participate in the Company’s profit and for the
Company to retain adequate reserves for future growth. In proposing
any dividend payout, the Company would consider various factors
including the Company and the Group’s actual and expected
financial performance, the Group’s current and future operations,
the level of the Group’s debts to equity ratio, liquidity position and
capital requirement of the Group, general market conditions and any
other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company maintains an on-going dialogue with its shareholders
through various channels including announcements and annual,
interim and quarterly reports published on its website at
www.globalstrategicgroup.com.hk and the Company’s general
meetings. All shareholders are encouraged to attend general
meetings and they may put to the Board any enquiries about the
Group through its website at www.globalstrategicgroup.com.hk or
in writing sent to the principal office of the Company at 15/F, 80
Gloucester Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong. The Directors, company
secretary or other appropriate members of senior management
respond to enquiries from shareholders promptly. The Chairman,
the Chief Executive Officer, chairmen of board committees (or
their respective delegates) and external auditors attend the annual
general meeting and are available to answer questions raised
by shareholders. Shareholders may also access the Company’s
corporate website for the Group’s information.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
(Continued)

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at
all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
company secretary, to require an extraordinary general meeting to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business (including
any proposals) specified in such requisition, and such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionists themselves may do so in
the same manner.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Board is not aware of any significant changes in the Company’s
constitutional documents during the year ended 31 December 2018.
Memorandum and articles of association of the Company is available
on both the website of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN
PREPARING THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group (the “Consolidated
Financial Statements”) which give a true and fair view and are
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The Directors endeavor to ensure a balanced, clear
and understandable assessments of the Group’s performance,
position and prospects in financial reporting. Accordingly,
appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied
consistently; judgments and estimates made are prudent and
reasonable.

The statement of the Company’s auditors about their reporting
responsibilities on the Consolidated Financial Statements is set out
in the Independent Auditor’s Report on page 50 to page 57.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED % ER & A& &

RIEARBEBERARF8E TANE
BEERARFENPRARREZKRA (M
BRARRIBRASREREFN) +202 —Hkk
R REAREREREBANETEH A AW
ERHEMER BEXEZSARBRRER
RE NEEAHEERTEANTASEE(E

REMER) ZASRR2EZZRKEME
AARBT-WEER -+ BHREFEARE
G AEZAE M2REEBRALABTH

R A AEH U2 -

ERXH

REBEEZZTE-—N\FF+ZA=+—HILFE"
EEQUTNBARAERXHNEMEKR
2H - ANAMNBEMERERAREZRMAT
FRBEE 32 F A8 vk I AR A B A8 uh JE ER o

EERAUGSHBHRRNEL

EZAAREARERBEEESAMAER
WZ§/%Q#%$E¢/EH|J%E%EEﬁA$Z$

By BHRE ([RAaMBHRE]) EF
Hﬂ%ﬁﬁ@%ﬁéﬂﬁ%ﬁ#&qﬂﬂzﬁ%@z%ﬁ‘
AR B AT T & B R AR 25 k- F
b OEERERERGEERTEE  PIFL
AR EBEREREE -

D FRIED B R S A B T R ok o
5.5 £ 102 3 B 5605 H57 BB T A
i o

BHERXH ANNUAL REPORT 2018 4 i

49




50

BB S
Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Global
Strategic Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 58 to 219, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. The key audit
matters we identified are:

FARESTER

FASR Rt FIR AR BAZIEN TR E X A -
AR AHMASEMBRENEARAER
MER - ZEERENANRBMITETERS
EMBBREIREBARTRNERE A% A
TAEHZEETRREHRBINER - FHE5
RIS T RN T -

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRETEE AREMTHENNNEERRESNSE
1. Impairment of goodwill, intangible assets

and property, plant and equipment

BE BREEURYE BERRBEHRE

We identified the impairment of goodwill, Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment

intangible assets and property, plant and included:

equipment arising from Yichang Biaodian Natural A EH1TH @R EFEHEF 24 :

Gas Utilisation Co., Ltd (formerly known as

Yichang Zhongyou Natural Gas Utilisation Co., - Assessing the competence, capabilities and
Ltd) (“Yichang Biaodian”) as a key audit matter objectivity of the management’s independent
due to the fact that Yichang Biaodian incurred valuer, and verifying the qualifications of the
loss of HK$36,334,000 in the current year. valuer; discussing the scope of its work with the
AZEMITHEEEMRRRARFAAERA A management and reviewing its terms of engagement
(AW AEERRMAARMAERAR) ([EEEF to determine that there were no matters that affected
M) EENEE BEREEURDE BERE its objectivity or imposed scope limitations upon it;
WREREAARSETEE KL IHEREERER — JAEEEBIGEMNBEEN ZXENIRETSH
P 7R [E 7 4 [E518.36,334,0007# 7T © MR EEMNER BERENRELTEEHE
REMEZEGR NETTESFHEFEHTH TN
9 5 pte AN &6 B R )
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Key Audit Matter

BRETSE

1. Impairment of goodwill, intangible assets
and property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

BE BYEEUARYE BERRENRE
(%)

As stated in note 22, the Group engaged an
independent professional valuer to carry out
an impairment assessment by estimating the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
with reference to value-in-use calculation, which
required significant judgement on assumptions
and inputs adopted in the underlying cash flows

and in selecting an appropriate discount rate.

P E22fa Bt EREERE-FKBEYL
HEXMGERMETRERN G RREMEEFE
FEEFAREELABEUNATKROSHE EF2HR
HERSREPRNEEREMEZTRREANR

B A B EARAE -

According to the assessment, there was no
impairment on the goodwill and intangible assets
arising from the Group’s acquisition of Yichang
Biaodian and no impairment on property, plant

and equipment of Yichang Biaodian as at 31
December 2018.

REFE R_FT-N\NF+_A=+—0 %
B SRENBESSASH I BERELEE

BE BESREZYE B MRE I ERE -

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
AR THENNMEERERNEE

Confirming that the approaches it used are in
compliance with the requirement under Hong Kong
Accounting Standard 36 “Impairment of Assets”;
BREMRANTETE BB G ERFEIK [EE
AR B EK

Analysing the underlying cash flows used in the
models to determine whether they are reasonable
and supportable;

DR ERBRELNDERANHERRSRE NEERS
EREBLEEZAE:

Understanding the projected cash flows, including
the assumptions relating to revenue growth rates
and comparing operating margins against historical
performance; and

THREARSAE (ERABAREERENRR) K
HEREEFBEREBERR &

Involving our internal valuation experts to evaluate
the methodology of the valuation, inputs used for
the cash flow forecast and factors considered in the
discount rates and assess these rates.
EZRAZEMITHABEEER2ETHEETE -
BensBAMAR A AEARRBERFRZENE
= Wal & R
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Key Audit Matter
HAEETSE

2. Going concern assessment

BFRKEFML

Refer to note 2 to the consolidated financial

statements, the Group incurred a net loss for the

year ended 31 December 2018. This condition

indicated that there is uncertainty about the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern as
the Group’s cash flows from operations was not

sufficient to cover its operating costs.
HEEpRMGETBRERNE BE_T—N\F
TZA=T-BIFE EBESEELEBIEFHE-
ZMAERY BEEENHELLRNEFENE
T RER BEREZREHRERETRAEN
BB

Notwithstanding the above, the Group’s
management considered that it was appropriate
to prepare the consolidated financial statements

on a going concern basis. Management also
considered that there was not a material
uncertainty in relation to going concern based on
their assessment of the Group’s cash position

and expected liquidity requirements for the

foreseeable future.

BEWEXF: BEEBEERERA REEL
EEHERVTEUBRERBEE SEENRA
REEE BHEEIRSAMR RN R KRR 28
MBESHBEZHEH UM FEEBRBELE Y
BBRIRETE M-

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
AR THENNMNEERERTEE

Our procedures in relation to management assessment of
going concern included:
AZBMTERERERERETENIEFE2EE:

We assessed the reasonableness of the key inputs
and the assumptions adopted by management in the
preparation of the cash flow forecasts based on the
historical performance of the Group’s operations and
our knowledge of the business.

AZHETERE EXEEEXEBZBERRREIZH
MITHZEB 2 HE TEEEERNREReRER
ARFRA TE2HARBRBRZEEE-

We discussed with management their plans for the
development of the natural gas operation, leasing
business and the commodity trading business,
and their plans to control costs and evaluated, the
reasonableness of the cash flow forecasts based on
those plans.
AZEMTEREEEENRAEARERAARER
HEXBKLAMmE SR 8 R EZESIK A Z 5
2 URBEZEFETRRERERAZEEME -

We considered the impact of reasonably possible
downside changes in the assumptions underlying
the cash flow forecasts and assessed the possible
mitigating actions identified by management.
AZEETEEZRR e MEER 2 HBAREK 2 SEA
BERAEE) WA EERERR Z TR EETE -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the Other Information. The Other
Information comprises all of the information included in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their

responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Wong Wo Cheung.

RSM Hong Kong
Certified Public Accountants

29th Floor, Lee Garden Two
28 Yun Ping Road
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

28 March 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

BE_ZTZ— N \F+_-_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 F&T FHET
Continuing operations BEREEK
Revenue & 8 108,716 49,749
Cost of sales 558 AR (102,668) (47,176)
Gross profit EH 6,048 2,573
Other income HAb g A 9 2,241 292
Other gains and losses H b Y25 M g5 18 10 (148) 811
Loss on fair value change on BEEAFEFAERE
convertible bond designated at (MERAFEFTAEE])
fair value through profit or loss ZAMRES 2
(“FVTPL”) N EEHER (4,186) -
Selling and distribution cost HE Mo HEK AR (18,917) (11,299)
General and administrative expenses —#& R 1T X H (44,225) (27,118)
Finance costs BY 7 AR 12 (25,697) (5,670)
Loss before tax RR B AT 5 18 (84,884) (40,411)
Income tax credit FEHE R 13 1,973 1,919
Loss for the year from continuing REFELEEHK >
operations FAEIE 14 (82,911) (38,492)
Discontinued operations ERIEEEEK
Loss for the year from RECKRIERBEER 2
discontinued operations FAEIE 17 (5,520) (1,506)
Loss for the year FAEE (88,431) (39,998)
Other comprehensive income Hip 2w &=
Item that may be reclassified to IREEEF R
profit or l0ss: BmZHE -
Exchange differences arising on B EHREBE A
translation of financial statements 2IEREEZ
to presentation currency EHER (6,208) 9,860
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

BE2_ZT—N\F+_-_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

2018 2017
—E-N\#F —E—+F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 F&T FH T
Other comprehensive income FREMEEmKE
for the year, net of tax (BMH) (6,208) 9,860
Total comprehensive income AFEEZHERZELE
for the year (94,639) (30,138)
Loss for the year attributable to: U TATELEFERER:
Owners of the Company FiN/NEIE7 F=I/N (70,595) (33,225)
Non-controlling interests FE 12 AR A 2 (17,836) (6,773)
(88,431) (39,998)
Total comprehensive income for DTATEGAETEERZE
the year attributable to: U 25 48 55
Owners of the Company VAN/NECIEZ RSN (73,799) (28,653)
Non-controlling interests JEE R = (20,840) (1,485)
(94,639) (30,138)
Loss per share BREE 19
From continuing and discontinued R BEZFELER
operations ERIEEEEK
Basic (HK cents per share) ER (FRABMW) (5.89) (2.94)
Diluted (HK cents per share) #E (B (5.89) (2.94)
From continuing operations REBERSEER
Basic (HK cents per share) AKX (FRABMW) (5.43) (2.80)
Diluted (HK cents per share) g (FRBW) (5.43) (2.80)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
RNZZE—NF+-_A=+—H Asat 31 December 2018

2018 2017
—E-N\#F —E—+tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FET FAT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment LE R 20 277,688 281,191
Prepaid land lease payments TEA L EFRIE 21 1,606 1,733
Goodwill EES 22 4,323 4,556
Long term deposit KRS 26 37 -
Intangible assets mEE 23 204,658 228,902
488,312 516,382
Current assets RBEE
Inventories rE 25 492 321
Trade and other receivables FEWE 5 I H b BR 5K 26 11,662 1,833
Loan receivables FEU B 27 29,504 720
Bond receivables JE WS 1E F 28 13,125 =
Prepaid land lease payments AT L & KA 21 33 35
Value-added tax (“VAT”) recoverable ] U [@] 1% (& £
([EEH]) 7,783 7,146
Restricted bank deposits X PR B RITF K 45 544 =
Bank and cash balances R1T MBS % 29 2,297 7,069
Current tax assets MERIBEE 165 =
65,605 17,124
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables FERTE 5 I H AR 3K 30 47,774 48,769
Amounts due to directors JEEEFIB 31 2,105 =
Non-convertible bonds N ]RESH 32 9,747 =
Bank borrowings RITEE 33 2,277 2,400
61,903 51,169
Net current assets/(liabilities) RBEE,/ (AE)FHE 3,702 (34,045)
Total assets less current liabilities #AEERRBEE 492,014 482,337
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

MRZZE—N\F+=ZHA=+—H Asat31 December 2018

2018 2017
—E-N\E&F —tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
o 7E F&T FH T
Non-current liabilities FRBEME
Amount due to a shareholder of JERT A A R AR R IE
the Company 35 - 25,355
Amounts due to non-controlling EA—ENBARZ
shareholders of a subsidiary and JEERR AR R M H
its related parties B3 5 IR 36 39,650 176,704
Bank borrowings RITEE 33 17,081 3,600
Non-convertible bonds Al R B 5 32 3,000 =
Convertible bond designated at EEERAFEF AEE
fair value through profit or loss (2R FEFAE
(“FVTPL”) W) 2 A BmRES 37 24,186 -
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEEE 38 50,682 55,571
134,599 261,230
357,415 221,107
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXRHE
Share capital &N 40 32,586 28,275
Share premium and reserves B 19 5 (B N 43(a) 231,347 79,379
Equity attributable to owners of the ~ AR R A A BIHEZR
Company 263,933 107,654
Non-controlling interests JEFE AR HE = 93,482 113,453
Total equity REEH 357,415 221,107

Approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2019 and are HZ_Z—

signed on its behalf by:

Cheung Tuen Ting
Rin = S H 5

I EERRER

Wu Guoming

NE=ZAZTNBEEZTSHEYL
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE2_Z—N\F+_A=+—HIEFE Forthe Year Ended 31 December 2018
Attributable to owners of the Company
AAREE AR
Non-
Subsidiaries controlling
Share Capital Share Other ~ Translation ~ Share options sharesto  Accumulated interests
capital reserve premium reserve reserve reserve be issued losses Total (‘NCI")  Total equity
#3862 FERER
B EAGE RHEE AfbRE BERE  BRERE WEASRG Zithe gt ([FeREs)) BE4E
(note 40)  (note 43(b)(i) (note 43(b)ii))  (note 43(b)(iv)) (note 43(b)(v)) (note 41) (note 34)
(Kid0)  (Wsas))  (Ratad)i))  (Wakadp))  (KE43b)Y) (K4 (Hit3d)
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
T T T T ThEL ThEL ThEL T T Thn T
At1 January 2017 RZF-t§-5-8 28215 7,540 223,502 16,613 919 - - (162,639 118,372 103,985 220,361
Exchange differences arsing on BB REAEBETER
translaton of financiel statements EEIERZR
to presentation currency - - - - 4512 - - - 4512 5,288 9,860
Loss for the year 343 - - - - - ) - (83229 3,229 6773 139,999
Profit/oss) and total comprehensive )
income for the year %E% bk - - - - 4572 - - 33.225) 28653) (1,485) 30,138)
Recogntion of share-based EANRA BERHHT
payments (note 41) (Hisk4t) - - - . = 2446 = = 2446 = 2446
Deemed capital contribution arsing fromnon- ~ ARFRRR—EHEATZ
current interest-free loan from a shareholder o~ FERREREHERRE
the Company and non-controling shareholders of VSIS B EHEL 2
asubsidiary and its related partes BIETE (K35R%)
note 35 and 36) - - - 15,489 - - - - 15,489 10,953 26,442
At 31 December 2017 RZF-tF+-B=1-A 28,275 7540 223,502 32102 (347 2446 - 185,864) 107,654 113,453 21107
At1 January 2018 R=F-\§-5-R 28215 7,540 223,502 32,102 (347 2,446 - (185,864) 107,654 113,483 201107
Exchange diffrences arsing on BB RRAEBEHEH
translation o financial statements EEZERZR
to presentation currency - - - - (3,204) - - - (3,204) (3,004) (6,208)
Loss for the year TEEFR - - - - - - - (70,59) (70,595) (17,836) (88,431)
Loss and total comprehensive TEEFERZENALE
incame fo the year - 5 K - 3204 - - (105% (737%9) 0840 (94629
Forfeiture of share options granted (note 41) R RitBaME (Fisar) - - - - - (542) - 542 = = =
Disposal of interest to NCI (note 44(d) LERRTERRER
(Hf3k44() - - - - - - - % % (35) S
Issuance of ordinary shares ErERR 4276 - 62937 - - - - - 67213 - 67213
Recogntion of share-based payments (note 41) RO BER 3
GED) - - - - - 7804 - - 7804 - 7804
Exercise of share option kERE 3% - 95 - - (251) - - 9 = m
Advanced recelpts for capltal contrbutions BUEE (Hias)
(note 34) - - - - - - 153,317 - 153,317 - 153,317
Deemed capital contribution arsing from -BHBAR AR
non-curent interest-free loan from RRRABEHREFNS
non-controling shareholders of a SREREL BMETE
subsidiary and its related partes (note 36) (Hi3k36) - - - 870 - - - - 870 904 1774
At 31 December 2018 R=Z-NE+ZA=1-H 32,586 7540 287 434 32912 (8,561) 9457 153,377 255,882) 263,933 93,482 357,416

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED % Bk B} Bg &

EARA

=
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
(2T \F+-_HA=+—HILFE Forthe Year Ended 31 December 2018

2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
=S FHET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM REXBABAERE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax BR B AT ES 18
Continuing operations FHE IS S ETS (84,884) (40,411)
Discontinued operations ERIEEEER (5,520) (1,506)
(90,404) (41,917)
Adjustments for: T
Depreciation of property, plant and Y% BE REHEZ
equipment e 13,490 6,365
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEHH 8,492 9,478
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TEA LA & SRIEHE 5
payments 39 3
Finance costs B 7% B AR 25,697 5,670
Interest income FEHKA (1,067) (3)
Loss on fair value change on EEZAFEFABRZ
convertible bond designated at AR ES AT EE
FVTPL PEE 4,186 -
Loss on disposal of property, plant LEME BE X
and equipment B Pl R 424 1,293
Loss/(Gain) on disposal of & —HH B A A
a subsidiary e, (M) 48 (2,000)
Impairment loss on intangible assets & 2 & & F{E &5 18 4,500
Impairment loss on goodwill e REEE 8,005
Share-based payment expense LARR 1D BERE A RFE X 7,804 2,446
Operating cash flows before EEESEEE 2
working capital changes KEREGRE (18,786) (18,635)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and FEUE 5 R E M BRFK (35
other receivables m) /A (7,169) 1,336
Increase in inventories GFE®EM (198) (198)
Increase in restricted bank deposits =R #l #R 1717 FX1E 0 (544) =
(Decrease)/Increase in trade and ERE S REMBER O/
other payables )/ #Ehn (8,081) 5,624
Cash used in operations KEMFECRS (34,778) (11,873)
Income tax refunded BEREMEH (37) =
NET CASH USED REEBFAEZREFH
IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES (34,815) (11,873)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
(2T \Ft+-_HA=+—HILFE Forthe Year Ended 31 December 2018

64

2018 2017
—E-N\F —t &
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
{ig=s FET FHET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES WETE
Acquisition of property, plant WWEEYNSE - BB MR
and equipment (9,932) (24,970)
Interest received B E 942 3
Proceeds from disposal of HEME ME &
property, plant and equipment SRR (S B 1,190 -
Net cash outflow arising from W EEMEL Y
acquisition of Yichang Biaodian IH 4 7% HSE 5A - (9,999)
Increase in loan receivables FEU B S 0 (29,439) =
Increase in bond receivables JE U (& 512 0 (13,000) =
Cash inflow arising from disposal of HE—FBBATIELEMN
a subsidiary WEMA - 2,000
Cash inflow arising from acquisition U —FEIRBATIELE Z 44(a)
of a subsidiary B TN 164 -
Increase in VAT recoverable ] W [B] 12 {F 74 32 A0 (1,040) (349)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING RETBEFMARSZEEE
ACTIVITIES (561,115) (383,315)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES B S E
Proceeds from issue of new ordinary 2247 %7 i@ AR P18 718
shares 67,992 -
(Repayment to)/advance from a (BHT) BHANAF
shareholder of the Company, net of AR ER  SEEE (25,355) 18,360
(Repayment to)/advances from (BHT) /25y —HHE
non-controlling shareholders of a NF T IEERRAEE B
subsidiary and its related parties,
net of iR (156,742) 33,986
New bank borrowings raised ERITEE 17,080 5,850
Amounts due to directors }*ﬁ§$m 2,541 -
Proceeds from convertible bond KAEETEAFETAEBZE
designated at FVTPL AR E L T e EE 20,000 _
Proceeds from non-convertible bonds 3k g T—Hﬁ&%gﬁz
BT 15 77 12,500 =
Repayments of bank borrowings 18 @fﬁfﬂﬁﬁ (2,376) (17,550)
Repayments of loans from EEIEIERIRERER
non-controlling shareholders - (2,644)
Advance receipts from BUCEE
capital contribution 153,377 -
Interest paid 2+ F A (7,724) (1,398)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HE-_Z—N\F+-_A=+—BILFE For the Year Ended 31 December 2018

2018 2017
—B-N\F —
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FHET FHETT
NET CASH GENERATED FROM BEETEFFEESTEE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 81,293 36,604
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND HERESEEHL BE
CASH EQUIVALENTS (4,637) (8,584)
Effect of foreign exchange SN PEE =R % &) 7 B 28
rate changes (135) 638
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—B—HAZHEELES
AT 1 JANUARY %5 7,069 15,015
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS N+=-—A=+—RH02
AT 31 DECEMBER HERHRLEH 2,297 7,069
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GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BEEMEBER A T

e ISR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE_ZTZ— N \F+_-_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

GENERAL INFORMATION

Global Strategic Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law (Revised) of the
Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-
1111, Cayman lIslands. The address of its principal place
of business is 15/F., 80 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). HKFRSs comprise
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”); Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (‘HKAS”); and Interpretations.
These consolidated financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622). Significant accounting policies adopted
by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

—RAH

REEBEBREBERAR ([RAAR])E
FEHSREFSHSLEAAE
AR RERRER AT - AT
% BZ i ik A Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, POBox 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands - £ B & %
B 2 Mok R B BB S T E809R15
B-RARAZBROEBEMERSGME
PR A ([HE3ZFT] ) GEM BT ©

RARRR—HREERAR HWEA
AZEZEBENGEVBRKRME
24 o

R EE

ZEHANBHREDREE SR HL
& ([EAGHMAE]) B2 AR
REBATG RS LR (BB HHREE
A RS BRRBRE LA RESS
PR R ([EBMEREED ) :
EERIER (BB ED]) R
BB RBEAMBRE NG A B2
B LRI ERREREAREE
DEGH (BB H620%) 2 HEHR
e AEEFRAT EERHBERE
-

BEGFMAGER/ME TR REE
RIZERMBREEN IRAEEZ
S HEERERKAIHRERRA -
Ff EESTE M A & 5t HI ] M 2 A & 71 1
REYZ EAERNEERRE AR ME
EZ e BREGNEN EHEHE
FRRNZFHREMBEHRE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

The Directors have given careful consideration to the going
concern of the Group in light of the fact that the Group incurred
a net loss of HK$88,431,000 for the year ended 31 December
2018. In addition, as at 31 December 2018, the Group had
capital commitments amounting to HK$9,281,000 as disclosed
in note 46.

Mr. Wu Guoming (“Mr. Wu”), a substantial shareholder of the
Company as at 31 December 2018, has agreed to provide
sufficient funds to the Group so that the Group will be able
to meet all current obligations as they fall due in the coming
twelve months after the year ended 31 December 2018.

Taking into account the above factors, the Directors are of
the opinion that, together with the internal financial resources
of the Group, the Group has sufficient working capital for
its present requirements, that is for at least the next twelve
months commencing from the date of the consolidated
financial statements. Hence, the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BERE K EEER A T

WMEEXE (&)

RASEREBEZE_Z—N\F+=
ﬂ =St BLEFEEXEEBEIFE
88,431,000 T EFEHFHE R AL
E o FFE L E R o b A - 3 40 BT FE46
Fi#EHE R E—NF+_A=+—
B AEEBE#HBEARHKIEI 281,000
=

ERAR_F-N\F+-A=+—HB2
IEH&%%I%S‘EE(F%%EJ)EH
ERAAKERHUARES UWEAKE
RHENBE—_Z-N\F+_A=1+—
BIEFERARK+ZEARFRA 2 HA
HIfET -

BHREARE BERA BAAL
86 P E BT AR A T
BRSTRTARAMHRE D Wik
E o RAT B AR HR - Bk
GAMBRACRSEEEEERY.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

BRI R ERT BB MR
===

A=A

STANDARDS

(a)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED :RERE B £ @A R 2 &

Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018. Of these, the
following developments are relevant to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements:

(i) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments; and

(i)  HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 replaces the provisions of HKAS 39 that relate
to the recognition, classification and measurement of
financial assets and financial liabilities, derecognition of
financial instruments, impairment of financial assets and
hedge accounting.

(a)

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 %
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
NE+-_HA=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

BHE-T—

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

(a)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with
the transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9, i.e. applied
the classification and measurement requirements
retrospectively to instruments that have not been
derecognised as at 1 January 2018 (date of initial
application) and has not applied the requirements to
instruments that have already been derecognised as at 1
January 2018. The difference between carrying amounts
as at 31 December 2017 and the carrying amounts as at
1 January 2018 are recognised in the opening retained
profits and other components of equity, without restating
comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared
under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement.

The adoption of HKFRS 9 resulted in the following
changes to the Group’s accounting policies.

(a)  Classification

From 1 January 2018, the Group classifies its
financial assets in the following measurement
categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair
value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI”) or at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL"), and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED % ER & A& &
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i =5

(a)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. BRAFITRZBETEBHER
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING S X8| (&)
STANDARDS (continued)

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued) (a) ERFITRKEITEEMKERE

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

R (&)

BB BHEERFEINREHMTA
(#&)

(a)  Classification (Continued) (@) (&)
The classification depends on the Group’s business DEIANAEEEESR
model for managing the financial assets and the BEMEBEARReRE
contractual terms of the cash flows. B & #ER
For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses HRIZAFETFENEE
will either be recorded in profit or loss or other s REEET ABRmE
comprehensive income. For investments in equity 2R ES o E R FE R 1E
instruments that are not held for trading, this RGMBATEKRE E'J?ﬁ
will depend on whether the Group has made an FREEEIIBEREZ
irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition YE H 71 7] 88 /9 tsa“iﬁﬁﬁ’:\?;z
to account for the equity investment at FVTOCI. AEEFAEMEZEKED

BRATEAR-
(b)  Measurement b) FHE

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
assets at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
assets not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried
at FVTPL are expensed in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

®)

Measurement (Continued)

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

° Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in other income
using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
is recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gains/(losses), together with
foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment
losses are presented as separate line item in
the statement of profit or loss.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED = 3R & B &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. BRAFITRZBETEBHER
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING S X8| (&)

STANDARDS (continued)

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued) (a) ERFITRKEITEEMKERE
2B (#£)

72
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in the carrying amount are taken through
other comprehensive income, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest revenue and foreign exchange gains
and losses which are recognised in profit or
loss. When the financial asset is derecognised,
the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss and
recognised in other gains/(losses). Interest
income from these financial assets is included
in other income using the effective interest rate
method. Foreign exchange gains and losses
are presented in other gains/(losses) and
impairment losses are presented as separate
line item in the statement of profit or loss.

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued) EBUBHREERFEIRMT A
(%)
(b)  Measurement (Continued) (b) iE (&)

e  FVTOCI: Assets that are held for collection o  EBRFEAHEMEE
of contractual cash flows and for selling the g FIERE & 43R
financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows eREMESRERE
represent solely payments of principal and CEE WZEEER
interest, are measured at FVTOCI. Movements EREBEEIN AR

B BRRFERA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. BRAFITRZBETEBTER
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING S X8| (&)

STANDARDS (continued)

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued) (a) ERAFIRKLEITETEUKRE
2B (4£&)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued) BB BEREERFIN L@ T A
(%)
(b)  Measurement (Continued) (b) iE (&)

° FVTPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria
for amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured
at FVTPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at FVTPL is
recognised in profit or loss and presented
net within other gains/(losses) in the period in
which it arises.

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to
profit or loss following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other
income when the Group’s right to receive payments
is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
FVTPL are recognised in other gains/(losses) in the
statement of profit or loss as applicable. Impairment
losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at FVTOCI are not reported
separately from other changes in fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. EMFTIREETEBUKR
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING S8 (&)

STANDARDS (continued)

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued) (a) EAFITRLEITERTERS

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

()

Impairment

From 1 January 2018, the Group assesses on a
forward looking basis the expected credit losses
associated with its debt instruments carried at
amortised cost and FVTOCI. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the receivables.

The following table and the accompanying notes
below explain the original measurement categories
under HKAS 39 and the new measurement
categories under HKFRS 9 for each class of the
Group’s financial assets as at 1 January 2018.

R (&)

BEBUMBHEERAFIRZHMTA
(%)

(c) JE

BE-ZE-N\F—HA—B#&"
S BER AT 1 B E IR
B A MR AP EF AR
feemBsIEZEFTA
HEzRHEEER MK
RREDEZEFEERRZ
B A0E 5B D i€

RERWESERMS A&
B e M A B ISR F NPT
EFFORBET A BERE
512 5 85 18 10 1) R i w0 R LK
BRRESRERR -

TRKBEM M EHALEE
EHEREEN_FT—N\F
—HA—BREFBGHER
E39M 2 Rt B KR E
BB REEREIR

STEHER
Carrying Carrying
Classification  Classification amount amount
under under under under
Financial assets HKAS 39 HKFRS 9 HKAS 39 HKFRS 9
REEEET REFEME REFEEH RESFBUE
ERIE0% FEERFR ERIE39% HEERENR
SHEE oBag HAE HiREE HiREE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 THL TET
Trade and other receivables EWE S REMRR @ Loans and Amortised 1,833 1,833
receivables cost
BRRERRIE B
Loan receivables ElER (@) Loans and Amortised 720 720
receivables cost
ERRERHE BEMA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. EMFITIREETEBUKER
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING £ XA (&)

STANDARDS (continued)

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued) (a) EAFITIRLETEBYMERE

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

()

Impairment (Continued)

The effect on retained earnings is before adjustment
for impairment (see below).

The measurement categories for all financial
liabilities remain the same. The carrying amounts
for all financial liabilities at 1 January 2018 have not
been impacted by the initial application.

The Group did not designate or de-recognise any
financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL at 1
January 2018.

Note:

(a) Trade receivables, deposit and other receivables that
were previously classified as loans and receivables
under HKAS 39 are now classified at amortised
cost. No adjustment on allowance for impairment of
the trade receivables, deposit and other receivables
was recognised in opening retained earnings at 1
January 2018 on transition to HKFRS 9.

For assets in scope of the HKFRS 9 impairment
model, impairment losses are generally expected
to increase and become more volatile. The Group
has determined that the application of HKFRS
9 impairment model requirements at 1 January
2018 does not result in an additional impairment
allowance.

R (&)

BB BEHREERFIN M T A
(%)

(c) JiE (%)

HRBAN FEBERER
BAT (R TFX) -

B €A AN EHAR
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—E-NF-A—HBERYF
Bt ABSMEMNSREE
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GEE

(a) EAIREBEEBSZTELSE
39 N KB B E K K B
BEREREZESHER Ed
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HE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

PRANETR] I RAE ] & B B 7 3R
H2A (#7)

A=A

STANDARDS (continued)

(a)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BEEMEBER A T

Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
determining whether, how much and when revenue is
recognised. It replaced HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11
Construction Contracts and related interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively with
the cumulative effect of initially applying this standard
recognised at the date of initial application, 1 January
2018. Any difference at the date of initial application
is recognised in the opening retained profits (or other
components of equity, as appropriate) and comparative
information has not been restated. Furthermore, in
accordance with the transition provisions in HKFRS
15, the Group has elected to apply the Standard
retrospectively only to contracts that are not completed
at 1 January 2018. Accordingly, certain comparative
information may not be comparable as comparative
information was prepared under HKAS 18 Revenue
and HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related
interpretations.

(a)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. RHFITIRZIETEBMEHR

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING &=

STANDARDS (continued)

(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued) (a)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

The adoption of HKFRS 15 resulted in the following
changes to the Group’s accounting policies.

o Trading of copper

Revenue of trading of copper is recognised when
control of the products has transferred, being
when the products are transferred to the customer,
the customer has full discretion over the channel
and price to sell the products, and there is no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s
acceptance of the products.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are
transferred as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment is
due.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED = 3R & B &

8 &)

7N

AT REETERMBERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. EMFTIREETEBUKR
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING S X8| (&)

STANDARDS (continued)

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued) (a) ERFITRKEITEEMKERE
2B (#£)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers BB BHREENEISHEKEE

(Continued) FEEa# Yz (&)

e Natural gas operations o  XATMER
Pipeline installation services BBTRERS
The Group provides service of pipeline installation REBEBABRARTEPREE
for natural gas customers. Revenue from pipeline BELERB - EBELREMNHK
installation is recognised at a point in time when HEREETKEBRNERE
the installation completed and the government REmit RS 2 R
inspected and issued approval report. Payment for RLRERBEXNZAER
pipeline installation services is not due from the BEASNEERERS N
customer until the installation services are complete. e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. BRAFITRZBETEBTER
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING S X8| (&)
STANDARDS (continued)

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued) (a) ERAFIRKLEITETEUKRE
2B (4£&)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers BB BIREERFEISHEKEEF
(Continued) FEa# Yz (&)

Natural gas operations (Continued)

Sale of natural gas through pipelines

The performance obligation of sale of natural gas
through pipelines to the customer are satisfied over
time as the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits of the natural gas provided
by the Group as it performs, therefore, revenue
arising from the sale of natural gas through pipelines
is recognised over time. The revenue from sale of
natural gas is based on the price as set out by the
government.

Sale of liquefied natural gas in bulk

Revenue from sale of liquefied natural gas in bulk
is recognised when control of the products has
transferred, being when the products are delivered
to the customer, the customer has full discretion
over the channel and price to sell the products, and
there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
customer’s acceptance of the products. Delivery
occurs when the products have been delivered to
the specific location.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are
delivered as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment is
due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. EMFTIREETEBUKR
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING S X8| (&)

STANDARDS (continued)

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued) (a) ERFITRKEITEEMKERE
2B (#£)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers BB BIREERFEISHEKEEF
(Continued) FEEa# Yz (&)

o Provision of steel support axial force servo system
and related installation and technology support
services

The Group provides steel support axial force servo
system (the “Steel Support System”) and related
installation services and technology support to
customers.

Provision of the Steel Support System contains
a lease. Income from leases is recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy in note 4(e).

Provision of the related installation and technology
support services are recognised as a performance
obligation satisfied over time. Revenue is recognised
for these services over time as the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
of the services provided by the Group as it
performs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. BRAFITRZBETEBTER
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING S X8| (&)

STANDARDS (continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet (b)
effective

The Group has not early applied new and revised HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2018. These new
and revised HKFRSs include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

B BB RERZHET REEZ
AIERUBREER

$%Eﬁﬁ%$@ﬁ%:$—ﬂ
F-A—BRBZIMEBEER
%%ﬁh%EﬂZﬁJ&MfJ
BEMEMELER - ZEHAT R
BRI B BMERE ERIBIEA R
EAKEBEBEIATIAER:

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on

or after

AT BE®

ZEBBZ

=g

HKFRS 16 Leases BAMGHRELNZIGHREE 1 January 2019

—E-h&F—H—H

HK(IFRIC) 23 Uncertainty over EE (ARTBHRERRZES) 1 January 2019

Income Tax Treatments FOIHAMISTEIE 2 —E-h&F—H—H
TR =

Annual Improvements to BB HRELN T —HFE 1 January 2019

HKFRSs 2015 —2017 Cycle :%—tiz@%ﬁZiEE& —h&E—H—H
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RN RAZETTEBUBR

H =
SR (#)

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

82

STANDARDS (continued)

(b)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EE B R A F

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these amendments and new
standards is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far the Group has identified some aspects
of HKFRS 16 which may have a significant impact on
the consolidated financial statements. Further details
of the expected impacts are discussed below. While
the assessment has been substantially completed for
HKFRS 16, the actual impacts upon the initial adoption
of the standards may differ as the assessment completed
to date is based on the information currently available
to the Group, and further impacts may be identified
before the standards are initially applied in the Group’s
interim financial report for the six months ended 30
June 2019. The Group may also change its accounting
policy elections, including the transition options, until
the standards are initially applied in that interim financial
report.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases and related
interpretations. The new standard introduces a single
accounting model for lessees. For lessees the distinction
between operating and finance leases is removed and
lessees will recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for all leases (with optional exemptions for short-
term leases and leases of low value assets). HKFRS 16
carries forward the accounting requirements for lessors in
HKAS 17 substantially unchanged. Lessors will therefore
continue to classify leases as operating or financing
leases.

(b)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE2_ZT—N\F+_-_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2019. The Group intends to apply
the simplified transition approach and will not restate
comparative amounts for the year prior to first adoption.

Based on a preliminary assessment, the standard will
affect primarily the accounting for the Group’s operating
leases. The Group’s office property leases are currently
classified as operating leases and the lease payments
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Under HKFRS 16 the Group may need
to recognise and measure a liability at the present value
of the future minimum lease payments and recognise a
corresponding right-of-use asset for these leases. The
interest expense on the lease liability and depreciation on
the right-of-use asset will be recognised in profit or loss.
The Group’s assets and liabilities will increase and the
timing of expense recognition will also be impacted as a
result.

As disclosed in note 47, the Group’s future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
for its office properties amounted to HK$2,247,000 as
at 31 December 2018 (2017: HK$1,173,000). These
leases are expected to be recognised as lease liabilities,
with corresponding right-of-use assets, once HKFRS 16
is adopted. The amounts will be adjusted for the effects
of discounting and the transition reliefs available to the
Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

(b)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EE B R A F

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Other than the recognition of lease liabilities and right-
of-use assets, the Group expects that the transition
adjustments to be made upon the initial adoption of
HKFRS 16 will not be material. However, the expected
changes in accounting policies as described above could
have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements from 2019 onwards.

HK(IFRIC) 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

The interpretation of HKAS 12 Income Taxes sets out how
to apply that standard when there is uncertainty about
income tax treatments. Entities are required to determine
whether uncertain tax treatments should be assessed
separately or as a group depending on which approach
will better predict the resolution of the uncertainties.
Entities will have to assess whether it is probable that
a tax authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. If
yes, the accounting treatment will be consistent with the
entity’s income tax filings. If not, however, entities are
required to account for the effects of the uncertainty using
either the most likely outcome or expected value method
depending on which method is expected to better predict
its resolution.

The Group is unable to estimate the impact of the
interpretation on the consolidated financial statements
until a more detailed assessment has been completed.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE-T—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, unless mentioned
otherwise in the accounting policies below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(@) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up
to 31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. The Group
has power over an entity when the Group has existing
rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s
returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by
other parties. A potential voting right is considered only if
the holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIRE R EE B R A 7

NE+-_HA=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

EEEHEE

ZERE %%ﬁ%aﬁﬁﬁiﬁ$£%
AT EFBRAERREN-

RENTEBRMBREENNHBEHRER
BERETERGHE THREEE
BREAANEE SRR BETIE
HHE - By RRSEEH T RERE
MR AHREMBRRMEBEAY
7RI MMGEARMESARE -

RAEZEFRAMBRRABEANEES
AARERHEMMN T3

(a) #ZREeiRHE

RAEVBRREBEARE MEHK
BRAABE+_A=t—Hz#
Bk -MBAREASEARE
HEZ AR BEAREAXXESR
SEBRMENAZLE AF6
NEBEHERNENTEZXS
Bl ke A AREIZEFZEE -2
AEBENBREENATE T HEZ
EREREBKHESN (MREZE
BERO RS A AKEE
BHZEERNEN -

E.:HE% HRER AREEEEE
BERZRUREMATHAEN
BEREE ERHEALERITE

%E% ERNBEAT TEEEH

BIETER] -

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 4 i

85




86

n\l__l_\

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
NE+-_HA=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018
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BB RN

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED I 3R & B

Consolidation (Continued)

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that
results in a loss of control represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the sale
plus the fair value of any investment retained in that
subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s share of the net assets
of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill and any
accumulated foreign currency translation reserve relating
to that subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to
the Company. Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of changes in equity within
equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between the non-
controlling shareholders and owners of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE2_ZT—N\F+_-_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

Consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling shareholders even if
this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions (i.e. transactions
with owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
the owners of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment loss, unless the investment is classified as
held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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BHE-T—

BB RN

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED % Bk B} Bg &

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the
acquisition of a subsidiary in a business combination. The
consideration transferred in a business combination is
measured at the acquisition-date fair value of the assets
given, equity instruments issued, liabilities incurred and
any contingent consideration. Acquisition-related costs
are recognised as expenses in the periods in which
the costs are incurred and the services are received.
|dentifiable assets and liabilities of the subsidiary in the
acquisition are measured at their acquisition-date fair
values.

The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred
over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded
as goodwill. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the
sum of the consideration transferred is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase
which is attributed to the Group.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest in the subsidiary is
remeasured at its acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gain or loss is recognised in consolidated
profit or loss. The fair value is added to the sum of the
consideration transferred in a business combination to
calculate the goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
NE+-_HA=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

BHE-T—

BB MR

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

Business combination and goodwill (Continued)

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are
initially measured at the non-controlling shareholders’
proportionate share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities at the
acquisition date.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating
units (“CGUSs”) or groups of CGUs that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination. Each
unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the Group at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.
Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually, or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of
the CGU containing the goodwill is compared to its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use
and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any impairment
is recognised immediately as an expense and is not
subsequently reversed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EE B R A F

Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$"),
Company’s presentation currency. The functional

which is the

currency of the Company is Renminbi (“RMB”).
The directors consider that choosing HK$ as the
presentation currency best suits the needs of the
shareholders and investors.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using
the exchange rates prevailing on the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange rates at
the end of each reporting period. Gains and losses
resulting from this translation policy are recognised
in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
NE+-_HA=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates when the fair values are
determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a
gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different from
the Company’s presentation currency are translated
into the Company’s presentation currency as
follows:

= Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(Continued)

(c) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

(iii) Translation on consolidation (Continued)

- Income and expenses are translated at

average exchange rates for the period (unless

this average is not a reasonable approximation

of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing

on the transaction dates, in which case

income and expenses are translated at the

exchange rates on the transaction dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are

recognised in other comprehensive income

and accumulated in the foreign currency

translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from

the translation of monetary items that form part of

the net investment in foreign entities are recognised

in other comprehensive income and accumulated

in the foreign currency translation reserve. When a

foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences

are reclassified to consolidated profit or loss as part

of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the

acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets

and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at

the closing rate.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EE B R A F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost, less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit or
loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost less
their residual values over the estimated useful lives on
a straight-line basis. The principal annual rates are as
follows:

2.3% - 19%
20% — 33"/5%
9.5% - 33"/5%
Leasehold improvements 20%
9.5% - 23.8%

4.8% - 9.5%
Plant and machinery 10%

Buildings
Computer system and equipment
Furniture and fixtures

Motor vehicles
Pipeline and equipment

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EE B R A F

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction and plant and equipment pending
installation, and is stated at cost less impairment losses.
Depreciation begins when the relevant assets are
available for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in profit or loss.

Leases

The Group as lessee

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are
accounted for as operating leases. Lease payments (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are recognised
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

Prepaid lease payments are stated at cost and
subsequently amortised on the straight-line basis over the
remaining term of the lease.

The Group as lessor

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the lessees
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are
accounted for as operating leases. Leasing income from
operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
NE+-_HA=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

Intangible assets

(i)

(i)

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at costs less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
The estimated useful life and amortisation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination are recognised separately from
goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair value
at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their
cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite
useful lives are reported at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that
are acquired separately.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

(9)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED % Bk B} Bg &

Intangible assets (Continued)

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of
an intangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average basis. The cost of finished goods and work in
progress comprises raw materials, direct labour and
an appropriate proportion of all production overhead
expenditure, and where appropriate, subcontracting
charges. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to

make the sale.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If
the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

(i)

)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED % Bk B} Bg &

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments (Continueq)

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace. All recognised financial assets are measured
subsequently in their entirety at either amortised cost or
fair value, depending on the classification of the financial
assets.

Trade and other receivables, loan receivables and
bond receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration is
due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
NE+-_HA=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

@KiT

BA IR AR

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

)

(k)

Trade and other receivables, loan receivables and
bond receivables (Continued)

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit losses.
If revenue has been recognised before the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount is
presented as a contract asset.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity
at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the group’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
cash flow statement. Cash and cash equivalents are
assessed for expected credit losses (“ECL”).

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED = 3R & B &
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HE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4., EESITHE (&)
(Continued)
() Discontinued operation () ORIEEEER

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED % Bk B} Bg &

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group
(i.e. the operations and cash flows of which can be clearly

Mu:i‘“é.—f%?r’zﬁ$’§laﬁ%
N R EH RN (A5

distinguished from the rest of the Group) that either has RAEBSBRTHEERREM EHEE
been disposed of, or is classified as held for sale, and EoMEERRESR)  WRKE
which represents a separate major line of business or UM EGEBEEME : HIRA

geographical area of operations, or is part of a single
co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line
of business or geographical area of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the component meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5, if
earlier. It also occurs when the component is abandoned.

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented in the statement of profit or loss,
which comprises:

- The post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

- The post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE2_ZT—N\F+_-_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

(n)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument under HKFRSs.
Financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value.

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit
or loss are subsequently measured at fair value. A gain or
loss on fair value of the financial liabilities are recognised
in profit or loss, unless the effect was arise from
changes in the Group’s own risk, are recogised in other
comprehensive income.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting policies
adopted for specific financial liabilities and equity
instruments are set out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BERE K EEER A T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o)

(p)

(a)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BEEMEBER A T

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds which entitle the holder to convert
the bonds into equity instruments, other than into a fixed
number of equity instruments at a fixed conversion price,
are regarded as combined instruments consisting of a
liability and a derivative component. The entire convertible
bond is designated as a financial liability at FVTPL.

Transaction costs are charged directly to profit or loss.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on
behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax
or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

Revenue from the trading of copper and sale of liquefied
natural gas in bulk are recognised when control of the
goods has transferred, being when the goods have been
delivered to the customer’s specified location (delivery),
and the agreed service performed. Following delivery,
the customer has full discretion over the manner of
distribution and price to sell the goods, has the primary
responsibility when on selling the goods and bears the
risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods.
A receivable is recognised by the Group when the goods
are delivered to the customer as this represents the
point in time at which the right to consideration becomes
unconditional, as only the passage of time is required
before payment is due.

Revenue from pipeline installation services is recognised
at a point in time when the installation completed, and
the government inspected and issued approval report.
Payment for installation services is not due from the
customer until the installation services are complete.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED I 3R & B

Revenue recognition (Continued)

The performance obligation of sale of natural gas through
pipelines to the customer are satisfied over time as the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits of the natural gas provided by the Group as
it performs, therefore, revenue arising from the sale of
natural gas through pipelines is recognised over time. The
revenue from sale of natural gas is based on the price as

set out by the government.

The Group provides leasing of steel support axial force
servo system and related installation services and
technology support to customer. Leasing income is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term
in accordance with the accounting policy in note 4(e).
Installation services and technology support services
income are recognised as a performance obligation
satisfied over time as the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits of these services

provided by the Group as it performs.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling) that are not credit-
impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the asset. For credit impaired
financial assets, the effective interest rate is applied to
the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) of the asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
rights to receive payment are established.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r)

Revenue recognition (Continueq)

Policy prior to 1 January 2018

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Group when specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities.

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised on the
transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership,
which generally coincides with the time when the goods
are delivered and the title has passed to the customers.

Revenue from a contract to provide services is recognised
by reference to the stage of completion of the contract
and is recognised when services are provided. Installation
fees are recognised by reference to the proportion of
the total cost of the provision of the pipeline installation
service.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
rights to receive payment are established.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EESHEE )
(Continued)
(s) Employee benefits (s) EEETH

(i)  Employee leave entitlements () ESEZRA
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long BHEFTEBELRERBREA 2
service leave are recognised when they accrue to EERHERES TEERRE
employees. A provision is made for the estimated R-HEEMEHLERLE BB
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a AESMEHEREMERZ
result of services rendered by employees up to the FRERBARBEBRHA G
end of the reporting period. BEELRE-
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity ElRBRRERzZEERER
leave are not recognised until the time of leave. KRR 77 & 1R o

(i) Pension obligations (i) BIKELFRE
The Group contributes to defined contribution REEMERBEFRKESE
retirement schemes which are available to all 2‘H’Eﬁfﬁf7\ ZRBEEHT
employees. Contributions to the schemes by 28 REEH N & 8 [T 3
the Group and employees are calculated as a ER 2B FIREEELF &
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The EEAOLIELFE BB
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to profit or F R 2 3R R AE B ET B A AR
loss represents contributions payable by the Group BAEEERES I 2 #
to the funds. e

(iii) Termination benefits (i) BRI EF

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED % Bk B} Bg &

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits, and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs and involves the
payment of termination benefits.

EERAXE
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

®

(u)

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments
to certain employees. Equity-settled share-based
payments are measured at fair value (excluding the
effect of non market-based vesting conditions) of the
equity instruments at the date of grant. The fair value
determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-
based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of
shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect
of non market-based vesting conditions.

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payment to
certain directors and employees.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED % ER & A& &
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u)

(v)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EE B R A F

Borrowing costs (Continued)

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and
used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset,
the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation
is determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the
expenditures on that asset. The capitalisation rate is the
weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to
the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding during
the period, other than borrowings made specifically for
the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in
profit or loss because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused tax
credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint
arrangements, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EE B R A F

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(w)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed
at each reporting date for indications of impairment
and where an asset is impaired, it is written down as
an expense through the consolidated statement of
profit or loss to its estimated recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets. If this is the case, recoverable amount
is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. Recoverable amount is the higher of value
in use and the fair value less costs of disposal of the

individual asset or the cash-generating unit.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future
cash flows of the asset/cash-generating unit. Present
values are computed using pre-tax discount rates that
reflect the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset/cash-generating unit whose impairment is being
measured.

Impairment losses for cash-generating units are allocated
first against the goodwill of the unit and then pro rata
amongst the other assets of the cash-generating unit.
Subsequent increases in the recoverable amount caused
by changes in estimates are credited to profit or loss to
the extent that they reverse the impairment unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EE B R A F

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit losses on trade and other receivables, loan
receivables, bond receivables and contract assets. The
amount of expected credit losses is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition of the respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The expected credit losses on these financial
assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on
the Group'’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current as well
as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting
date, including time value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the
credit risk on the financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures
the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
NE+-_HA=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

BHE-T—

BB MR

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses
that will result from all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast,
12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that
is expected to result from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within 12 months after the

reporting date.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort. Forward-looking information considered includes
the future prospects of the industries in which the
Group’s debtors operate, obtained from economic expert
reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies, relevant
think-tanks and other similar organisations, as well as
consideration of various external sources of actual and
forecast economic information that relate to the Group’s
core operations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EEGTTBE(#)
(Continued)
(x) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) x) SREEREZ)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

- significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk for a particular financial instrument;

- existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

= significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor;

= an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
NE+-_HA=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A financial instrument is determined to
have low credit risk if:

() The financial instrument has a low risk of default,

(i)  The debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term,
and

(i) Adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil
its contractual cash flow obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EE B R A F

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset to have low
credit risk when the asset has external credit rating
of “investment grade” in accordance with the globally
understood definition or if an external rating is not
available, the asset has an internal rating of “performing”.
Performing means that the counterparty has a strong
financial position and there is no past due amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an
event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that
receivables that meet either of the following criteria are
generally not recoverable.

- when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty; or
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(x)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Definition of default (Continued)

- information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

= significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
counterparty;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EE B R A F

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

- the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
counterparty a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider; or

- it is becoming probable that the counterparty will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

- The disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
including when the debtor has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings,
or in the case of trade receivables, when the amounts
are over two years past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit
or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE2_ZT—N\F+_-_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function
of the probability of default, loss given default (i.e.
the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of
default and loss given default is based on historical data
adjusted by forward looking information as described
above. As for the exposure at default, for financial assets,
this is represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount
at the reporting date; for financial guarantee contracts,
the exposure includes the amount drawn down as at
the reporting date, together with any additional amounts
expected to be drawn down in the future by default
date determined based on historical trend, the Group’s
understanding of the specific future financing needs of the
debtors, and other relevant forward-looking information.

For financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated
as the difference between all contractual cash flows that
are due to the Group in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the original effective interest rate. For a
lease receivable, the cash flows used for determining the
expected credit losses is consistent with the cash flows
used in measuring the lease receivable in accordance
with HKAS 17 Leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED I 3R & B

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

For a financial guarantee contract, as the Group is
required to make payments only in the event of a
default by the debtor in accordance with the terms of
the instrument that is guaranteed, the expected loss
allowance is the expected payments to reimburse the
holder for a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts that
the Group expects to receive from the holder, the debtor
or any other party.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a
financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL
in the previous reporting period, but determines at the
current reporting date that the conditions for lifetime
ECL are no longer met, the Group measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to 12-month ECL at
the current reporting date, except for assets for which
simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account, except for investments in debt
instruments that are measured at FVTOCI, for which the
loss allowance is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the investment revaluation
reserve, and does not reduce the carrying amount of the
financial asset in the statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
NE+-_HA=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Policy prior to 1 January 2018

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses
whether its financial assets are impaired, based on
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For trade receivables that are assessed not to be
impaired individually, the Group assesses them
collectively for impairment, based on the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
delayed payments in the portfolio, observable changes
in economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables, etc.

Only for trade receivables, the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit
or loss.

For all other financial assets, the carrying amount is
directly reduced by the impairment loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x)

(v)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED % Bk B} Bg &

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Policy prior to 1 January 2018 (Continueq)

if the
amount of the impairment loss decreases in a subsequent

For financial assets measured at amortised cost,

period and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed (either
directly or by adjusting the allowance account for trade
receivables) through profit or loss. However, the reversal
must not result in a carrying amount that exceeds what
the amortised cost of the financial asset would have been
had the impairment not been recognised at the date the
impairment is reversed.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

When it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.
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BHE-T—

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(2)

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and
are reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
Events after the reporting period that are not adjusting
events are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements when material.

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES

(i)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
directors have made the following judgements that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the consolidated financial statements (apart from those
involving estimates, which are dealt with below).

(a) Going concern basis

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis, the validity
of which depends upon measures taken by the
directors to improve the Group’s financial position,
cash flows and profitability and the financial support
of a major shareholder, at a level sufficient to finance
the working capital requirements of the Group as
explained in note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY

ESTIMATES (continuead)

(i) Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

(b) Consolidation of entity with less than 50%

(c)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EE B R A F

equity interest holding

Although the Group owns less than 50% of the
equity interest in Yichang Biaodian, Yichang
Biaodian is treated as a subsidiary because the
Group is able to control the relevant activities of
Yichang Biaodian as a result of the shareholders’
agreement between the Group and other
shareholders of Yichang Biaodian. For details please
refer to note 24(a).

Significant increase in credit risk

As explained in note 3, ECL are measured as an
allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1
assets, or lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage 3 assets.
An asset moves to stage 2 when its credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition.
HKFRS 9 does not define what constitutes a
significant increase in credit risk. In assessing
whether the credit risk of an asset has significantly
increased the Group takes into account qualitative
and quantitative reasonable and supportable
forward looking information.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continuead)

5. FEHERE KRGS (&)

() Critical judgements in applying accounting policies () EASTBRENEEHE
(Continued) (#)
(d) Judgement of the Group’s trading of copper as (d FEBEBEZEAEEHZ
a principal # Br
The Group recognises revenue generated from REBIERES ANLBRAE

trading of copper on a gross basis acting as a
principal. Significant judgement is made by the
management of the Group in determining whether
the Group is acting as a principal or agent in the
Group’s copper trading business.

Considering that the Group controls the copper
before it is transferred to the customer as (i)
the Group has primary responsibility for fulfilling
the promise to provide the copper including
responsibility for the acceptability of the copper;
(i) the Group bears the inventory risk; and (iii) the
Group has discretion to establish the price of the
copper, management of the Group has assessed
that the Group acts as principal.

The Group recognises revenue in the gross amount
of consideration to which it expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods transferred.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BERE K EEER A T
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SEEEEREEAKER
AEBRAEEXHTRIER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY

ESTIMATES (continuead)

(ii) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(i)

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other

key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the

reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing

a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets

and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed

below.

(a) Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EE B R A F

The Group determines the estimated useful lives,
residual values and related depreciation charges
for the Group’s property, plant and equipment. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the
actual useful lives and residual values of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions.
The Group will revise the depreciation charge where
useful lives and residual values are different to those
previously estimated, or it will write-off or write-
down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets
that have been abandoned.

The carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment as at 31 December 2018 was
HK$277,688,000 (2017: HK$281,191,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE-T—

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continued)

(ii) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes mainly in
statutory jurisdictions of Hong Kong and the PRC.
Significant estimates are required in determining
the provision for income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made. During
the year, HK$1,973,000 (2017: HK$1,919,000) of
income tax was credited to profit or loss based on
the estimated loss from continuing operations.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires
an estimation of the value in use of the cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated. The value in use calculation requires the
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to
arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. The carrying amount of goodwill at the end
of the reporting period was HK$4,323,000 (2017:
HK$4,556,000)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED % ER & A& &

NE+-_HA=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

5. FEHERE KRGS (&)

(i) EHEFFHBERENEERIER

/43 )
(/r},“g\/'

(b) FEH

(c)

EAERAE
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Bl TE RIVAME @ B FT1S 7K o
RETMEHBER EE
HEREE - R —REBHB
B ABOEEREZR
SREAEBTHEE -WZE
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MERELEHERE - FA -
1,973,000 T (=& —
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B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continuead)

5. FEHERE KRGS (&)

(i) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued) (i) FTTHAERZENEERE
(#)
(d) Impairment of trade receivables (d) EWEZRZREE

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BEEMEBER A T

Prior to the adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 January
2018, the management of the Group assesses at
the end of each reporting period whether there is
any objective evidence that trade receivables are
impaired. The provision policy for bad and doubtful
debts of the Group is based on the evaluation of
collectability and aging analysis of accounts and
on management’s judgement. A considerable
amount of judgement is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of trade receivables, including
the current creditworthiness and the past collection
history of each customer. If the financial conditions
of customers of the Group were to deteriorate,
resulting in an impairment of their ability to make
payments, additional allowance may be required.

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of
trade receivables is HK$12,000.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continuead)

5. FEHERE KRGS (&)

(i) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued) (i) FEFTTHAERZENEERR
(#)
(d) Impairment of trade receivables (Continued) (d) EKEZRZEE (&)

Since the adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018,
the management of the Group estimates the amount
of impairment loss for ECL on trade receivables
based on the credit risk of trade receivables. The
amount of the impairment loss based on ECL
model is measured as the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition. Where the future cash flows are less
than expected, or being revised downward due
to changes in facts and circumstances, a material
impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of
trade receivables is HK$2,871,000 (net of allowance
for doubtful debts of HK$NIl).

BR-_F—-N\$—H—H
RMBRMBHREENF
B AKREEEEENE
WE 5K HEERR G
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HREE IR &% ER A
FEBERANRESBES
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MEREIR ) 2 ZRAET © WK
KREREIRBEHXAS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continuead)

5. FEHERE KRGS (&)

(ii) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued) (i) FTTHAERZENEERE
(#)
(e) Fair value measurements and valuation (e) A FHEITERGZEBERE

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BEEMEBER A T

process

Some of the Group’s liabilities and equity
instruments (including convertible bond designated
at FVTPL and share options granted during the
year) are measured at fair value for financial
reporting purposes. The directors authorised the
financial department headed up by the Group’s
financial controller to determine the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs for fair value. In
estimating the fair value of a liability or an equity
instrument, the Group uses market-observable
data to the extent it is available. Where the Level 1
inputs are not available, the Group engages third-
party qualified valuation experts to perform the
valuation. The valuation team works closely with the
qualified external valuation experts to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the
model. The valuation team reports the findings to
the Directors of the Group every quarter to explain
the cause of the fluctuations in the fair value of the
liabilities and equity instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
NE+-_HA=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

BHE-T—

BB MR

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:

foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest

rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme

focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks

to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial

performance.

(a)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency risk
as some of its business transactions, assets and liabilities
are denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the Group entities such as United States
dollars (“US$”) and HK$. The directors have assessed
the impact of foreign currency risk and considered that
it is insignificant to the Group. The Group currently does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of
foreign currency transactions, assets and liabilities. The
Group monitors its foreign currency exposure closely
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

At 31 December 2018, if RMB had weakened 10%
per cent against the HK$ with all other variables held
constant, consolidated loss after tax for the year would
have been HK$508,000 (2017: HK$1,971,000) higher,
arising mainly as a result of the foreign exchange
loss on borrowings denominated in HK$. If RMB had
strengthened 10% per cent against HK$ with all other
variables held constant, consolidated loss after tax
for the year would have been HK$508,000 (2017:
HK$1,971,000) lower, arising mainly as a result of the
foreign exchange gain on borrowings denominated in
HK$.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
NE+-_HA=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018
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BB RN

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuea)

(a)

(b)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED % Bk B} Bg &

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2018, if RMB had weakened 10%
per cent against the US$ with all other variables held
constant, consolidated loss after tax for the year
would have been HK$NIl (2017: HK$546,000) higher,
arising mainly as a result of the foreign exchange
loss on borrowings denominated in US$. If RMB had
strengthened 10% per cent against US$ with all other
variables held constant, consolidated loss after tax for the
year would have been HK$Nil (2017: HK$546,000) lower,
arising mainly as a result of the foreign exchange gain on
borrowings denominated in HKS$.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet
its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
leading to a financial loss. The Group is
exposed to credit risk from its operating activities

contract,

(primarily trade receivables) and from its financing
including deposits with banks and financial
institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other

activities,

financial instruments. The Group’s exposure to credit risk
arising from cash and cash equivalents is limited because
the counterparties are banks and financial institutions with
high credit-rating assigned by international credit-rating
agencies, for which the Group considers to have low
credit risk.

EERAXE

6.

BERMER &)

(a)

(b)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE2_ZT—N\F+_-_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. MKERERE &)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit
subject to the Group’s established policy, procedures
and control relating to customer credit risk management.
Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past history
of making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Trade
receivables are due within 180 days from the date of
billing. Debtors with balances that are more than 3 to 6
months past due are requested to settle all outstanding
balances before any further credit is granted. Normally,
the Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which
is calculated using a provision matrix. As the Group’s
historical credit loss experience does not indicate
significantly different loss patterns for different customer
segments, the loss allowance based on past due status
is not further distinguished between the Group’s different
customer bases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuea)

(b)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EE B R A F

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

The following table provides information about the
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade
receivables, including those classified as part of a
disposal group held for sale as at 31 December 2018:

6. MKERERE &)

(b)

EERRE (&)

EWRE SR (&

TREIIXR-_ZFE-NF+ZA
=St-HAREEEREERRZ
BREERBESRRZEHEE
EBiR BERIBARELEMARZ

— 15 ¢

Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
EHEER IREAE EiERE
% HK$’000 HK$’000
% FHET FHT
Current (not past due) BNER (R HR) - = =
1 — 30 days past due #EA1 - 308 - 2,718 =
31 - 60 days past due #1HA31 - 60H = 1 =
61 — 90 days past due #8961 — 90H = 4 =
More than 90 days past due 1 HA B 390 A 2.25% 148 -
2,871 -

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past 1 year. These rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the
period over which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group’s view of economic
conditions over the expected lives of the receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE-T—

NE+-_HA=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. MKEABRERE &)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERE (&)
Trade receivables (Continued) FEWEZ R (&)
Prior to 1 January 2018 RZEFE-NF—H—HZH
Prior to 1 January 2018, an impairment loss was R=FE—N\F—A—HZA ®RE
recognised only when there was objective evidence of BEERERBEEZRRER
impairment. The aging analysis of trade receivables that 7 TR MR RREZ ERE
were not considered to be impaired was as follows: R Z BRI DAL T
2017
—tF
HK$’000
F& T
Neither past due nor impaired BL AR 780 B IR AR R (E 12
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired BR 7K #81 HR 75 AR ORU B 2 FE IR 5K IE B

related to one customer for whom there was no recent
history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired related
to a number of independent customers that had a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believed that no impairment allowance was
necessary in respect of these balances as there had been
no significant change in credit quality and the balances
were still considered fully recoverable.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED % ER & A& &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6.
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
Loans and other receivables

The Group transacts only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. Loans and other receivable
balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and the
Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The credit quality of the financial assets included in loans
and other receivables and other assets is considered
to be “normal” when they are not past due and there is
no information indicating that the financial assets had a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is
considered to be “doubtful”.
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(c)

BB MR

—NE+=ZA=+—HIEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2018

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. KRARER &)
Liquidity risk (c) REBEEEE
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current AEBCHERTEHERERK
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it FEHRBEST R UREBHIFT
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity EReREENEEBARKH
requirements in the short and longer term. ZRBESFE K
The maturity analysis based on contractual undiscounted ZIK SE2RAGBERESQORTR
cash flows of the Group’s financial liabilities is as follows: RERFTEZHHAFTAT -
Total
Less than Between Between Over undiscounted
1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years cash flows
FiE:)
ASES 1-2% 2-5% SENE  BRERAE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TER TER TER TR
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NE+ZF=t-H
Trade and other payables BHREMERFE 44,922 - - = 44,922
Amount due to a director EN—ZEZEHE 2,105 - - - 2,105
Non-convertible bonds TaBkESR 11,347 3,360 - = 14,707
Amounts due to non-controllng  JEfT —FIH B A 7
shareholders of a subsidiary FERBREREBER
and its related parties ZHE 39,650 - - - 39,650
Bank borrowings fEfﬂ‘a‘?X 3,812 3,192 14,262 - 21,266
Convertible bond designated EAREBATFEFABRLZ
at FVTPL Eﬁﬁﬂﬁ%% 2,000 20,861 - - 22,861
103,836 27,413 14,262 - 145,511

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED Iz BR & B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. MKERERE &)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) KBELER (&)
Total
Less than Between Between Over undiscounted
1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years cash flows
RITH
ASES 1-26 2-5% 5R5E BERAH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FaET FAT THL TAT
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+E+ZA=1+-H
Trade and other payables B REMERTE 45,441 - - - 45,441
Amount due to a shareholder ER—2EEHE - 29,360 - - 29,360
Amounts due to non-controlling ~ JER— M B4 7
shareholders of a subsidiary FERBER R
and its related parties E@ER 2B - 213,749 - = 213,749
Bank borrowings RITER 2,544 5,377 - - 7,921
47,985 248,486 - - 296,471
(d) Interest rate risk (d) FI=m= b

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk primarily relates
to variable-rate bank loans. It is the Group’s policy to
keep its borrowing at floating rate of interest so as to
minimise the fair value interest rate risk.

The Directors consider the Group’s exposure to interest

rate risk is not significant and therefore no sensitivity
analysis has been prepared.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. MKERERE &)

(e) Categories of financial instruments at 31 December (e) R+-A=+—Hz£mIASE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHET
Financial assets: SREE:
Loans and receivables B R e WG IR
(including cash and (PIEASEESEFEE)
cash equivalents) 49,557 8,024
Financial liabilities: cHAaE:
Financial liabilities at REHEHARTEzEHEAE
amortised cost 118,782 253,500
Convertible bond designated BERERATEGTAERZ
at FVTPL AR (& 55 24,186 -
() Fair values fH 2FE
Except as disclosed in note 7 to the consolidated BREFE M BHmERMFTIIIRE 2
financial statements, the carrying amounts of the Group’s N IRA BRI R T R 2 AR &
financial assets and financial liabilities as reflected in the EemEEREMBECREE
consolidated statement of financial position approximate BINEESEE 2 ATFE

their respective fair values.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
following disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair
value hierarchy that categorises into three levels the inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the Group can access at
the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers
out of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or
change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

AV E B

RFHER/TH2RERTEAYETZ
EFRSHHEEEMBENMAEEAE
Pise itz B8 - AT AP EFFERERE
RzRrEES StEarFEZEE
BB EABES R=EFH:

F-RBARE: ARERFEAHIREA
FREEXABNERTS
ZHRE (CRERE) -

F_RBARE: BEIRBEIVERIREE
RZEANEE F-RE
B2 BRERSD

F-RBARE: BERREIATBERGA
8-

AEE 2 BRRBERBERETHIMN
EHEYZEL Z BHEZE=AFR
ZIERBARER-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(a) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31

December:

7. AFREFE &)

(@ RT=-ZA=+—BHZAFEE®R

WE -

Fair value measurements using:

ERARTAABEZATVETE:

Total Total
31 December 2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2018 2017
@it st
“E2-\f¥+ZA=+-H -8R ot $=R =B-NF Z=F-t%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THAL THT THT THT THT
Recurring fair value KEMAVEFE:
measurements:
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities designated & E AR AT A ABEZ
at FVTPL - - 24,186 24,186 -
Total . - 24,186 24,186 -
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities measured at fair value (b) REE=BRZAFEIFEZE
based on level 3: B

Convertible bond designated

at FVTPL
EERRAFEFAEBHEZ
R ES
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
At 1 January i - -
At date of issuance of S (&5 217 B B
convertible bond 20,000 =
Total gains or losses recognised
in profit or loss W sk B 1B AR ER 4,186 =
At 31 December R+—-—A=+—8H 24,186 =

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIRE R EE B R A 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(c)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BEEMEBER A T

Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair
value measurements at 31 December 2018:

The Group’s financial controller is responsible for the fair
value measurements of assets and liabilities required for
financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair value
measurements. The financial controller reports directly to
the Board of Directors for these fair value measurements.
Discussions of valuation processes and results are
held between the financial controller and the Board of
Directors at least twice a year.

The Group’s financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss, representing the convertible bond designated
at FVTPL, are measured at fair value at the end of the
reporting period.

For Level 3 fair value measurements, the Group
will normally engage external valuation experts with
recognised professional qualifications and recent
experience to perform the valuations. The following
table gives information about how the fair values of
these financial liabilities are determined, in particular, the
valuation technique(s) and input used.

7.

NFEFTE (&)

(c)

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 %
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) 7. AY¥EE (&)

(c) Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group (c) R=F—-N\F+=-A=+—-H &K
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value SEFRAZHERFRARAY
measurements at 31 December 2018: (Continued) BEfE 2 mERITRE A EHRKE:

(%)
Level 3 fair value measurements EZERAFEE
Valuation Unobservable
Description technique inputs Fair value
1 B 1l T HE@AE AF¥E
2018 2017
ZE-N\F —ZT—+F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THET FAT
Convertible bond designated Binomial Option Stock price volatility
at FVTPL Pricing Model 24,186 -
EEAREAFEFABRZ I R A
B ES EEER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

8. REVENUE 8. W=
Disaggregation of revenue Wz &l o
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by BRAFERBELEER 2T EERSR
major products or service line for the year from continuing BIEHEPEHN 2 =S DT
operations is as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F&T FET
Revenue from contracts with ERMBHREEAE155
customers within the scope HEERZRBEEFEHNZ
of HKFRS 15 Wz
Disaggregated by major products or & E* B E Rk RIFEE 5
service lines
— Sales of goods —HEEMm 64,529 41,843
- Sales of natural gas —HEERAR 40,342 5,718
- Rendering of services — R AR % 2,800 2,188
107,671 49,749
Revenue from other sources H b 3OR 2 Wi
— Leasing income —MEEBA 1,045 =
108,716 49,749

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED I 3R & B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

8. REVENUE (continued) 8. W#m (&)
Disaggregation of revenue (Continued) W=Blo (&)
The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods and AREE LA = B E AR N 13 s R R
services over time and at a point in time in the following major Nl BB M AR TS 1S W e
product lines and geographical regions:
Provision of
Pipeline installation technology
Trading of copper Sales of natural gas services support services Total
EEH BERAR EERERE RERGZERE @it
For the year ended BEt-A=1-A
31 December LLEE 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
“3-N\f -IT-tf Z=B-N\fF -T+tf Z-B-\f -IT-+t§f Z-B-\f -T-+tFf Z-B-\f <-I—t%f
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fi#n AL FET FAL FHT TAT Fax TER FHT TAL
Primary geographical TERETE
markets
- The People’s Republic of ~ —HEAREAE
China (‘PRC’) except ([wEl)
Hong Kong (FBEER) 64,520 4,883 40,342 5,718 1,805 2,188 995 S q076m 49,749
Revenue from external RENPER 2 liE
customers 64,529 41,843 40,342 5,718 1,805 2,188 995 - 107,671 49,749
Timing of revenue B RRRH
recognition
Products transferred REERHSES 2
at a point in time Ef 64,529 41,843 4,826 - 1,805 2,188 - - 71,160 44,031
Products and services RREEEL
transferred over time ERREE - = 35,516 5,718 - - 995 - 36,511 5,718
Total @it 64,529 41,843 40,342 5,718 1,805 2,188 995 - 107,671 49,749

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 using the cumulative
effect method. Under this method, the comparative information
is not restated and was prepared in accordance with HKAS 18
and HKAS 11.

AEBEHAZRBERESEZERNERS
B BHREEREISK - R FET
WESSILRER  BIEBEB ST

AIE18R R BA S EREZRER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE_ZTZ— N \F+_-_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

9.

10.

OTHER INCOME 9. Hfblr A
2018 2017
—E-N\F T —+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Continuing operations HREREER
Bank interest income RITH BULA 4 3
Interest income from bond receivables & U (& % BE 2R 2 Uk A 457 =
Interest income from loan to third RETFE=ZFZERZ
parties B WA 606 =
Government subsidy B8R #e8 BA 1,166 -
Others EAh 8 289
2,241 292
OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 10. Hittlkzm K &8
2018 2017
—E-N\F T+t
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Continuing operations HFEREXEK
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEWBQF K
(note) (M) - 2,000
Loss on disposal of property, HEWME - -HEREEEE
plant and equipment (100) (1,189)
Write-off of a subsidiary HWsE— B AR (48) =
(148) 811

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BEEMEBER A T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

10. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES (Continued) 10. H

Note:

On 7 August 2017, the Group entered into a share transfer agreement
with an independent third party, pursuant to which the Group agreed
to dispose of its 100% equity interest in Honest (Macau Commercial
Offshore) Limited (“Honest MCQ”) for a cash consideration of
HK$2,000,000. Honest MCO did not have any assets and liabilities on
the date of disposal, and such disposal was completed on 7 August
2017, resulting in a gain on disposal of a subsidiary of HK$2,000,000
credited to profit or loss.

The related consideration of HK$2,000,000 was received by
the Group in 2017.

11. SEGMENT INFORMATION 11.

The Group has three operating segments as follows:

Trading of - Including income from trading of copper
copper

Natural gas - including investment in natural gas
operations projects, sales of natural gas,

natural gas cooking appliance and
accessories and pipeline installation

Leasing - Including services rendered from leasing
business of steel support axial force servo
system and technology support

b I B4R (2
B

RZZT—+tENAtH REBE—ZFL
F=RRIVROEREGE Bt AEERE
LAIR € K {E2,000,000/8 T HE R EH (B
PEERERSE) ERAR ([EHRMEE
BAERBKz2BRE-REESBH  ZH
BEFRERETECANEERAE B
ZEHEDR -ZZ—+tFNABEBERR &
2 HE — R A 72 Wz2,000,000% ;T ET
N =E

ARBER-_F-—LFUREHEBRE
2,000,000/ 7T °

7 REFR
REBZ ZAQESENT

BEH - BRASBEZZEA

ARREH — BRRERARER H
ERAR RARER
BAREHARER
£

HEX®E - EEIEEHEHD
BEEC TS
R RS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE-T—

11.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED I 3R & B

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The operation of IT solution services was discontinued in
the current year. The segment information reported does not
include any amounts for this discontinued operation, which is
described in more detail in note 17.

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business units
that offer different products and services. They are managed
separately because each business requires different technology
and marketing strategies.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as those described in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements. Segment profits or losses do not include amounts
for discontinued operations, unallocated corporate expenses,
certain other income, finance cost and income tax. Segment
assets do not include assets of discontinued operations, bank
and cash balances and unallocated assets. Segment liabilities
do not include liabilities of discontinued operations, convertible
bond designated at FVTPL, non-convertible bonds, some other
borrowings and unallocated liabilities. Segment non-current
assets do not include available-for-sale financial assets and
deposits for acquisitions.

SEBRAF

11.

NE+-_HA=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

THEER (&)

BB EATRRBEREFEL
e °Pﬁ#&¢2"*ﬁﬁﬂl7r@%¢tm

IFEEEK 2 AN e EFBHE
RHIFE7 ©

AEEY AREHFEARATAER R
PR 2 B SIS B N B R
TR 2 BT R 5 M RSB R S
BB ER -

REDBZ G BERERE M BHRERM
FHARTRI A ERE - 5 R N E B
TEFERIREXRHE ZEH Kok
rERX -ETHEMBA BBERER
MR -nBEEXLTEBRELILRE
EBEE ROIKBEBRLIARDEE
E-DHBETITEBEDRIELEER
BE BERATENABRZTHRK
BH TARESR ETEMEER
ROMBE - D EIFRBDEELTBIE
AHEeREERMESHE RS -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE2_ZT—N\F+_-_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

11. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 1. 7 EER (&)
The Group accounts for intersegment sales and transfers as REBEEHBEFHEE REESE O
if the sales or transfers were to third parties, i.e. at current ZEHEREEME = (AIRRET
market prices. B)Ed -
(@) Information about operating segment profit or loss, assets (a) BRAREBHBELEEHB2EENTE
and liabilities from continuing operations: wHREE - EERBECER:
Trading  Natural gas Leasing
of copper operations business Total
BEIE RARER HEER =X
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TER TER TER
Year ended BEZZ-N\&
31 December 2018 TZA=T—BLEEE
Revenue from external RENDEF 2 Yz
customers 64,529 42,147 2,040 108,716
Segment (loss)/profit 28 (BR) /&7 (2,131) (38,307) 1,775 (38,663)
Interest revenue Rl 6 1 1 1 3
Interest expense FIEFAY - (19,483) - (19,483)
Depreciation and amortisation 47 & % % &4 (97) (19,707) (60) (19,864)
Other material items of Htt g RIMARBRLZEE :
income and expense:
Loss on disposal of HEEEEERBS
fixed assets (55) - - (55)
Net foreign exchange loss SNEB IR T (23) - = (23)
Income tax credit ik gis - 1,973 - 1,973
Additions to segment REDBERDEE
non-current assets 1,963 14,898 7,187 24,048

As at 31 December 2018 R-E-N\E+=-A=+—H

Segment assets NEEE 5,451 480,842 12,268 498,561
Segment liabilities AEEE (6,991) (146,116) (24) (153,131)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

11. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 1. 7EEHR (&)
(a) (Continued) @ (#&)
Trading Natural gas Leasing
of copper operations business Total
BEN  RAREH HEER A
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FTAEL AL FET
Year ended BHE-Z—+t%
31 December 2017 +tZAZT—HLEFE
Revenue from external RENBEP 2 W
customers 41,843 7,906 - 49,749
Segment loss ARER 7 (15,200 = (15,207)
Interest revenue N € = 1 = 1
Interest expense FEHY - (3,268) = (3,268)
Depreciation and amortisation ~ #7 % 2 # 4 = (11,989) = (11,989)
Income tax (expense)/credit ISR (Bx%),/#% () 1,920 - 1,919
Additions to segment AESEERDEE
non-current assets - 53,051 - 53,051
As at 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+=A=1+—H
Segment assets NBREE 5,909 512,266 - 518,175
Segment liabilities NEEE ®) (285,241) - (285,249)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE2_ZT—N\F+_-_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

11. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continuea) 11.

(b)  Reconciliations of segment revenue and profit or loss

THEER (&)

b) FELEXBzoEWR=mLIER

from continuing operations: HER:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Revenue W &=
Total revenue of reportable BEER A
segments 108,716 49,749
Elimination of intersegment Rl ONE IR
revenue - -
Consolidated revenue from BELEEBRE R
continuing operations 108,716 49,749
Profit or loss B
Total profit or loss of Al RS S5 %8 m sk BT 1B R KR
reportable segments (38,663) (15,207)
Elimination of intersegment 5> %8 [ b ) 3 88
profits = =
Unallocated amounts: ROMEFE:
General and administrative — M RAITE S
expenses (36,791) (28,701)
Finance costs B 75 Bk A (6,214) (2,402)
Other income H At Y A 1,063 88
Other gains and losses H b Yezs g8 (93) 811
Fair value change of AR ES
convertible bond NEEES (4,186) -
Consolidated loss before tax SFELEEB 2
from continuing operations MRESRIAR & 518 (84,884) (40,411)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIRE R EE B R A 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE-T—

NE+-_HA=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

11. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 1. 2 EER (@)
(b)  (Continued) () (#&)
2018 2017
—E-N\#F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FAT
Reconciliations of segment ZSEEEREBYHER:
assets and liabilities:
Assets EE
Total assets of reportable AMEDBEBEE
segments 498,561 518,175
Assets relating to discontinued BRIEKRIEKELEERK 2
operations BE 133 5,656
Unallocated xD 55,223 9,675
Consolidated total assets HEmEE 553,917 533,506
Liabilities =R
Total liabilities of reportable AREDEREE
segments 153,131 285,249
Liabilities relating to discontinued BRE R I & &%~
operations =1 75 149
Unallocated RO 43,296 27,001
Consolidated total liabilities mERBE 196,502 312,399
Geographical information HEEER

All of the Group’s revenue and non-current assets by location
of customers or by location of assets are within the PRC,

including Hong Kong.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED I 3R & B

SEBRAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

11. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(c) Revenue from major customers:

An analysis of revenue from major customers which
account for 10 percent or more of the Group’s revenue is

11.

THEER (&)

(c) REFEEZEFzWH:

KEXBEP ZWaE (EAREEK
#10% A E£) 2 2T

as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—+F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TExT FAT
Customer A ZEA 39,704 =
Customer B EFB 24,542 -
Customer C 2FEC 10,815 =
Customer D =FED - 16,829
Customer E ®FE - 9,226
Customer F =PEF - 6,436

Revenue from one customer of the Group’s trading
of copper segment represents approximately
HK$39,704,000 (2017: HK$NIil) of the Group’s total
revenue.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED 3RERE M E@B AR A 5

REAKRBEEERI B —EF
FPzBmBERAEBRKE
#)39,704,0008 T (ZE—tF:

THT) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

12. FINANCE COSTS 12. B R A
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F&T FET
Continuing operations HREREER
Interest on bank borrowings RITEEFR AR 1,757 1,398
Imputed interest on loan from —HARERRECERZ
a former shareholder HEF B 4,811 =
Imputed interest on loan from —BIRE RIEIE R R &
a shareholder and non-controlling HEAEARHERZ
shareholders and its related parties HERE 31,893 18,215
Interest on convertible bond AR ES 2 F & 1,156 =
Interest on non-convertible bonds TR ES 2B 247 -
39,864 19,613
Less: amounts capitalised in BERIRBRRPERNMEz S8
construction in progress (14,167) (13,943)
25,697 5,670
The weighted average capitalisation rate was 9.75% for the HE-_FT-—N\F+A=1+—HI#F
year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: 9.83%). EZMEFHEREERRBITE% (ZF

—+%:0.83%) °

154 GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BB EimEMAR A  ANNUAL REPORT 2018 £




e ISR AR MR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE2_ZT—N\F+_-_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

13. INCOME TAX CREDIT 13.

Income tax relating to continuing operations has been
recognised in profit or loss as following:

FieHER

EREaTRRZEARELEXEBZ
FriS®ian T :

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ZE—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FE T

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax Bl Hif5 18 — F & A5
Provision for the year REEEAF - 1

Current tax — PRC BN EFH I8 — AR

Provision for the year NEERE - =
- 1
Deferred tax (note 38) EEFIE (M7E38) (1,973) (1,920)
(1,973) (1,919)

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulations of the EIT Law, the tax
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% (2017: 25%). The tax rate
of Hong Kong Profits tax in respect of HK subsidiaries is 16.5%
(2017: 16.5%).

No provision for the PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been
made in the consolidated financial statements, since the PRC
subsidiaries had no assessable profits in the year (2017: Nil).

BREPBRCEMBHRE(IDEMS
MEDRGCEMSHEZERMAA - P
BIMfE QAR X B25% (=T —+
F:25%) BHHABEWBRARNES
MEBMKE X B16.5% (ZF — £
16.5% ) °

P A 4R o B B B X B) 3 £ R AR B s
M 8 BN AR A B IR EL
CEMBHBER (T —LF E)-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
NE+-_HA=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

13. INCOME TAX CREDIT (continuea) 13.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is required since the
Company has no assessable profit for the year ended 31

December 2018 (2017: Nil).

The reconciliation between the income tax credit and the
product of loss before tax multiplied by the PRC Enterprise

Income tax rate is as follows:

FReHER (&)

HRARARBE_ZE—-N\F+_A
SH—HALEFEYEBRRTEN (=F
—tFE) MEAFHEENGRE
e

PSR 2RHaEERATBERE
PIEmEzBZEENT:

2018 2017
—EF-N\F —T—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Loss before tax B 7 R ES 18 (84,884) (40,411)
Tax credit at PRC Enterprise Income BZEF‘ Bl 1 P18 I E25%
tax rate of 25% (2017: 25%) Z—tF:25%)2
HIRHE % (21,221) (10,103)
Tax effect of expenses that are not ARSI E BB &
deductible 3,218 1,423
Tax effect of income not taxable RHBWAZB B2 (71) (129)
Tax effect of tax losses not RERTBEBE RGBT E
recognised 13,018 5,119
Effect of different tax rates of E fth BEE R 48 & BB A A
subsidiaries operating in other ZRRAME B
jurisdictions 3,083 1,770
Others HAty - 1
Income tax credit for the year RKEZZAHBHIER (1,973) (1,919)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

14. LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING 14. HEERKRE XK 2 ERNEIE
OPERATIONS

The Group’s loss for the year from continuing operations is REBIFELEER 2 FANEBRBIEM
stated after charging the followings: FRIA T & IEE YR
2018 2017
—E-N\#F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHT
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEEH
(included in selling and distribution (FTASHE KD HA)
cost) 7,892 7,678
Amortisation of prepaid lease TENHEE R IB
payments (included in general and (FFA—MRITHXZH)
administrative expenses) 39 88
Depreciation of property, plant and WME BERRETE
equipment
— included in cost of sales —FT ASHEK A 60 =
— included in general and —FF AR RITE X H
administrative expenses 2,376 2,661
- included in selling and —FTAEE RS HEKA
distribution cost 11,025 3,621
Loss on disposal of property, HEYE - HE K&
plant and equipment HiEEBE 100 1,189
Impairment loss on goodwill EERESE 8,005 =
Operating lease charges KEHEE A 1,915 2,785
Auditor’s remuneration 1% BRI %7 B 1,080 1,017
Cost of inventories recognised HRAERI 2HFEKAR
as an expense 102,329 46,049
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BE_ZTZ— N \F+_-_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

15. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 15. EERAMAX

2018 2017
—B-N\F —E—1F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F&T FET
Employee benefits expense EERAMZ
(including directors’ remuneration): (BREEZHH) :
Salaries, bonuses and allowances T& - JE4 Mo28h 6,065 7,815
Equity-settled share option expense — LARR#E 4% & &) BE AR 2 5 =% 7,804 2,446
Retirement benefit scheme BRIKEFET B R
contributions 286 88
14,155 10,349
Five highest paid individuals: hammHALT:

158

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BEEMEBER A T

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the
year included three (2017: two) directors whose emoluments
are reflected in the analysis presented in note 16(a). The
emoluments of the remaining two (2017: three) individuals
during the year are as follows:

FALAEBREHESFALTERE =4

—EEF WMA)ES HMERXH
F16@Z5 2 AT KR - FRERT M
Z(ZE—tHE:=ZB)A AT zMem
T

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAT

Salaries, allowances and benefits TE ZRELREYET
in kind 353 2,865
Equity-settled share option expenses A B4 4% & 1) B A% 7 7 52 1,564 108
Retirement benefit scheme contribution & K18 F 5t 21 {4t 7% 16 30
1,933 3,003
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

15. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (Continued) 15. EERABEXZ (&)

Number of individuals

AE
2018 2017
—B-N% —E—+%
The emoluments fell within the FMI A A TER
following bands:
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = %£1,000,0007% 7T 1 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ 8 L&
1,500,000/ T 1 =
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001& L&
2,000,000/ 7T - 1
During the year, certain non-director and non-chief executive FRN - BETHEZFRIFERTHAED
highest paid employees were granted share options, in respect B = o BiE B AR IBE A A R BT E
of their services to the Group under the share option scheme of LI E M AN IR A RS M BB BB AR
the Company. Details of the share option scheme are set out in o BRE B FBHENANEE RSN
note 41 to the Group’s consolidated financial statements. BMERMFE41 -
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HE-_ZT—N\F+=-_B=Z+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

16. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 16. EE 2 R/A KA =
DIRECTORS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a EZEE=MS
The remuneration of every director is set out below: FEEZ2HEeHINWT

Name of executive BTESHEA
directors (note (g)) (MaE(g))
Long Wenming (note (a)) B0 (M eE(a))
Chen Hualiang (note (a)) BER (ME@)
Han Leiping (note (a)) B2F (M)
Wei Yuetong (note (b)) BAE (M)
Wu Guoming (note (c)) KB (M)
Weng Lin Lei (‘Mr. Weng’)  S2& ([§%4])
(note (d) (Wi3E(d))
Cheung Tuen Ting Fin (M)
(note (e))

Name of independent BUFHTEEHS
non-executive directors (K& (h))

(note (h))

Leung Oh Man, Martin REX

Kwan Sin Yee BB

Sun Zhi Jun R

Huang Yu Jun "5EE

Total for the year ended BE-Z-N\F

31 December 2018 +ZA=+—-BLLEE

25t
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

16. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 16. EE 2B AR A= (2)
DIRECTORS (continuead)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a EEME (£)
Equity- Retirement
Salaries settled benefits Total
and other share option scheme directors’
Fees benefits expense contributions emoluments
DA R HE
ek HEH) RIKER
e Hit g7 BRERX HFEMRY ESMeLs
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TAT AT THT FHT
(Note a)
(BzEa)
Name of executive YTESHEA
directors (note (g)) (Hi&E(g))
Weng Lin Lei (‘Mr. Weng") 8 2%& ([§%4£])
(note (d)) (Wi5E(d)) - 892 110 = 1,002
Cheung Tuen Ting (note (¢)) &%= (FizE(e)) - 62 1,103 3 1,168
Leung Tsz Man (note (f) 273 (M) - 830 = 11 841

Name of independent BUFHTEEHS
non-executive directors (K&t (h))

(note (h))
Leung Oh Man, Martin 2 145 - 110 - 255
Kwan Sin Yee BiETR 145 = 110 - 255
Sun Zhi Jun BEE 145 - 110 - 255
Huang Yu Jun 5%F 145 - 110 - 255
Total for the year ended HE-Z—tF

31 December 2017 +TZRA=1+—HILEE

25t 580 1,784 1,653 14 4,031
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

16. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BEEMEBER A T

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Notes:

(@) Mr. Long Wenming, Mr. Chen Hualiang and Mr. Han
Leiping were appointed on 8 January 2018.

(b) Mr. Wei Yuetong was re-appointed on 5 February 2018
and resigned on 6 June 2018.

(c) Mr. Wu Guoming was appointed on 30 April 2018.

(d)  Mr. Weng Lin Lei was resigned on 19 April 2018.

(e) Mr. Cheung Tuen Ting was appointed on 26 July 2017.

) Ms. Leung Tsz Man was resigned on 26 July 2017.

(@9  The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company and the Group.

(h)  The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were for their services as directors of the
Company.

(i) There was no payment of the performance related
incentive payments for both years.

Saved as disclosed above, neither the chief executive nor
any of the directors waived any emoluments during the
year (2017: HK$Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Save for those disclosed in note 48 to the consolidated
financial statements, no other significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company was a party and in which
a director of the Company and the director’s connected
party had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

16. EECR/AIRNEZ (&)

(a)

(b)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

17. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
ceased its business in provision of IT solution services due to
deterioration of operating results and financial performance
during the year. The analysis of the results of discontinued
operations is as follows:

REBEE_FT-N\Ft+_A=1+—HBLHF
R EEEAilﬁhf BB AR RIR
BEBZREXERPBRAZFER
- BAKEEREZEH - SRIEL
BEBZAMMT

2018 2017
—E2-N\F —ZT—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FET
Loss for the year from discontinued = B & ILEE ¥R 2
operations: FAREHIE:
Revenue L& 21 636
Cost of sales $H 5 PR AR (55) (525)
Gross (loss)/profit £ (#8) 7 (34) 111
Other income H A - 23
Other gains and losses H s M E518 (324) (104)
Selling and distribution costs SHE K& $H R AR (5,129) (1,866)
General and administrative expenses —#& & 1T % H (33) 330
Loss before tax B 7% Al 5 18 (5,520) (1,506)
Income tax expense FriSHif < = o
(5,520) (1,506)
Loss for the year from discontinued B &L ¥R 2
operations (attributable to owners of ~ FREE (AR A
the Company) A ANEMN) (5,520) (1,506)
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HE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

17. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 17. ER L REXK (&)
2018 2017
—B-N\F —T—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F&T FET
Loss for the year from discontinued = B IHEEER 2
operations include the following: FABEREATRIE:
Depreciation e 29 83
Amortisation of intangible assets | EEEH 600 1,800
Impairment loss on intangible assets 2 & & 5 (E &5 18
(note 23) (F$5E23) 4,500 -
Loss on write-off of property, WM BWE R&EEE
plant and equipment 324 =
Loss on disposals of property, HEDE FEMKREEIE
plant and equipment - 104
Net foreign exchange loss HMNEE BT 1R H B = 1
Auditor’s remuneration 1% 8K A 5 B - 26
Operating lease charge ERERAX - 139
Cash flows from discontinued ERIEREEB 2 RERE
operations:
Net cash outflows from KEFH RS RLFE
operating activities (85) (467)
Net cash outflows from REESH RS RLFE
investing activities = (269)
Net cash outflows e ML FRR (85) (736)
164 GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BB M EEER AT  ANNUAL REPORT 2018 1§




an\

BB MR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE-T—

18.

19.

DIVIDENDS 18.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

LOSS PER SHARE 19.

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is
based on the following:

NE+-_HA=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

Hﬁ /%\

ﬁ%TL EJBEﬂZi_i—)\¢+ )El
—tF &)

BREE

iﬂﬁ%$&ﬁ& SBENTIRE AT & EG

:mu;

2018 2017
—E2-N\F —T—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F&T FHET
Earnings from continuing and BERCRIEKEEL 2
discontinued operations ZF|
Earnings for the purpose of calculating FiEt EiF B R B R L L ¥
basic and diluted earnings per share EMRER N 5 EF| 2 & F
from continuing and discontinued
operations (70,595) (33,225)
Earnings from continuing FEREXKZRA
operations
Earnings for the purpose of calculating Bt st & # 8 & & ¥ K TR E AR
basic and diluted earnings per share R #E R F| ~ & 7
from continuing operations (65,075) (31,719)
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BHE-T—

19.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED % Bk B} Bg &

LOSS PER SHARE (Continued)

NE+-_HA=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

19 BRER (&)

2018 2017
—B-NF —E—t
’000 000
TR T i
(Restated)
(&%)
Number of shares RHEEE
Weighted average number of RABEERERAREETRN 2
ordinary shares for the purpose I3/ AR N #E &L
of calculating basic and diluted
earnings per share 1,198,986 1,131,000

Basic and diluted loss per share from the discontinued
operations is HK$0.46 cents per share (2017: HK$0.14 cents
per share), based on the loss for the year from discontinued
operations attributable to the owners of the Company
of approximately HK$5,520,000 (2017: approximately
HK$1,506,000) and the denominators used are the same as
those detailed above for both basic and diluted loss per share.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
purpose of basic and diluted loss per share for both of the
years presented have been adjusted for the share consolidation
mentioned in note 40(d). Basic and diluted loss per share
for the year ended 31 December 2017 was restated for this
purpose.

The computation of diluted loss per share for the year ended
31 December 2018 does not assume the exercise of the
Company’s outstanding share options and conversion of
convertible notes, as this would result in the decrease in the
loss per share. The computation of diluted loss per share
for the year ended 31 December 2017 does not assume the
exercise of the Company’s outstanding share options as this
would result in the decrease in the loss per share.

EERAXE

*E%%ZIS’AE%%MEEE%%M«%%%
2 FAEIE 495,520,000 7T (= —
& : #91,506,0007% 7T ) & FT A a@ﬁ;ﬁg
EXF s BREARREEEIERER -
ERIEEEXEB  ERENREEE
BRER046ENM(ZF—EF: 8K
0.14781l) »

25z mEFERTESRERRE
BEECEBRNEFOEE MM E
APtz BRID AT AFE -BE
T—tHF+A=t—HLEFEZER
ERANEEEROALES -

BE_Z-/\F+t-_A=+—RHLFE
ZBBREEERFELTERITEAR
AlZHARITERBBREREBRATBRE
}F RASEGEREREBRRD @

—E—tFt= H—-f-*EIJJ:EJ*Z
tﬂxfiﬁfﬁféﬁéﬁfﬁilTﬁ”“?ﬂ?‘;K
ZHEARITEERE RAREEE ﬁ(t
B B 18R >

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 %




;A

@K

BB MR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
—NE+=ZA=+—HIEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2018

20. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

20. X HERRE

Computer Furniture Plant
system and and Leasehold Motor  Pipeline and and  Construction
Buildings  equipment fixtures improvements vehicles  equipment machinery in progress Total
EHARR
| &2 #E  GRRRE BERE RE  EEREE BERKE ERIR L]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAT TAL TAT TAL TR TAL TR TAL
Cost RA
At 1 January 2017 RZE-+&-f-H 8,860 811 1,138 2,065 7,242 58,229 - 152,997 231,342
Additions RE 416 283 43 - - 121 - 51,454 52,687
Transfers g3 - - - 1,183 - 163,025 - (154,208) -
Disposal HE = ) (239) (1,999) = = = = (2,310)
Exchange adjustments ErRE 467 33 76 84 28 3,096 - 8,465 12,249
At 31 December 2017and ~ RZZ—+%
1 January 2018 +ZA=+-Bk
—Z-)\£-f-H 9,743 1,085 1,388 1,333 7,210 214471 - 58,708 293,968
Additions RE = 8 43 25 1,965 390 7,187 14,491 24,099
Transfers g3 3% = = = = 70,851 = (71,246) =
Disposal HE - - - - (1,816) - - - (1,816)
Written off it = (558) 24 (7 = - - - (619)
Exchange differences EiEH (496) (30) (66) (68) 9 (10913) 10 (1,953) (13,507)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E
+-A=t+-AR 9,642 475 1,341 1,263 7,418 274,799 7,197 - 302,125
Accumulated depreciation  R3f i &
At 1 January 2017 RZE-+&-f-H 362 269 201 570 2,815 2,855 = = 7,072
Charge for the year FRRZ 346 203 298 340 1,557 3,621 - - 6,365
Eliminated on disposals R EEEHE - 43) (104) 870) = = = = (1,017)
Exchange adjustments ERHBZ 2 17 17 29 19 248 - - 357
At 31 December 2017and ~ HZT—+%F
1 January 2018 +-A=+-Ak
“5-\5-f-8 735 446 412 69 4,391 6,724 - - 12,777
Charge for the year ERREX 372 133 282 264 1354 11,025 60 = 13490
Eliminated on disposals R SR E - - - - (585) - - = (585)
Written off g8 = (195) (16) (25) - - - - (236)
Exchange differences EXLEE (55) (18) (30) (17) 13 (902) - - (1,009)
At 31 December 2018 R-E-)\F
+-A=t+-A 1,062 366 648 291 5178 16,847 60 - 24,437
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2018 RIE-N\E
+-A=t+-A 8,590 109 693 962 2,245 257,962 7,137 - 277,688
At 31 December 2017 RZF—t#
+-A=t-A 9,008 609 976 1,264 2,879 207,747 - 58,708 281,191
At 31 December 2018, none of the property, plant and RZE-—NEFE+ZA=1T—H TEYD

equipment (2017: HK$NIl) were pledged as security for the
Group’s bank loans as set out in note 33 to the consolidated

financial statements.
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21. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

The Group’s interests in prepaid land lease payments represent
prepaid operating lease payments and their net book values are

analysed as follows:

NE+-_HA=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

21. Lt EERHE

AREERBEN I HEENRZ ERIEE
&2 M E 5k K B B8R EFE 2 AT 40

T

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FAET

At 1 January n—H—H 1,768 1,711

Exchange adjustment P& H (90) 90
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TEf L FH & SRR 8

payments (39) (33)

At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 1,639 1,768

Current portion mENE S (33) (35)

Non-current portion ERBE D 1,606 1,733
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GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BERE K EEER A T

22. GOODWILL 22 FHE
HK$’000
FAT
Cost 2%

At 1 January 2017 RZE—+F—H—H 4,328
Exchange adjustment & 5 3E B 228

At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 RZZE—+tF+=ZA=+—HEK
—E-N\F—H—H 4,556

Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries W BE B B A B BF = A& (B 5E44(a))

(note 44(a)) 8,005
Exchange adjustment bE 5 3 & (233)
At 31 December 2018 WZE-—NF+ZH=+—H 12,328
Accumulated impairment iR E
At 1 January 2017 RZE—-—tF—H—H =
Exchange adjustment M 5, 8 =
At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 RZE—+F+_A=+—HEK

—E-N\F—H—H -
Impairment loss BEEE 8,005
At 31 December 2018 RZE-—NF+ZHA=+—H 8,005
Carrying values REE
At 31 December 2018 R-E-—NF+ZHA=+—H 4,323
At 31 December 2017 W_E—+F+_H=+—H 4,556

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 4 ## 169




170

n\l__]_\

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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BHE-T—

BB RN

22. GOODWILL (Continued)

(a)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED % BR &} Bg &

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated,
at acquisition, to the cash generating units (‘CGUs”) that
are expected to benefit from that business combination.
The carrying amount of goodwill (other than goodwill
relating to discontinued operations) had been allocated
to one individual cash-generating unit, i.e. the subsidiary,
Yichang Biaodian. The carrying amount of goodwill (other
than goodwill relating to discontinued operations) had
been allocated as follow:

22. & (&)

(@)

REBAHFHIREZHERNKE
BoRTHEABEEHEHPE
BmsREELBN(REELE
i) mEZEREE (EERIEE
BEBERZBERINESEE
*ﬂﬂﬂﬁ%?i%ﬁ(%%%”

EIRH) pHEZRAEE (R
E%tméiﬁﬁﬁZﬁ@ 25N
BB

2018 2017
—E-N\F —+t
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Yichang Biaodian — natural gas HEZH -~ KARTE
operations 4,323 4,556

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs have been
determined on the basis of their value in use using
discounted cash flow method. The key assumptions for
the discounted cash flow method are those regarding
the discount rates, growth rates and budgeted gross
margin and turnover during the period. The Group
estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the CGUs. The growth rates
are based on long-term average economic growth rate
of the geographical area in which the businesses of the
CGUs operate. Budgeted gross margin and turnover are
based on past practices and expectations on market
development.

B HRA A
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BHE-T—

BB MR

22. GOODWILL (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from
the most recent financial budgets approved by the
directors. Yichang Biaodian’s cash flows beyond the
5-year period are extrapolated using a steady 3%
(2017: 3%) growth rate. This growth rate is based on
the relevant industry growth forecasts and does not
exceed the average long-term growth rate for the relevant
industry in which Yichang Biaodian operates. Other key
assumptions for the value-in-use calculation relate to
the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include
budgeted sales and gross margin, such estimation is
based on Yichang Biaodian’s past performance and
management’s expectations for the market development.
Management believes that 1% decrease in growth rate
and 1% increase in discount rate would be the reasonably
possible change in respect of the sensitivity analysis of
the value-in-use calculation of the cash generating unit.
Where growth rate decreased by 1% or the discount
rate increased by 1%,
recognised for the assets that the CGU belongs (2017:
Nil).

no impairment loss would be

The rate used to discount the forecast cash flows from
the Group’s is 14.41% (2017: 16.67%).

Goodwill acquired during the year ended 31 December
2018 in a business combination was allocated, at
acquisition, to the CGU that was expected to be engaged
in the solar photovoltaic business. Due to the changes
in the policies of the state government on the scale of
construction of ordinary photovoltaic power stations, the
Group has revised its cash flow forecast for this CGU.
The CGU recoverable amount is nil and an impairment
loss of HK$8,005,000 was recognised on goodwill.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIRE R EE B R A 7

22. & (&)

(a)

(%)

AEBREESHEZETUS
BERARSRETEN EESIZHA
HBSFHZRERETIFEI®% (=
Tt F 3% )CBEEREE
HoZERERIBEMABITEER
FEAmME B THAEERMmLE
ZIHEBITEZ FHRAKGRE (F
AEBEFECEMERBR IR
IE%//|LA//}|LH1‘1ED+ ﬁ*ﬁfa ﬁﬁ
EREMNE  BEAMTIBRER
FRZATRAREEEYMS
BEZEHME -EEEMRE
ZESEXENFRAERTED
BEES MM BRETEKI%
RATIRE FF1%# &6 IR Al gL
B o (WG RE T A% sk IR =
EA1% BT ERBeELEN
FBEERRREEE (ZT—+
Ffm)o

ARFTBEAEERARASRE

ZHERBI4M% (B — L5
16.67% ) °
Hz-_Z2—-N\F+=-—A=1+—H

iifv%%ﬁAw¢W%Zﬁ§
F%%F“E%ﬁ%%%$k%

HREB RS ELEM - AR
l%ﬁfﬁ CRNXRBEBUMER
RBCHREE) AEECER %
ReELBEMMNRESRERN %
REeELBN A NEOSERT

I it 7 2 B R RN 16 /&5 188,005,000
BT e
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23. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

NE+-_HA=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

23. BEEE

Natural gas
Cost of supply
mobile exclusive
Car license application rights Total
REER AR
B BIAKE  BRUEE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TEX TET THT
(note (a)) (note (b)) (note (c))
(MizE()) (M&E(b) (M)
Cost 2%
At 1 January 2017 RZZE—+5—H—H 1,520 9,000 224,580 235,100
Exchange adjustments EHAE - - 11,820 11,820
At 31 December 2017 and R_E—+%F
1 January 2018 +ZA=+—-8k
“T-NF—-F—H 1,520 9,000 236,400 246,920
Impairment losses (note 17) REBE (HF17) = (9,000) = (9,000)
Exchange adjustments EHAE - - (12,076) (12,076)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F
+-A=+t—8© 1,520 — 224,324 225,844
Accumulated amortisation and ZEERAEE
impairment
At 1 January 2017 RZZE—+5—H—H = 2,100 6,238 8,338
Charge for the year FRHAX - 1,800 7,678 9,478
Exchange adjustments BHAE - - 202 202
At 31 December 2017 and RZE—+%F
1 January 2018 +ZA=+-HRK
—E-\¥—-HA—-H - 3,900 14,118 18,018
Charge for the year FRAX - 600 7,892 8,492
Impairment losses (note 17) BEBE (ME17) - (4,500) = (4,500)
Exchange adjustments B 5 32 - N (824) (824)
At 31 December 2018 AZE-N\&
+=A=+-H - - 21,186 21,186
Carrying values FHEE
At 31 December 2018 R-ZF—N\F
+-A=+—H 1,520 - 203,138 204,658
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—tfF
+-A=+—H 1,520 5,100 222,282 228,902
GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED (RERE M EB AR A 7 ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F
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AR R AL

—NE+=ZA=+—HIEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2018

23. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

24.

Notes:

(a)

Car license represented the China/Hong Kong cross border car
license acquired from an independent third party. The Directors
are of the opinion that the car license has an indefinite useful life
as the car license is transferrable and able to renew on an annual
basis with minimal cost and hence no amortisation is provided.
At the end of the reporting period, the car license is carried at
cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

The mobile application represents the web-based and mobile
application platform for customer’s design of garments. The
amount is fully impaired because the related business activities
discontinued during the year.

The natural gas supply exclusive rights arose from the Group’s
acquisition of Yichang Biaodian completed on 24 February 2016
and is amortised over the remaining years of the contractual
period of 30 years till the years ranging from 2041 to 2044.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

3. B EE (&)

W

(a)

ERERNABLIF =T REZHEE
RHEE-EERR ANEMRATEREK
BN A G FEE  EAEAF
HIRER - R I AR - R IRE

il R IR AR AR R R
ﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁﬂ%o

nBEAREXNEANEFRFREZ
WEERBERT S - ANEREEBR
FARIELES RZ2BREBEORE -

%%ﬂﬁ%{ﬁﬁﬁiﬁ$ﬁlﬂ_
E-RFE_A-THATKEBE
Bl YREE—ZN—FE— TEE
F B0 2 FIgh & KRR B 54 -

24. RB AR ZRE

2018 2017

—E-N\F —F—tF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FAT

Unlisted investment, at cost IELETIRE LA 5,569 5,862
Less: Impairment losses O EEE (5,569) (5,862)

The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-

free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED % ER & A& &

FEUL, (FERT) HIB A B IB R HERR -
%8 & B TE AR -

EHRA A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

24. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 24. AB AR ZIRE (£)

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2018 are as RZE-N\F+_A=+—HZHER

follows: RGBT :
Issued and Percentage of
Place of fully paid equity attributable
Name of subsidiary incorporation share capital to the Group Principal activities
2RTR
WEARERE Bl BRBRE AEBEERET AL TEER
2018 2017
“8-0\F -T—+f
DIGITALHONGKONG. COM INC. British Virgin Islands US$1 100% 100%  Inactive
HEELHS 1ET TEXH
Great China Inc. Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
ENERDA 0 18T RERKR
Digital Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Investment holding
YETBARERAR Bk 28T REZKR
Logo Plus Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 100% 100%  Provision of e-commerce
platform for design of
garments
Bt 1,0007% 7T BERRRHEETHE
Fa
DIGITAL COMMERCE LIMITED Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Investment holding
B 2B REZKR
Man Kong Trading Co. Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Bt 18T REZKR
BIEEER (RIDBBRRAE) PRC US$1,060,000 100% - Dormant
HE 1,060,000% 7T EEEL
Pickworth Limited Samoa US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
EES E REZR
Rich Ascent International Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Commodity trading
LERBRAERAA B 1B BHmE S
Calgary Investments Limited Samoa US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
EES E REZR
Global Billion Access Investments Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
BHERREFRAR KBRS EY REZR

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IR E R EE B R A F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

24. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 24. AMB AR Z2RE (£)

Issued and Percentage of
Place of fully paid equity attributable
Name of subsidiary incorporation share capital to the Group Principal activities
2RITR
WEAR AR AR L B HMERK rEEEERERAL TEEH
2018 2017
ZB-N\F _—T—+F
Hong Kong Global Billion Access Investments ~ Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited
BERRERKRERR B 18T REZKR
BIERE S ORI BERAF() PRC RMB 100% 100%  Investment holding
(Global Billion Trading (Shenzhen) 14,000,000
Limited ("))
h AR REZR
14,000,0007¢
FITIRKEEREERERAR() (MiZb) PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100%  Inactive and not yet
(Shenzhen Global Billion Access Investment commenced in
Management Company Limited (**)) (note b) business
e AR WEER R AR E
1,000,0007C
HEM ?Hi%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ@ PRC RMB 49% 49%  Natural gas operations
(i HRARFA 75 28 () 30,000,000
(12 T“ A)) (Msta)
(Yichang Biaodian Natural Gas Utilization Co.,
Ltd.) (Formerly known as Yichang Zhongyou
Natural Gas Utilization Co., Ltd(**) (“Yichang
Biaodian” (note a))
H AR RARER
30,000,0007T
Bright Able Century Limited British Virgin Islands USs$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
RREREHS EY REZKR
Smart Target Billion Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
ERERRAR BiE 18T REZKR
King Sailing International Limited British Virgin Islands USs$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
FRERER AR RREREHS EY REZKR

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED % ER & A& &

EHRA A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

24. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 24. AB AR ZIRE (£)

Issued and Percentage of
Place of fully paid equity attributable

Name of subsidiary incorporation share capital to the Group Principal activities

2RTR

WEARER Bl HRBRA AEEEEREED N TEEH

2018 2017
“Z-0\§ —Z—t%

Hong Kong King Sailing Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Inactive and not yet
commenced in
business

ERTMAERLAR 0 18T WEEBERHAFAEER

TR ORI BR DB ([Fheek]) PRC HK$ 100% 100%  Design and construction

(Dihang Energy (Shenzhen) 10,000,000 of new energy power
Company Limited (**))(*Dihang Energy”) generation equipment,

energy storage
systems and power
equipment, technology
development,
technical services and
technology transfer
e 10,000,0007% 7T FEtREENEREER
B RREERSRE
NEE BRRE &

i PR 75 T By 8 7%
R RREERIHAERERAF( PRC RMB 100% - Commodity trading
(TR R ae ) 25,000,0007T
(Shenzhen Energynt Co. Ltd. (™)
(“Shenzhen Energynt”)
H ARE BHmE 5
25,000,0007T
ZRZREERTERERAA() PRC RMB 100% - Investment holding
(Anhui Anjie Nengte New Energy 10,000,0007T
Company Limited (**))
# AR REZR
10,000,0007T
BNERFERERNEERARN PRC RMB 100% - Dormant
(Cangzhou Anjie New Energy 2,000,000
Technology Company Limited (**))
# AR EEER
2,000,0007T

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED RIRE M EEH R A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

24. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 24. AMB AR Z2RE (£)

Issued and Percentage of
Place of fully paid equity attributable
Name of subsidiary incorporation share capital to the Group Principal activities
2RITR
WEAR AR LR AR 2 it B HRBRA AEEEEREED L TEEH
2018 2017
“B-Nf -—T-+iF
BHAEBARBBEERDA() PRC RMB 100% - Dormant
(Guanxian Nengte Photovoltaic 2,000,000
Technology Company Limited(**))
i ARE EEXL
2,000,0007T
LEREERESERAA( PRC RMB 100% - Not yet commenced
30,000,000 business
e AR EENEIEESS
30,000,0007T
MIBEEZEEREERAR() ([HI%E]) PRC RMB 100% - Commodity trading
(Zhejiang Free Trade Zone Anzhu 30,000,000
Energy Co., Ltd () (“Zhejiang Anzhu”)
HE ARE HmE S
30,000,0007T
Charmland Treasure Limited Seychelles US$100 60% 100%  Investment holding
ZE58 100% 7T REZER
Hong Kong Sunrise Electrical Technology Hong Kong HK$10,000 60% 100%  Investment holding
Limited (Not yet commenced
business)
BELAENRRABRDA BB 10,000/ 7T REZR
(HAFRER)
Eternal Goal Limited Seychelles Us$100 60% 100%  Investment holding
EETR 100% 7T REZR
Hong Kong Eternal Goal Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 60% 100%  Investment holding
005 10,000 7T REZR
Heroic Sunshine Limited Seychelles Us$100 60% 100%  Investment holding
EER 100% 7T REER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

24. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 24. AB AR ZIRE (£)

Issued and Percentage of
Place of fully paid equity attributable
Name of subsidiary incorporation share capital to the Group Principal activities
2RTR
WEARER Bl HRBRA AEEEEREED N TEEH
2018 2017
“Z-0\§ —Z—t%
Hong Kong Central Environmental Hong Kong HK$10,000 60% - Investment holding
Technology Limited
EERBRENRBRAA BiE 10,000/ 7T REZKR
RERERE (LB)BRAA() PRC RMB 60% - Leasing business of the
10,000,000 steel support axial
force servo system
e ARE WX BEHNRBREREE
10,000,0007¢ %
AP (LB)BERERAF( PRC RMB 60% - Not yet commenced
30,000,000 business
H AR CENEIEE S
30,000,0007T
RE(MIEBR)&REERAR() PRC RMB 60% - Not yet commenced
30,000,000 business
H AR CENGIEE 37
30,000,0007T
Billion Champion Business Limited British Virgin Islands Us$10 100% - Investment holding
KZEHEBR AT RERTEHS 10% 7T REZR
Billion Champion (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
(Formerly known as Hong Kong Heroic
Sunshine Limited)
Kz (BE)BERRA 0 10,000/ 7T REZR
(B7F8Hong Kong Heroic Sunshine Limited )
East Perfection Development Limited British Virgin Islands Us$10 100% - Investment holding
REEREBAA ARERES 10%7T REZR
East Perfection (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
(Formally known as Hong Kong
Charmland Treasure Limited)
REER (FB)BRDA Bk 10,000/ 7T REZR
(FI1#8Hong Kong Charmland Treasure
Limited )
GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIRE R EEE AR AT  ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F#§
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BE2_ZT—N\F+_-_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

24. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continuead)

Note:

(a)

Yichang Biaodian is a subsidiary at the Group even though the
Group has only 49% ownership interest in Yichang Biaodian.

The Group has held 49% equity interest in Yichang Biaodian
since 24 February 2016 and SHiLIZHKARABR A A (Hubei
Biaodian Natural Gas Co., Ltd. **) (“Hubei Biaodian”) and Mr. Li
Wanging (collectively the “Non-controlling Shareholders”), both
were independent third parties to the Group, owned 41% and
10% equity interest in Yichang Biaodian, respectively.

The Directors, with the assistance of the legal counsel in the
PRC, assessed whether or not the Group has control over
Yichang Biaodian based on whether the Group has the practical
ability to direct the relevant activities at Yichang Biaodian
unilaterally. In making their judgement, the Directors considered
the Group’s power to affect the Board of Directors (the “BOD”)
of Yichang Biaodian. The BOD of Yichang Biaodian, responsible
for all relevant activities at Yichang Biaodian, consisted of
6 directors, of which 3 were appointed by the Group while
the other 3 directors were appointed by the Non-controlling
Shareholders. BOD resolutions of Yichang Biaodian were
reached by simple majority. In accordance with the terms of a
further shareholders’ agreement entered into between the Group
and the Non-controlling Shareholders, in any events where the
Group and the Non-controlling Shareholders have diversed
views in the BOD meetings, the Group, as the single largest
shareholder of Yichang Biaodian, has the power to make the final
decision.

After assessment, the Directors concluded that the Group has
a sufficiently dominant voting interest to direct the relevant
activities of Yichang Biaodian and therefore the Group has
control over Yichang Biaodian.

The subsidiary was deregistered during the year.

* These subsidiaries are incorporated in the PRC and are
limited liability companies.

*k

English name is for identification purpose only.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BERE K EEER A T

24. RfB AR ZRE (#)

W

(a)

BEAEEEHEAES TR Z240%%
B MEERASAKEZHER
Al e

AEFBE-_Z—AF_A-_tHAR
BB SR MA0% MM - MHILIZERR
ARRERAR ([HLZER]) RFEF
Soik (R [3ERRR]) (BAAE
BrBUE=F)0RERESZEHRZ
41% K% 10% A% ©

EEETRENEZBERNMET - Rig
AEBERTHEAERENETHIETR
HERHNAREBFEAKRERE
ZHEERM L AR ERE
ERAKEGEERERESE ([RE
=X EH - HERHZESS
EEHSRHENMEREEE KEE
BARELES ER=RHAEEEE
MBI =BEFA R IR REE -
HERHZEFERBRRAMEKRS
HEIRTE o 1RIR AN 5 B B IF R AR AR AT
STHYHE — PR R Z 165K MR E
Fgewt AKRBHEIFFZERERED
RAER MAREELRESRMNE—
RABRRABIEHRERE -

REFhE EFREAEEREERSD
TENKRERETEESRANBRE
B FHt NEEHEEEESRMEZES
o

% M8 & B F ABUH R -

- ZEMB AR EEMK
ZEREERA -
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—NE+ZA=+—HIEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2018

@K

24. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continuead)

Note: (Continued)

(d)

The following table shows information on the subsidiaries that (d)
have non-controlling interests (“NCI”) material to the Group. The
summarised financial information represents amounts before

inter-company eliminations.

Name

Principal place of business/
country of incorporation

% of ownership interests/
voting rights held by NCI

At 31 December:
Non-current assets
Current assets
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

Net assets

Accumulated NCI

Year ended 31 December:
Revenue

(Loss)/profit

Total comprehensive income
Loss allocated to NCI
Dividends paid to NCI

Net cash (used in)/generated from
operating activities

Net cash used in investing activities

Net cash generated from financing
activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED % BR &} Bg &

4

TELENY,/
A B R

#Fk% %ﬁzwﬁ@% 5/
REE

R+=A=+-8:
FrBBE
RBEE

Ik NN
hEBaE
BEZFE

2T IR 25

HETZA=t-BLEE:
Yoz

(BR) /&
PHYEAR
ARTEERES ZER
BRFERERE N ZRE

me%® (FR) /i
BeFH

REZDMAR S FE

BEEDMBHLRE

ReRREEREM/
(B) %8

B HRA A

24. RMBRARIZRE (&)

Mz (4&)

TRERABHASEMEBERZ
FEfE R (IR ER ) 2B A
BZEM BZ2UBHBEMBNARRER

AT SRR -
Yichang Biaodian Heroic Sunshine Limited
HERHA
2018 2017 2018 2017
=®-\F Tt Z®-\F  —T-tF
PRC/PRC PRC/Seychelles
HE/ HE TE/EEH

51%/50% 51%/50% 40%/40% 0%/0%
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
T TET TR TR
470,462 498,970 7,137 N/A T8
11,064 8,741 6,606 N/A i
(122,757) (235,875) - N/A TR
(176,751) (49,380) (12,023) N/A i
182,018 222,456 1,720 N/A i
92,829 113,453 688 N/A i
42,147 7,906 2,322 N/A i
(36,334) (13,281) 1,761 N/A T E A
(42,442) (2,912) 1,761 N/A i
(18,530) (6,773) (705) N/A T E A
- - - N/A T E A
(940) 22,017 (4,581) N/A i A
(473) (33,134) (7,187) N/A i
1,933 10,866 12,159 N/A i
520 (251) 391 N/A T A
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BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018
25. INVENTORIES 25. #E
2018 2017
—E-N\#F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F&T TET
Finished goods 25K 492 321
26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 26. BIWE 5 R H AR
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F&T FABTT
Non-current asset kRBEE
Deposits & 37 =
Current assets REBEE
Trade receivables (note) FEWE 5 BR K (B EE) 2,871 12
Deposits Be 826 503
Prepayments TEf IR 7,612 1,094
Others HAh 353 224
8,791 1,821
11,662 1,833

Note:

Generally there is no credit period for customers of sales of natural
gas as the customers need to prepay before the usage of the natural
gas. For a few specific customers they can use the gas on credit and
the Group allows an average credit period of 60 days (2017: Nil). The
Group recognises revenue for natural gas pipeline installation service
when the installation is completed and the Group allows an average
credit period of 30 days (2017: 30 days) upon completion. For trading
of copper, deposits are usually required and the remaining balance is
usually receivable approximately within 180 days (2017: 10 days) upon
completion of the transaction. For leasing business, the Group allows
an average credit period of 30 days (2017: 30 days) upon recognition.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED Iz BR & B

B & -

HEXARBLPBEUTERBEESR R
AASFERERRARMELEN K-S
B AEERFAERARRRARZEERP M
AEBEATR (ZE—+F &E)2F
EEH AEEARTEEKEBRRAR
TETERG WG BEAEEATFREK
%HF308 (ZE—tF:308) FHEEEH-

REBNME BERCEEES HBEEE
MR PTERELI180B (ZE—tF:108)
RIRER - R E XIS AEE AT RER

%308 (ZZ— % :308) 2 FHEEH-

:\} nuk

SEERAF ANNUAL REPORT 2018 4 i

181




182

e PR mRME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

The ageing analysis of trade receivables at the end of the
reporting period based on the invoice date is as follows:

26. B E 57 & H Bk K (4

RBERTERBRBEERAP2IIZE
WEZERERDTOT

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$’000

TERT FAET

0 to 30 days 0Z30H 2,718 -
31 to 60 days 31E60H 1 -
61 to 90 days 61290H 4 12
91 to 180 days 912180H 135 -
Over 180 days Hi#®180H 13 -
2,871 12

Before accepting any new customer, the Group’s finance
and sales management team would assess the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by customer.
Limits attributable to customers are reviewed regularly with
reference to past settlement history. The Group’s finance and
sales management team considers trade receivables that are
neither past due nor impaired to be of good credit quality as

continuous repayments have been received.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables is

denominated in RMB.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED % Bk B} Bg &

TEEMITAIE A RSB &HE
EEEERETMEERFZERE
X UEFTRFZEEBR -BFZEE
HeL2ERTARLHMEHETE
Bo-AEBPBRHEEEREKRA
FA A BE 15 48 UK BRUE 3K - BRFT B BR 5k i P
W*ﬁ@Z@W%%%ﬂEEEﬁEA
Ear

AEERKEZFERREEAARE
FHE -
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BE2_ZT—N\F+_-_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

27. LOAN RECEIVABLES 27. EWERK

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
loan receivables so as to minimise credit risk. The granting
of loans is subject to approval by the management, whilst
overdue balances are reviewed regularly by the management.
Loan receivables are charged on effective interest rate mutually
agreed with the contracting parties, at a fixed rate ranging from
0% to 12% (2017: 0%) per annum.

The loan receivables are unsecured (2017: unsecured). The
borrowers are obliged to settle the amounts according to the
terms set out in the relevant agreements.

ANEE S SR B R ER E WE SR
BREZE UREREEERR KD
BERALEEEMNE MOBEHRHBEE
BETHEN BREFZEHNSHHE
EHENERME REEFMNENTF
0%ZE12% (ZE—+HF:0% )5t &

RUEEFRREEAR (-5 8E
) - ERABREETRREBEHEE
ZIERENEE-

The maturity profile of loan receivables at the end of the RS B T4 I 2 B E R EI BB R an
reporting period is as follows: ™~

2018 2017

—E-N\F —F—L£F

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FHET FE T

Neither past due nor impaired BE 7R %80 B On oK R (B 29,504 720

Receivables which were neither past due nor impaired related
to a number of borrowers for whom there was no recent history
of default. The directors are of the opinion that no provision for
impairment is necessary in respect of loan to third parties as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIRE R EE B R A 7

SEARBEIRBIE 2 RUGRIRE Z 2 I
BB R ZERANERE - ARG
EEXUEBRELY REHRDEE /A
2EWE - MEERR BEARRTSE
=HZERERRERRE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

28. BOND RECEIVABLES

28. EWEF

2018 2017
—E-N\E —ET—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&T FAET
Unlisted debt instruments, —EEmARETZ
at amortised cost, issued by FEEMEBHBLA:
a listed company TSP AR 6,000 =
Accrued interest receivables JE T FE WL FI B, 61 =
6,061 -
Unlisted debt instruments, —HERARBETZ
at amortised cost, issued by JEEMEBLIA:
a private company B 7,000 -
Accrued interest receivables JE 5T e W T 2, 64 -
7,064 -
13,125 -
On 19 October 2018, 29 November 2018 and 13 December RZZE-NF+A+AB - ZFT-—N

2018, the Group and the Company subscribed bonds from
a listed company with principal amount of HK$2,000,000,
HK$1,000,000 and HK$3,000,000 respectively. The bonds
are unsecured and interest-bearing at fixed rates of 10% per
annum. The carrying amount of HK$2,037,000, HK$1,009,000
and HK$3,015,000 (2017: Nil) will be receivable on 25 January
2019, 1 March 2019 and 13 March 2019 respectively. The
bonds can be redeemed by the bond issuer at 100% of the
outstanding principal amount, together with accrued interest up

to settlement date.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BEEMEBER A T

i‘f‘—ﬂf‘f’ﬂlﬂ&f‘é—/\i‘f‘:
B+=R AEERARADFIE—
B £ A AR E AR ¢ % &2,000,000
% 7T+ 1,000,000/ 7T, % 3,000,000/ 7T
MEH -BEHAEERF WIRETFF
E10%5r 2 ° BRE {E2,037,0007% 7T
1,009,000/ 7T 3,015,000 L (= Z
—tF E)BINR T —NF—A
—+ARA - ZE—-NAF=A—BRK=Z
—NE=ZA+T=-HER-EFIJHES
BITARMAREEARSTE Z100%E
EEGERAHEG M EER
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BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018
28. BOND RECEIVABLES (continued) 28. EWES (#)
On 4 November 2018, the Group and the Company subscribed RZZE-NFE+—AEOA AEEK

29.

bonds from a private company with a principal amount of
HK$7,000,000. The bonds are unsecured and interest-bearing
at fixed rates of 12% per annum. The carrying amount of
HK$7,064,000 (2017: Nil) will be receivable on 3 May 2019.
The bonds can be redeemed by the bond issuer at 100%
of the outstanding principal amount, together with accrued
interest up to settlement date.

The average interest rates at 31 December were as follows:

AARA—HLARRRBEACTEA
7,000,000 T EH - EH B EK
| WIRE EF A E12% B - FEE
7,064,000 T (ZF — £ F: &) R
—NFRA=ZHER -EHAHAE
HFBITARHAREERSTE 2100%:E
REZAEABE 2 F S EE -

Wt=A=+—BZ FHREMT

2018 2017
—E-N\F —+F
% %
Unlisted debt instruments issued —ELEmARIETZ
by a listed company JEEMEBEBHBLA 10 N/A T~ iE
Unlisted debt instruments issued —BRARTETZ
by a private company FEMEBILA 12 N/A 7@
BANK AND CASH BALANCES 29, SRITRIRES&ER
As at 31 December 2018, the bank and cash balances of RZE-—NF+_A=+—H K&

the Group denominated in RMB was HK$1,077,000 (2017:
HK$87,000). Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is
subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED % ER & A& &

ERAREFABEIZRITIERRSERR
1,077,000/ 7t (=& —+ 4 : 87,000
TT) o AR N R SN 78 38 7 A B Ah
MEE RGO RGEE  EERFEER
FRE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 30. ERNE S RHEAMEBER
2018 2017
—2-N\E —EFLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&T FAET
Trade payables (note (a)) FEAE SRR (@) 28 52
Payable for construction in progress £ & T2 FE{f BR 7% 31,637 35,334
Receipt in advance T8 Y sk 18 2,852 1,403
Other payables and accruals (note (b)) FEH E AR K Bt & A
(M 5E (D)) 13,257 11,980
47,774 48,769
Notes: B 5
(a)  Trade payables (@ ENESER

Generally, there is no credit period for suppliers of natural gas as
the Group need to prepay before the purchase of the natural gas.
For liquefied natural gas. The credit period granted by supplier to
the Group was 30 days (2017: Nil). For other business, the credit
period granted by supplier to the Group ranged from 30 to 180
days (2017: 30 to 60 days).

The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on date of receipt
of goods, is as follows:

—RmE AARHERTERLEE
H RRARNEEENBERARAE
ENK BB RARMS  HEEE
FAREENEEH AR (ZT—+
FofE) REMEBM S  HEMR
FTAEENEEHN FI0E180R (=
T—+ 4 :30%60H) °

REBEWDREMBHZINENE S
HEREEDTANT

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHERT FAEIT

0 to 30 days 0Z30H 13 52
Over 30 days B iB30H 15 -
28 52
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (cContinued)

31.

Notes: (Continued)

(@)

Trade payables (Continued)

The trade payables are non-interest bearing and normally settled
on 30 to 60 days terms.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are
denominated in the following currencies:

30. ENEZREMERF (&)

fisE: (&)

(a)

ENE SN (&)

BN E S ERATH B RBTEERI
Z60H HRE AE T -

AEBERNESERFZEREETIAT
FIE R FHE |

2018 2017
—EB-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET THET
HK$ BT 15 52
RMB AR 13 =
28 52
Other payables and accruals b) EREGERREER

The amount represented mainly by accrued charges and
temporary short-term advances for Yichang Biaodian’s
development from independent third parties which are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

DUE TO DIRECTORS

The amounts due from/to directors are unsecured, interest-free

and repayable on demand.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED 3RERE M E@B AR A 5

ZeRITER/NESRHZERRA
BYE=NRAERRERHEHNR
FOHEASEEW REREBRERME

IR ©

31. ENEERIA

Y ENERRBEYREET 28
KZARBREERE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

32. NON-CONVERTIBLE BONDS

32. T AR E 3

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Non-convertible bonds TR EFH 12,747 -
Analysed as: DT

Current liabilities mENBE 9,747 -

Non-current liabilities FRBEE 3,000 =

12,747 -

From 18 October 2018 to 9 November 2018, the Group and RZE—NEF+A+NBE=ZZ—N

the Company issued fixed rate non-convertible bonds with total
principal amount of HK$9,500,000 (2017: Nil) to independent
third parties. The non-convertible bonds are unsecured and
interest-bearing at fixed rates ranging from 12% to 14% per
annum and the carrying amount of HK$9,715,000 (2017: Nil)
will be repayable on dates ranging from 17 October 2019 to 8
November 2019.

On 29 November 2018, the Group and the Company issued
fixed rate non-convertible bonds with principal amount of
HK$3,000,000 (2017: Nil) to an independent third party. The
non-convertible bonds are interest-bearing at fixed rate of 12%
per annum and the carrying amount of HK$3,033,000 (2017:
Nil) will be repayable on 28 November 2020. The bonds were
unconditionally and irrevocably secured by personal guarantee
provided by a director of the Group and the Company.

F+—ANB AEEBHERQFERE
SE = 75T AR % #%859,500,00078
T(ZE—+t&F : E\)2EEMETT
BRES - AR ES AERFLIR
NFEF12%Z14% 2 EEF KRS
BRM{E 49,715,000/ T (T —t4F:
/) ERN TS —hhF+A++tH
EZE-NFT+—ANBZBHEE-

R-_ZE—N\F+—A=-+thB X&HE
HARBBERABILE=FEITASE
753,000,000 7T (Z B —+F |) 2
B E AR R ES - T RKRE S
REF12% 2 BT F LB vﬁﬁﬁ@tﬁ
3,083,000 L (ZE—+F: %) &
R_E_Z=F+—A=-+ N \HEE- 1a
FHASEERARRESRHEZEAALE
TREAR M RN AT RS R 4 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

32.

33.

NON-CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continuea)

The carrying amounts of the non-convertible bonds issued
approximate their fair values. The non-convertible bonds can
be redeemed by the bond issuer at 100% of the outstanding
principal amount, together with accrued interest up to mature
date.

Non-convertible bonds issued at fixed interest rates expose the
Group to fair value interest rate risk.

The average interest rates at 31 December were as follows:

32. ~OEARES (&)

BRIz BREFZE@REEEN
TEEE BHERITAURKREERS
FI100%:EREEE A BT 2 5 B HE
Bl 7~ Al AR (& 5 o

BEENRBETZAABMBRESFSAE
= [ B 2 S E N X E R

R+ A=+—BZFEFERMT:

2018 2017

=F St —E—t%

% %

Non-convertible bonds TR &S 12 - 14 N/A 738 A
BANK BORROWINGS 33. RITEE

2018 2017

—E-N\EF —E—+tF

HK$’000 HK$’000

THExT FHET

Bank borrowings (note (a)) |ITEE (Hia) 19,358 6,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

33. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 33. RITHEE (2)
The bank borrowings are repayable as follows: RITEEARATHAEE:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Within one year —FR 2,277 2,400
More than one year, but not —FE P HETBBARE
exceeding two years 2,278 3,600
More than two years, but not MEN EERNBBAF
more than five years 14,803 -
More than five years BB AF - _
17,081 3,600
19,358 6,000
Portion of bank loans that are due 7B —F & EE MK A
for repayment after one year BEREEZIERZ
but contain a repayment on RITEBEEHXD
demand clause (shown under (REBBEETIT)
current liabilities) - =
Less: Amount due for settlement B ZBR1218 A RIEE 2 58
within 12 months (shown (REBBEHETITR)
under current liabilities) (2,277) (2,400)
Amount due for settlement after A28 A 18518 2 5/ I8
12 months 17,081 3,600
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

33. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 33. fE?ﬁ'

Notes: B 5 -

(@)  The bank borrowings are secured by several properties owned (a)

by non-controlling interests of Yichang Biaodian, including
Mr. Xiong Songgan (“Mr. Xiong”), Mr. Yan Jun (“Mr. Yan”) and
his wife, and certain companies held and controlled by Mr.
Xiong. The bank borrowings are also jointly guaranteed by
non-controlling interests of Yichang Biaodian, including Hubei
Biaodian, Mr. Xiong and his wife, Mr. Yan and his wife and Mr. Li
Wangqing (as defined in note 24(a)).

(o)  The amounts are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in (o)
the respective loan agreements.

B8 #)

RITEEAESRAFERER (8
RSB ([RREA]) - BRIBEAE
(TBREEDRERBIEAEZETY
EARBEREERERENETAAF
TEHRR - RITIE B TRl B SR 2 JF %
et (BIEBHILRM  RRELERER
B BELERERBUARTERERE)
HRER (Ex LM FE24()) °

ZESRBIHER S BRI AE A

The carrying amount of the Group’s bank borrowing balance is AEEZRITEBEELASREEBENRAR
denominated in RMB. WEHE -
The effective interest rate of the Group’s interest-bearing AEBGFEEENERMELT

borrowings is as follows:

2018 2017

—E-N\#F —E—tF

% %

Variable-rate borrowings FEREEER 8.01 8.01

The Group had variable rate borrowings which carried interest REEREBIZHFNEEE RREAFE

based on the benchmark interest rate issued by the People’s A B AR B A RIRTT 3 M o H A F =X
Bank of China during the both years, thus exposing the Group FECEM AEEEERAESRERN X

to cash flow interest rate risk. [ Bz o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE_ZTZ— N \F+_-_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

34.

35.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BEEMEBER A T

ADVANCE RECEIPT 34. AW KIE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F&T FHET
Capital contribution received FEYOEE
in advance 153,377 -
Pursuant to the agreements between the shareholders of BEEEEHRREETEYE=2
Yichang Biaodian and certain independent third parties, new W REBIYE=ZABEIATER
capital will be introduced from these independent third parties WA AEEZEH 2 FEERRE T8
and accordingly become non-controlling shareholders of WHIEERZEBYEZABREAZ
Yichang Biaodian. Advance receipt represents the amount of RE-RMEBHE  ZERERET
the capital received in advance from these independent third BARATEKEERATEEZAZERN-
parties. Subsequent to the reporting date, these amounts were
recognised as capital of Yichang Biaodian after the completion
of the issue of capital.
AMOUNTS DUE TO A SHAREHOLDER OF  35. FE{Y A& QX B R R KIE
THE COMPANY
Non-trade related balance FE ZHBEE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —FtF
HK$’000 HK$’000
Name & FHExT FHT
Mr. Weng el e - 25,355

Mr. Weng was a former executive director and was a
substantial shareholder under the definition of the Listing Rules.

Amount as at 31 December 2017 represented advances from
Mr. Weng to the Group. Such amount was unsecured, interest-
free and with a maturity period of 2 years. This amount was
fully repaid during the year upon the resignation of Mr. Weng
from the Group.

HEERAMATEERTIERR (E&
R ETHRA) -

R-E—tF+-A=1+—HZFERE
SEEARNEEER - FRSESER
B REBERMEAINHR 2 BRF
AHEERERNRELEHEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

36. AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING 36.

SHAREHOLDERS OF A SUBSIDIARY AND
ITS RELATED PARTIES

Particulars of the amounts due to non-controlling shareholders
of a subsidiary and its related parties of which are non-trade
related are as follows.

BN—EHRE AR ZFERKR
REHBER A

e — M B AR 2 SR AR L E
BRZHRESGHEREFBET

Name Relationship 2018 2017
wE BB 2EES —E-N\F —ZT—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHAT
Hubei Biaodian and its subsidiary note (a) 20,397 134,939
IR R H B A A Bt 5 (a)
Mr. Xiong and his controlled entities note (b) 19,253 41,765
AR AEREEGIER Bt 5% (b)
39,650 176,704
Notes: B -

(@) Hubei Biaodian is the 41% non-controlling shareholder of
Yichang Biaodian.

(b)  Mr. Xiong is the controlling shareholder of Hubei Biaodian.

Amounts due to Hubei Biaodian and Mr. Xiong represented
advances for Yichang Biaodian’s capital expenditure purposes.
They are not repayable within 12 months from the date of this
report. These balances are unsecured and interest free. These
amounts are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, with an effective interest rate of 10%.

(@) MILBHRESEFESBZHAN%KREZ
FEFRRRAR R -

(b) RRSEAERMAILIRI Z AR -

AR EREREEZ RASARE
ERAEEARMX 28R - BRAHKIAHRE
RAHEBHEF12EARNEE -ZF
HHRSEEANEE REEHEKRAE
WA ORI B AT & BERAERS
10% °
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BE_ZTZ— N \F+_-_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

37. CONVERTIBLE BOND DESIGNATED AT 37. EEZE AT EF ARz 2

194

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BEEMEBER A T

FVTPL

During the year, the Group issued a convertible bond with
principal value of HK$20,000,000 with interest of 10% per
annum. The bond matures two years from the date of issue
of bond at their principal value or can be converted into
ordinary shares at the holder’s option at rate of HK$0.54 per
conversion share. The maximum number of ordinary shares
to be converted is 37,037,037 shares and none of them was
converted up to 31 December 2018.

The entire convertible bond is designated as a financial liability
through profit or loss and classified as non-current liability as at
31 December 2018.

The Group’s convertible bond is valued by an independent
valuer by using binomial model with the following key
assumptions:

REz

RAFERN AEEBZETEALE
20,000,000/ JT & F F| E10%5T 8 2 7]
BRBRES -BFEREASERITAE
BETMEREH KA HBEEARERS
A& IR AR 17 0.5478 7T 2 BAR B R il
B-BEz_T—N\FE+=-A=+—8"
B % A 883 5, 37,037,037 /% L @AY - #E
mESDEER

R-_ZE—NF+_A=+—H &7
BREFETATABEZEHBET
BHEARBAEE-

AR B 2 AR 5 B B N B R E
“HEABBETEE ETERZER
RRWAT:

Convertible Bond AR E S

4 June 2018

(date of
initial 31 December
recognition) 2018

—B-NF
AAMmA —E-N\E
(MwmERAH) +=BA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAT
Share price of the Company 7NN & HK$0.46 77T HK$0.48 78 7T
Conversion price B E HK$0.54 77T HK$0.54 &7t
Expected volatility T8 HR R 1@ 54.27% 49.95%
Time to maturity 21| HA 55 i 2 years &F 1.43 years
Risk-free rate i [ b A X 1.84% 1.75%
Dividend yield g B e & 0.00% 0.00%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

37. CONVERTIBLE BOND DESIGNATED AT
FVTPL (continuead)

Convertible Bond (Continued)

The significant unobservable input in the fair value
measurement is expected volatility. As at 31 December 2018,
it is estimated that with all other variables held constant, an
increase/decrease in the expected volatility by 5% would
have increased/decreased the Group’s loss by HK$362,000/
HK$364,000.

The directors estimate the fair value of the convertible
bond designated at FVTPL at 31 December 2018 to be
approximately HK$24,186,000.

The movements of the components of the convertible bond are

37. EERAVFEFARBE Z A

RES &)
TR ES (F)

ATEFEAFRACZEATAHRY
ANBARATEBHEE R —N\F+=A
=+—H EHMEEMTEEEgS
& JEHKE LT PR K5%TE H
SAEEEBIBE M, 362,000 7T
/364,000 7T °

R KRB NETZA=+—
F#E A T EA A B2 TRRES
Z NFER K 724,186,000/ TT ©

AR E S 2 AR E D # BT

as follows:
Convertible
Bond
CIE- Y g ¢
HK$’000
FATT
Balance at 1 January 2018 RZZE-—NF-—HA—B2z&E&H -
Proceeds from convertible bond Al R E S AT 18 20,000
Loss arising on change of fair value NEEEHELE CEE 5,274
Fair value of convertible bond at date of issue RETHHZAIBREBRES A FE 25,274
Gain arising on change of fair value NEEFEHEE 2 W (1,088)
Balance at 31 December 2018 RZBE—NF+_A=+—B2&% 24,186

Note: The number of share and share price have been adjusted
pursuant to the share consolidation effective on 19 November
2018.

fist: BROBERBRODERERENR-F
—NF+—ATNABERZRGHE G

D
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BHE-T—

NE+-_HA=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

38. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 38. ELEHIEAE
The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised INTARAFERTFBRANEEZR
and movements thereon during the current and prior years: HEaGERERBEES:
Revaluation of
assets
BEEEM
HK$’000
FH T
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+F—H—H 54,585
Exchange differences N ZER 2,906
Credited to profit or loss (note 13) sTABE (H3E13) (1,920)
At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 RZZE—+F+ZA=+—HEK
—N\F—H—H 55,571
Exchange differences E R =% (2,916)
Credited to profit or loss (note 13) s AEE (HEE13) (1,973)
At 31 December 2018 R_ZE-N\F+ZA=+—H 50,682

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused tax
losses of HK$205,884,000 (2017: HK$167,160,000) available
to offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has

been recognised in respect of such tax losses due to the

unpredictability of future profit streams. The unrecognised
tax losses of HK$178,314,000 (2017: HK$152,522,000) can
be carried forward infinitively. The remaining HK$27,570,000
(2017: HK$14,638,000) related to tax losses in the PRC which

will expire in one to five years.

No provision for deferred taxation has been made for other

temporary differences as the effect is not material.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED I 3R & B

SEBRAF

RS ER  AEERSHZHE
&5 18 #) /205,884,000 7T (=& —+
167,160,000/ 7T ) » 7] LK 38 K 5
i Al o R BETE ORI R R 2% 1B R
WUWESE AR EEERERELEREE
EE o RTEFR T IAE518178,314,000/% 7T
— T — 4 152,522,000/ 7T ) 7] £
fREFAE®E - 2 T 227,570,000 7T (=
T — 4 : 14,638,000/ 7T ) £2 A B B
EEEEH EHR—EZRFANEM-

HRPEEY YEAEBEREER
TEHIR TR TR B
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BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

39. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 39. RKEREE

The Group enrolled all eligible employees in Hong Kong into a
mandatory provident fund (the “MPF”) scheme. The retirement
benefit cost for the MPF scheme charged to profit or loss
represents contributions to the MPF scheme by the Group at
rates specified in the rules of the MPF scheme.

The employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of
the state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the
PRC government. The Group is required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll to the retirement benefits scheme to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, retirement benefits
scheme contributions paid amounted to approximately
HK$286,000 (2017: HK$88,000).

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BERE K EEER A T

AEBRZFRNBEEZMECEREERES
s RES ([8ES]) T8 - 8E
Tt & Z BRIREA A - BN B 1258
REraRAMEELR ZHR BER
IBEEER -

RN B AR EE ST BB RN
BRERERAKBHFEZKE - AEE
AR —EBADLMEER TEMZRKE
MEBIHR UnEiBENEe A&
BEBZERKEMNFE ZHE—BERR
BT ElEH B EHR -

HE-"Z-—N\E+-A=1+—HI%E
- B AR RAERIET 8 30 47286,0007%
(ZZ—+4:88,000/&7T) °

ol %
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HE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

40. SHARE CAPITAL 40. IR A&
2018 2017
—E-N\§ —E—tF
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
7 & A kx| BHEE &%
’000 HK$’000 '000 HK$’'000
Tk TERT T FTAET
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.005 each &R E{E0.0058 T2 X @ 16,000,000 80,000 16,000,000 80,000
Share consolidated (note (d)) A B (B3E) (12,800,000 - = =
Ordinary shares of HK$0.025 each S E{E0.025/8 T2 & E A 3,200,000 80,000 16,000,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRAR
At beginning of year REF] 5,655,000 28,275 5,655,000 28,275
Exercise of share options (note (a))  1TEEME (Mi(@) 7,000 35 = =
Placing of new shares (note (b)) EEH D (B (b)) 555,200 2,776 = =
Placing of new shares (note (c)) REFRN (M) 300,000 1,500 = =
Share consolidation (note (d)) BOA G (B3E) (5,213,760) - = =
At end of year RER 1,303,440 32,586 5,655,000 28,275
Note: Mo -
(@)  This represented 7,000,000 shares options exercised at a price (a) HEHAEESERKL2EERSRRK
of HK$0.1112 each by the eligible participants of the Group. 50.1112%8 70 Z {E1% 471 27,000,000

17 BB R HE

(b)  This represented an aggregate of 555,200,000 placing shares by HERZ-ZZFE-—NFtLtAT=HRH Tﬁi
issued on 13 July 2018 at a price of HK$0.071 each, resulting Hxﬂxfﬁo o712 BREITZEH
in a credit to share capital and share premium by HK$2,776,000 555,200,000/% Bd & i% 15 B &t A
and HK$35,504,000, respectively, netting off the placing cost of B A K 3% 19 4 (B 9 512,776,000 7T
HK$1,139,000. 135,504,000 7T (2 0k B & B A

1,139,000/ L) °

(c)  This represented an aggregate of 300,000,000 placing shares 0 HERZZ-—NF+HAZHRK i
issued on 2 October 2018 at a price of HK$0.1 each, resulting % A% 1%0 1/% TZERFEITZAEH
in a credit to share capital and share premium by HK$1,500,000 300,000,000 F2 & I 17 - BHET A
and HK$27,433,000, respectively, netting off the placing cost of f& 7R R Bz 19 4 (B 9 511,500,000 7T
HK$1,067,000. 27,433,000 7T (B 0k B & K K

1,067,000/ 7T) °

(d)  On 19 November 2018, every five issued and unissued shares d R=ZZE—N\F+—A+hB XQFE
of HK$0.005 each in the Company were consolidated into one AR FAREE0.0058 Tz BT RK
consolidated share of HK$0.025 each. BIIRHBEHASREE0.025% T

Z—BRA G -
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BHE-T—

40.

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maximise the return to the shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The
Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the payment
of dividends, issue new shares, buy-back shares, raise new
debts, redeem existing debts or sell assets to reduce debts.

The primary objective of the Group’s capital risk management
is to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in
the objectives, policies or processes during the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIRE R EE B R A 7
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40. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by the total equity of the Group. Net debt includes
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and convertible
bond, less cash and bank balances and excludes discontinued
operation. Capital includes equity attributable to owners of the
Company. The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period
was as follows:

40. B (&)

AEBEREXABELRERELN &
ARBEELRTIZAEEFRERAGRE
St E FRAERENERITREME
EURABRES RS RIRTTE R
AT EERIEREXRT -EABER
NEEDTE ARGERED RBESHKR
BARBELEERNT:

2018 2017
—E-N\#F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET
Amounts due to directors (note 31) FERTE S 508 (Mi5ES1) 2,105 -
Non-convertible bonds (note 32) TR MR ES (M5E32) 12,747
Bank borrowings (note 33) RITEE (M3E33) 19,358 6,000
Amount due to a shareholder FERT A A R AR R RIE
of the Company (note 35) (Pt 5E35) - 25,355
Amount due to non-controlling JEN—FEKBRRZ
shareholders of a subsidiary and VR AR R K H g
its related parties (note 36) (Pt 5£36) 39,650 176,704
Convertible bond designated BEZEAFEFAEBRZ
at FVTPL (note 37) AR ES (Mi37) 24,186 -
Total borrowings BEEE 98,046 208,059
Less: Bank and cash balances B ERTT RIR & &k (M EE29)
(note 29) (2,297) (7,069)
Net debt E 95,749 200,900
Total equity attributable to owners RAGIHEE AEGERARE
of the Company 263,933 107,654
Gearing ratio BEARLX 36% 187%

The decrease in the gearing ratio during the year ended 31
December 2018 resulted primarily from decrease of bank and
other borrowings.

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries are subject to
externally imposed capital requirements.

REBE-FT-\Ft+-_A=1+—BLLHF
BZEEABLERELTEARBETR
H Al {8 &R D AT B

RRARREMEB ARG AN Z
BRI
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Share option scheme

On 30 November 2012, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “Scheme”). The purpose of the Scheme is to
attract and to retain quality personnel and other persons and
to provide them with incentive to contribute to the business
and operation of the Group. Under the Scheme, the Directors
may grant options to any eligible person of the Group, including
() any director, employee or consultant of the Company, a
subsidiary or an affiliate; or (i) any discretionary trust whose
discretionary objects include any director, employee or
consultant of the Company, a subsidiary or an affiliate; or (iii)
a company beneficially owned by any director, employee or
consultant of the Company, a subsidiary or an affiliate; or (iv)
any person or entity whose service to the Group or business
with the Group contribute or is expected to contribute to the
business or operation of the Group as may be determined by
the Directors from time to time, to subscribe for shares of the
Company. Options granted are exercisable for a period of up to
ten years from the date of grant of the option as decided by the
board.

41. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 4. URDABEBEHATR

fB IR HE T &

RZZE——F+—A=+8 ARAK
Mm—IEERET S ([5181]) - ZET8lz
BERERRAREBEESFAB REAMA
T EUBERSARNEB XK RE
BELEM -BIEZTE - EF0 AKX
SEAMEERATREBERE 215
(A2 E B AR BB AR EME
= EEFEAR: R(i)2EATHRBHE
PN/NCIIR ==/ K8 =R/ D s G
- EEREMZEM RS ki)
AATE W EARKE B AR ERE
Z EENEBRESHEEZAA Kv)
EENETKRBEBEREZEMATHE
B HEATNESERMRBIESLLTE
HEAEB £ EERFMAER X
REARARMD - BIBEZEETSATE B
R RERER D AR RE+F
HAR 1T
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41. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (continued)

Share option scheme (Continued)

The exercise price (subject to adjustment as provided therein)
of the option under the Scheme is equal to the highest of (i)
the nominal value of share; (i) the closing price per share as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the
date of grant of the option, which must be a business day and
(iii) the average closing price per share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant. The maximum number
of shares in respect of which the options may be granted
under the Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company at the date of approval of the Scheme.
However, the total maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding share options must not
exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the Company from
time to time. The number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted to any one grantee in any 12-month period is
not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue on the last date of such 12-month period from time to
time, without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
21 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by grantee.

On 31 December 2018, no shares of the Company available
for issue under the Scheme adopted by the Company on
30 November 2012 (2017: 46,600,000) shares of HK$0.025
each in the share capital of the Company, representing
approximately 0% (2017: 4.12%) of the issued share capital of
the Company. Unless otherwise determined by the Directors,
there is no minimum period required under the Scheme for
the holding of an option before it can be exercised. There
is no consideration for the application or acceptance of an
option under the Scheme. The remaining life of the Scheme is
approximately four years and to be expired on 30 November
2022.

B HRA A

41.

NE+-_HA=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018
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41. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (continued) 41.
Share option scheme (Continued)

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

R EEBRNNR 2)
BB ()

BREEERAFENT

Vesting Exercise Exercise
Year Date of grant period Exercise period price dates
F4 = A BEH TEH IE THEAH
2017 21 December 2017 N/A 21 December 2017 - 0.556 N/A
21 December 2019
—tF “E—+&+-A-+-H TEA “Z—+5+-_A-t—HZ ~ER
—E-NF+ZAZ+-H
2018 18 January 2018 N/A 18 January 2018 - 0.785 N/A
18 January 2020
—N\F —Z-N\¥-ATNA TER -NE-A+N\RE TiER
_7_7¢ A+/\H
2018 9 October 2018 N/A 9 October 2018 - 0.466 N/A
9 October 2020
—NE —2-N\¥+ANA MER Z2-\§¥+ANBZE NEA
T2+ ANA

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s
share options held by employees during the year:

TEREBEBEFANEEMFARRBREN

4
=

Outstanding Granted Exercised Forfeited  Outstanding at

at 1 January during during during 31 December

2018 period period period (note) 2018

RZZ-N\F RZZB-N\F

-A-8 +ZAZ1-8

Option type ERERL EXix:d HRF L Brfk  BrRk (fE) EXig:d
2017 ZE-tf 13,400,000 = (1,400,000) (3,000,000) 9,000,000
2018 ZE-N\§ - 49,600,000 - - 49,600,000
13,400,000 49,600,000 (1,400,000) (3,000,000) 58,600,000

Exercisable at the end of the period RERATE 58,600,000
Weighted average exercise price MEFHIEE 0.556 0.546 0.556 0.556 0.547

Note: The forfeiture represented the share options granted to the
eligible participants of the Group, which were forfeited upon
their resignations during the period.

In respect of the share options exercised during the period,
the weighted average share price at the dates of exercise was
HK$0.657 (2017: Nil). The options outstanding at the end of
the year have a weighted average remaining contractual life of
1.5 years (2017: 1.97 years).

Wt: RUPEERTAKERER2EE.
I B 4% 2 70 B P B B T R W e B R
1E-

%ﬂmaﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁé'ﬂﬁﬁaﬁ
R DIAE R (E £0.6578 L (— T —
E-ﬁ)%@%%ﬁ*mﬁ%h%zm
EFHHBTAENFRAE1F (ZT—+
F1.97F)
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NE+-_HA=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

41. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (continued) 41. LR AEBRNSRK (&)
Share option scheme (Continued) BRESE (&)
During the year ended 31 December 2018, options were RBE_ZE—-N\NF+A=1+—H1
granted on 18 January 2018 and 9 October 2018. The FE - EREESARZZ-NEF-—ATN
estimated fair values of the options granted on that date is AERZZE—NE+ANBERL - R
HK$2,947,000 and HK$4,857,000 respectively. During the ZRARLZERENGEFATER
year ended 31 December 2017, options were granted on 2,947,000/ JT &% 4,857,000/ 7T IR &
21 December 2017. The estimated fair values of the options —t+FF+ A=+ —HLEEFEE"
granted on that date is HK$2,446,000. BRER-_ZFE—+tF+-_A=+—RHE
BH -RZARLE 2 BRENMGBTT AT
B /52,446,000 T ©
These fair value were calculated using the Binomial model. The ZERNFENEAZEAERGTE R
inputs into the model were as follows: AR ABIBAT
Date of issue BITHE 9 October 18 January 21 December
2018 2018 2017
—E-N\fF “E-N\F —E—+F
+AhH —B+NH +=—B=+—H
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET TET
Share price i & HK$0.465/%5 T HK$0.740/8 7T HK$0.555/%8 7T
Exercise price 1TEE(E HK$0.4667% 7T HK$0.785/% 7T HK$0.5567%& 7T
Expected volatility T8 HR 18 50.30% 61.88% 60.22%
Expected life fﬁi,ﬁﬁ¢,ﬁﬂ 2 years® 2 yearstE 2 yearstE
Risk-free rate 2 e ) = 2.30% 1.32% 1.39%
Expected dividend yield ﬁﬁﬁ%m—'— 0% 0% 0%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over the previous 2
years. The expected life used in the model has been adjusted,
based on management’s best estimate, for the effects of
non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural
considerations.

The Group recognised the total expense of HK$7,804,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: HK$2,446,000) in
relation to share options granted by the Company.

Note: The number of share and share price have been adjusted
pursuant to share consolidation effective on 19 November
2018.

B HRA A

T 0052 0 T 1 A 21 ) 4B 224 AR B
FE 52 8 VB 8 < LU PR 2 T F M E
IR IR R 2 B A SRR
TR RAT AR EFEN 2 HE T IA
GES

AEBREE_E—N\F+A=+—
EJJ:ﬁEE‘fLKL\ﬂfxﬁﬁ’\]ﬁﬁﬂx%ﬁﬁm
45 %7,804,0008 L (ZF —HF:
2,446,000/ 7T ) °

fisE: BOBBEERBROEREREN-F
—NE+—ATABERZBHEH
HE
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42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 42. XA R M BRRR L FEEEE
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(a) Statement of financial position

of the Company

%=

(@) ADFBBMRRE

2018 2017
—E-N\HF —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TATT
Non-current asset kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment 1% = L& & 150 286
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZIEE - -
150 286
Current assets RBEE
Prepayment, deposits and FENFIE EE R
other receivables JE U H i BR 3R 586 917
Loan receivables JEU & 3k 17,661 =
Bond receivables e E 5 13,125 =
Amounts due from JE Uk BT JB A R ZR B
subsidiaries 140,710 148,551
Bank and cash balances RITRIBEE R 807 623
172,889 150,091
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables FET E AL BR 3K 2,332 1,575
Amount due to a subsidiary FEASH B B & R FRIA 517 500
Amounts due to directors T ES IR 1,460 =
Non-convertible bonds AR (& 5 9,747 =
14,056 2,075
Net current assets RBEEFE 158,833 148,016
Total assets less HEERREBARS
current liabilities 158,983 148,302
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Amount due to a shareholder BRI AR R R R IE
of the Company - 24,644
Convertible bond designated at 5 A FEF ABzHZ
FVTPL AR &5 24,186 -
Non-convertible bonds A MR ES 3,000 =
27,186 24,644
Net assets EERR 131,797 123,658
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42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 42. "X AR M BR AR L FEEEE

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY R (&)
(Continued)
(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (a) EQIAFBMRRE (£)
(Continued)
2018 2017
—E-N\#F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FET FET
Capital and reserves EXRHE
Share capital [ 32,586 28,275
Reserves 1 99,211 95,383
TOTAL EQUITY R 131,797 123,658

Approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2019
and are signed on its behalf by:

Cheung Tuen Ting
Rin =
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42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 42. XA R M BRRR L FEEE

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY xR (&)

(Continued)

(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b) QB ZHEEEE
Capital Special Share Other Translation ~ Share option  Accumulated
reserve reserve premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
BAGE KHRE RpEE Rttt BERE  BRERR ZitER a3t

HKS$'000 HKS 000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
AT Tam Tam Tam Thm Thn THm Thn
(note 43(0)6))  (note 43()i)  (note 43()i)  (mote 43())  (note 43(0)(v) (note 41)
(MisEado)))  (Misradio)i))  (Miszadpii))  (Hseaspi))  (MisE4d))) (GEZ)

At 1 January 2017 RZE-t§-A-A 7,640 1,971 223,502 1,909 - - (138,936) 101,086
Loss for the year rEEHR - - - - - - (19,548) (19,548)
Other comprehensive income AEFEM2ERA

for the year - - - - 6,574 - - 6,674
Recogntion of share-based RURHBERM TR

payments - - - - - 2,446 - 2,446
Deemed capital contribution ARAARREEIADE L

arising from non-current SHFEL L RIETE

interest-free loan from

a shareholder of

the Company - - - 4825 - - - 4,825
At 31 December 2017 Ko®—tFtofz+-8 7640 0 35w 6,734 574 246 (153484 %38
At 1 January 2018 R=E-NE-A-A 7,640 1,971 203,502 6,734 6,574 2,446 (153,484) 95,383
Loss for the year TEEEE - - - - - - (59,851) (59,851)
Other comprehensive income TEEEMZENA

forthe year - . - - (7,806 - - (7,806
Forfeiture of share options granted ~RIRE IR it 8 F - - - - - (542) 542 -
Issuance of shares Bk - - 62,937 - - - - 62,937
Recognition of share-based B RA RERMHFH

payments - - - - - 7,804 - 7,804
Exercise of share option iEEkE - - 995 - - (251) = 744
At 31 December 2018 RoE-NE+-A=+-8 7640 1971 287,434 6,734 (1,232 9457 012,799 w9211
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43. RESERVES 43. f# &

(a) Group (a) A%E

(b)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED % Bk B} Bg &

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements

therein are presented in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and

consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the difference
between the nominal value of the share capital
issued by the Company and the fair value allocated
to the separable net assets of the subsidiaries
at the date of acquisition arisen from a group
reorganisation in March 2000.

Special reserve

The special reserve represents the difference
between the book values of the underlying net
assets of DIGITALHONGKONG.COM INC., DIGITAL
COMMERCE LIMITED and Digital Hong Kong
Limited at the date on which the shares of these
companies were acquired by the Company together
with the acquisition of a shareholder’s loan of
HK$7,640,000, and the nominal amount of the
Company’s shares issued for the acquisition. The
special reserve is available for distribution under the
Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands.

EERAXE

(b)

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 %

AEENHBESBRREZHNE
cRakEMEEKERRES
REEHERANZT-

MHERREEN

(i)

(i)

BEX#E

EARREEE_TZTTF=A
ZEBEHEMEEARAMN
BITRANE B B A B A
DEEEFBENWE A ERE
EZRFEZEZR

1 5l 1eE 1

i Bl D BN AN 2 R U

DIGITALHONGKONG.COM
INC. » DIGITAL COMMERCE

L|M|TED&§M% EEBEEA
NAEIRME R ZE QT

%ztxé%ﬁ%@@ﬁ@ﬁﬁwz
8 2 I& B 37,640,000/
T EpEEREmET Y
Zli“ﬂﬂ%ﬁ@fﬁﬁﬁ%?ﬁ%
B-RBEFAESHES LB
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43. RESERVES (Continued)

(b)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

v)

Share premium

Share premium represents the amount of the excess
of issue price of the Company’s shares over its par
value.

Other reserve

Other reserve represents deemed capital
contribution arising from non-current interest-free
loan from a shareholder.

Translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises
all foreign exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policies set out in note 4(c)(iii) to
the consolidated financial statements.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIRE R EE B R A 7

43. & (#)

(b)

MERREEN (&)

(i)

(iv)

v)

B G &EE

R A7 4 (B 5 AN 1 &) B 4D |9 2%
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HibEEEAERE R ER
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44. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BEEMEBER A T

Acquisition of subsidiaries

On 6 October 2017, Dihang Energy, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the
equity transfer agreement with E/8ETEEBEE 5 ER
A7) (Shanghai Sheguan International Trading Company
Limited*), a related company which was owned as to
61% by and controlled by Mr. Weng, a then shareholder
of the Group, and Shenzhen Energynt, pursuant to
which Dihang Energy agreed to acquire the entire equity
interests in Shenzhen Energynt at a nominal consideration
of RMB1.

Shenzhen Energynt and its subsidiaries were principally
engaged in design and construction of new energy power
generation equipment, energy storage systems and
power equipment, technology development, technical
services and technology transfer.

On 3 January 2018, the Group had completed the
acquisition of Shenzhen Energynt and was then became a
100% owned subsidiary of the Group.

There were no other acquisitions, disposal and significant
investments completed during the year.

*

English name is for identification purpose only.

44, REBRERERME

(a)

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 %

WK B 2 A

RZF—EFt+AXNE ARFZ
ME2EMBARTGHMERE L
BELBERESERAR (AAE
BERZBRSELEHRS RIEH
61% s < BB R R MRYIR 5
BERFRI M R E G UL T
feERFE EWE R ZRERF 22
M 2B2RERARE T

R ERFERENBARTE
feEREH REER R EERE
BERFEFERRENRE B0
B RMARTS R M2 -

RZF-NF-A=R0 AKE=
PR BRI fE g s - R Y TR B
BERKRASEZZENB A
e

AEEHETREMKE HER
ERKE-




e ISR AR MR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE-T—

44. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

NE+-_HA=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

44. ZEBERERKET &)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (cContinued)

(@) Acaquisition of subsidiaries (Continued)

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of

(@) WEHE2XF

(%)

B MR 2R I 2 fE B 2 AT

Shenzhen Energynt acquired are as follows: BEERBEATENT
Shenzhen
Energynt
FYNRERESS
HK$’000
T T
Net assets acquired: BB EFE:
VAT recoverable AT el B R 17
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TEF FUIE « & & & H b & Uk BR 5k 1,202
Cash and bank balances R& RIRTTHE % 164
Current tax asset MENIRIE & B 174
Other payables and accruals Hth e IEKETER (9,562)
Total identifiable net liabilities AERFEEE (8,005)
Goodwill 7B 8,005
Satisfied by: BIATHAERN:
Cash consideration ReRE RMBA R¥17T
Net cash outflow arising on acquisitions: WEEEEA RS REFE:
Cash consideration paid BERNBEESKE -
Cash and cash equivalents acquired BEWERESRREEE 164
164

Acquisition-related costs of HK$667,000 have been
charged to general and administrative expenses in the
consolidated income statement for the year ended 31

December 2018.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIRE R EE B R A 7

B E IR AR A5667,000/8 T 2
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RATHBIE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 4 i

211




212

e PR mRME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
NE+-_HA=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

@KiT

44. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED % Bk B} Bg &

Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued)

The table below illustrates the revenue on sales of copper
and the loss included in the consolidated statement of

44,

RERERERME &)

(a)

B AR (&)

TREME Y B BEREER
BRZHER s W R ED

profit or loss since the acquisition date contributed by the xAH BB
acquisition.
Shenzhen
Energynt
FYNZERESS
HK$’000
FHET
Revenue W& 64,247
Loss contributed to the Group BAEETRCEE (1,740)

Had the acquisitions as mentioned above been effected
at the beginning of the year, total amount of the revenue
and loss for the year of the Group would not be materially
different. Such pro-forma information is for illustrative
purpose only and is not necessarily an indicator of
revenue and results of operation of the Group that
actually would have been achieved had the acquisition
been completed at the beginning of the year, nor is it
intended to be a projection of the future results.

Major non-cash transaction

Imputed interest of approximately HK$31,893,000
charged for the year ended 31 December 2018 was
accrued to a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary
and its related parties, of which HK$14,167,000 was
capitalised in construction in progress.

Deemed capital arising from non-current interest-free
loan from non-controlling shareholders of a subsidiary
and its related parties of approximately HK$870,000 and
HK$904,000 were accrued to other reserves and non-
controlling interests respectively.

EAR AR

(b)

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 %

i Lt W FE IR E R F AR B
AEBEZARFE RS REBEBRE
BTeEEAEZR -FHBZEHR
EHRGARS  REORKRMEES
BERFNERBERAEBERERE
B2 Wa M ERE  TEEER
RIREAEZTER

TEFRREXRS

REBEEZZE-—N\F+=ZA=+—
HEFEENRZHEERELD
31,893,000/ ;L 2 5T IR = — I Y

NA IR R R EREET
?.24314,167,000/%% REZIE
&R -

*E— BB R Z IR AR
MEBERZIENHREEERE
& 7 BAEE K 4870,00008 T
904,000/ 7L 2 7 Al A E (8 2
FEER RS BET o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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44. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

NE+-_HA=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (cContinued)

(c)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (c)
activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing

44. ZEBERERKETE &)

METHFELEBEZHE

TRAMFABAEERE LGB
EXREZED BREEESNIFR
SEY METHMELEBERER
REBGRERERERADEAL
BMEEBMEACRESREIR
XReRBZAB-

activities.
Interest Non-cash Exchange 31 December
1 January 2018 Cash flows expenses movement differences 2018
E-N\E ZE-N\E
-B-H ReNE FISEX E3EEY 5] EXZ®E t+t-A=t-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TR TR TEL TR T
Bank borrowings (note 33)  S{7fE & ([ff7£33) 6,000 16,461 (1,757) - (1,346) 19,358
Amount due to a shareholder & ff A2 7] 3R 58
of the Company (note 35)  (F{5¥35) 25,355 (25,355) = = = =
Amounts due to EN-EHBARZ
non-controlling FERRER
shareholders of a HEBERFE
subsidiary and (f3£36)
its related parties (note 36) 176,704 (156,742) = 30,119 (10,431) 39,650
Convertible bond BERATEA
designated at FVTPL BaZUARES
(note 37) (Ftzk37) - 20,000 - 4,186 = 24,186
Non-convertible bonds TaskES
(note 32) (fii£E32) - 12,500 247 - - 12,747
Amounts due to directors BN EE 58 - 2,54 - - (436) 2,105

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED % ER & A& &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

@KiT

NE+-_A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December

44. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 44,
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

2018

RERERERME &)

(c) MEZBRELEEEZHEK

activities (Continued) (#)
Interest Non-cash Exchange 31 December
1 January 2017 Cash flows expenses movement differences 2017
—E-tF —E-tF
-A-H RERE FISEX ¥5428 EXZE +-A=t-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL THIL T FEL FHL FHL
Bank borrowings (note 33)  S{7fE & ([ff7£33) 17,100 (11,700) - = 600 6,000
Amount due to a shareholder & f K 72 ) iR 718
of the Company (note 35)  (Fi#3:35) 9,093 18,360 1,930 (5,106) 1,078 25,355
Amounts due to non- EN-EHEARZ
controlling shareholders ~ FEIRIRIEER
of a subsidiary and HEEHTE
its related parties (note 36)  ( fit3£36) 142,933 31,342 3,740 (8,791) 7,480 176,704
Interest on bank borrowings /7 & & 78
(note 12) (HizE12) - (1,398) = 1,398 = =

Decrease of interest in a subsidiary without loss of
control

During the year, the Group decrease the shareholding
from 100% interests to 60% interest in the following
subsidiaries. The effect of the decrease on the equity

(d R—EHEARZERRD ML
AR REHE

RER AEEBFER TIIH B A
Al 2 B R 100% 4 358 4 £60%
TS o NN RIEA AELREZIR D

attributable to the owners of the Company is as follows: ZEREMT:
Heroic Charmland
Sunshine Treasure  Eternal Goal Total
Limited Limited Limited @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FTAEL BT FET
Carrying amount of non-controling & & 2 3EERESFEE
interests disposed 10 15 10 35
Consideration received from BIEERESKRZAE
non-controlling interests = = - -
Gain on disposal recognised ERRERER 2 HENE
directly in equity 10 15 10 35

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BEEMEBER A T ANNUAL REPORT 2018 &3
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BHE-T—

45.

RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, Yichang Biaodian
entered into disputes with one of its suppliers regarding the
quality of work performed by such suppliers. Legal proceedings
were initiated by the supplier (the “Plaintiff’) and on 14
December 2018, pursuant to the application from the Plaintiff,
the Court in Yichang granted an order to preserve the bank
deposits of Yichang Biaodian amounted to approximately
RMB478,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$544,000) (2017:
Nil).

On 13 March 2019, the Court issued civil mediation agreement
which set out both the plaintiff and Yichang Biaodian agreed
the repayment terms in relation to the aforesaid amount. The
Company is required to repay RMB200,000 on or before
30 April 2019 and an order could be applied to unfreeze
the bank accounts; and the Company is required to settle
RMB2,000,000 on or before 30 September 2019 and the
remaining outstanding amount on or before 30 March 2020.

All of these amounts are fully provided as liabilities of the
Group.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED I 3R & B

45.

NE+-_HA=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

ZRFIBITER

Eﬁz_ﬁ—l\i—f—_ﬂ:‘F—EIﬂ:i

W 2

p=111%

"HE
% W%*ﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁ?éﬁﬁﬁaEﬁZIﬁE%f
ZHEE(IREADEBEREEERE
F-RZZE-NF+ZA+MA BE
REAZHF HEMERBESRE
HEFHZIRITHERLOARKA78,000
7T (FBE R #544,00087T) (ZFE—+
Fim)e

RZZE—NF=ZA+=H ZER&BELR
ERmHHR EFEHIREAREER
HIpFE@ALMSBIERER AR
RIAR-ZE—NFMNA=+HKZAE
# AR ¥200,0007T © B A BRBRS R
BITEF RARRAR=ZZE—HLEA
A=+ H3k 2815 E AR #2,000,000
TER-_E-_EF=-A=+tHx M3

EBHTHREZSEE
FBZESEAC BB BEARER 2
BfE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

46. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 46. EREIE

The Group’s capital commitments at the end of the reporting REBRRERRCERAENT
period are as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Capital expenditure in respect of the EEREEME  RE KR EHE
acquisition of property, plant and R NIRRT
equipment, development of systems & A5 3%
and networks
— authorised but not contracted for —BEEREERRFTY - 500
— contracted but not accounted for —BE[HERAR 9,281 5,193
9,281 5,693
47. LEASE COMMITMENTS 47. HEAE
At 31 December 2018, the total future minimum lease RZZE—NF+_A=+—H BET
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are payable AR ERE BN 2R RKKEHEE
as follows: RBEEDT
2018 2017
—E-N\&F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
THET FAT
Within one year —FR 1,571 1,129
In the second to fifth years inclusive ~H-Z2FRFER
(BREEEMF) 676 44
2,247 1,173
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the KEMENFERNEBRESTHAY
Group for certain of its office properties. Leases are negotiated ¥ENzHES BHARETEHNTRE
for terms ranged from two to three (2017: two to three) years =F(ZE2—tF ME=ZF) HER
and rentals are fixed over the lease terms and do not include HEFHBETE U IAREXAHEE-

contingent rentals.

216 GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BH BB E@AER AT  ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F 1§
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NE+-_HA=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

48. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 48. BEA TR F
(i) Related party transactions (i) BEALXRS

(ii)

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these
financial statements, the Group had the following material
transactions with related parties during the year:

bR 5% S B 15 3R 3R P Eo Al i 7 R A
Z?&%?I\'$EIJ‘T$¢F%EL‘A
THEBEBALZEAR

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—t4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Finance cost incurred BLAT B IBE & 2 MR
in respect of
— loan from a shareholder —RE—EBREEK - 1,927
— loan from a former shareholder — B — &R B &= 4,811 =
— loan from a non-controlling —RE— kKB R A FEIE
shareholder of a subsidiary BREEEES Z2ER
and its related parties 31,893 16,288
Purchase of natural gas from m— B AR BEBIEER
a company controlled by BREH 2 ARBERAR
non-controlling interest of
a subsidiary 16,550 3,827

Details of guarantees provided by related parties for
non-convertible bonds and banking borrowings granted
to the Group are as set out in note 32 and 33 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED % ER & A& &

(i)

FRABEERR T BRESEMH
CEREETAEE ZRITEE
ZFHIBED RIE R ER & B IS IR &R BT
FT32/%33 °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

48. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(iiij Compensation of key management personnel
The details of remuneration of key management
personnel, represents the emoluments of directors of the

Company paid during the year and set out in note 16(a).

The remuneration of directors and other members of key

48.

BBEALTRE (&)

(i) FEEEABZHMH

TEEBEABZHFMABEATF
EENARREEME - WHH

5E16(a) °

FREFAZLEEBHEHMBKE

management during the year was follows: ZET
2018 2017
—B-N\F —EFtF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Short term benefits SRR 1,527 2,378
Share-based benefits ARt A Bl 2 18 F 4,429 1,653
5,956 4,031

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED :RERE B £ @A R 2 & ANNUAL REPORT 2018 &3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE2_ZT—N\F+_-_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

49. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a)

On 4 January 2019, Hong Kong Global Billion Access
Investments Limited, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into the Capital
Contribution Agreement with Hubei Biaodian and the
Subscribers pursuant to which the Subscribers agreed
to make capital contribution in the aggregate amount
of RMB134,695,000 (as to RMB13,475,000 by Mr. Li,
RMB67,347,500 by Yichang Platinum Port Energy Co.,
Ltd and RMB53,872,500 by Yichang Meiyan Energy
Co., Ltd) into Yichang Biaodian. Upon completion, the
Group’s interest in Yichang Biaodian will be diluted from
49% to 25%. However, it remains as a subsidiary of the
Group since the Group as the Directors concluded that
the Group has a sufficiently dominant voting interest to
direct the relevant activities of Yichang Biaodian under the
new agreements with the shareholders and therefore the
Group has control over Yichang Biaodian.

On 22 February 2019, Zhejiang Anzhu, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
purchasing contract with F{EA{LIEE B R AR (China
Petrochemical Sales Co., Ltd.*) (“China Petrochemical”),
pursuant to which Zhejiang Anzhu has agreed to sell
and China Petrochemical has agreed to purchase
12,000 tonnes of methanol at the consideration of
RMB29,430,000. Further details regarding the transaction
are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 27
February 2019.

*

English name is for identification purpose only.

50. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

51.

At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group did not have any
other significant contingent liabilities.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to
conform to the current year’s presentation to provide a more
appropriate presentation of the state of affairs of the Group.

49,

50.

51.

BREHRER

@ MZZTE—NAF—AW@EA AQF
ZHEEZENB AR B BRIRE
BIREBRAREPBILFHRRR
BAFTYLEHZ Bt RE
ARERMEERATEBESEA
R #134,695,000T (=% 4 H
EMMBERERARRES
ERRRBRARADAELHEARE
18,475,000t « A R#67,347,500
7T M AR #53,872,5007T) ° A 58
BKig AREBNEEZHR 2 E i
HA49%# EE25% - A > £ A
REEZWBAR REAAREEZ
i ARIREAR R F] S 2 ¥ it
REBHBERHTBHRERERIA
B EEZRM 7 AEEEE - At
AEEHESEHERIESIRE-

by RZZTE—NLEF-_A=Z+=ZH &
NAIZEEWB AR &85 8H
Pl abiHEBR AR ([H{bA
HTUBESAN B Ik
BEEREEE mPtAHEERE
AR E AR %29,430,0007C 8 B
12,0008 iz - B 52—
HBEIERARARAHA=-ZT— A
F_AZF+EHZRAMH

HAREE

RZE—NER_F—+F+=A
=t B - AEETETHNEMLE AN
RBE-

EEBHF
ETHRETOEHR DA AHALF

BZ25 53 fmEEE 25 N&E
Z BRI
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A FEBBHRE

Five-Year Financial Summary

The following is a summary of the consolidated results and the

ATHAEERBEREYBRFREZLER

assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests of the Group for the @EREE BELIEERESIHE-
last five financial years.
Year ended
Year ended 31 December 30 June
EEnY:
=+H
HET-RA=t+-ALEE IEFE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2014
“E-\E —ET—+F —T-RFE —T-IF —mE —NE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$\0070 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
TET FTET TET TEL TEL FEL
RESULTS £
Revenue Wizs 108,737 50,385 36,379 217,068 25,865 3,792
Cost of sales HERR (102,723) (47,701) (35,341)  (216,775) (24,887 =
Gross profit EF 6,014 2,684 1,038 293 978 3,792
Other income N 2,241 315 38 105 26 42
Other gains and losses Hiole RER (472) 707 (374) - - -
Loss on fair value change on EERATES AESR
convertible bond designated at ([ 2 F(Ezt AB&])
fair value through profit or loss 2 /&% 2
(‘FVTPL’) NFEEHER (4,186) - - - s -
Selling and distribution cost HERD HKA (24,046) (13,165) (13,068) (2,881) (92) (210)
General and administrative —RRITH
expenses X (44,258) (26,788) (28,369) (78,972) (11,483) (5,679)
Finance cost BB (25,697) (5,670) (39) = = =
Loss before taxation BB A B (90,404) (41,917) (40,774) (81,455) (10,571) (2,055)
Income tax credit ETES 1,973 1,919 1,585 - - -
Loss for the year/period £/ BRER (88,431) (39,998) (39,189) (81,455) (10,571) (2,055)
Loss for the year attributable to: ~ AT AL REFAER:
Owners of the Company /NG YEON (70,595) (33,225) (33,224) (81,455) (10,571) (2,055)
Non-controlling interest FERER (17,836) (6,773) (5,965) = = =
Loss for the year/period £ /HNER (88,431) (39,908) (39,189) (81,455) (10,571) (2,055)
As at 31 December At 30 June
RtZA=+-8 WAAZ+A
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2014
ZE-N\NE —T—+Hf ZE-R FE Z—E-1F —T—NF —mE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHEL FEL FET FET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Non-current assets FRBEE 488,312 516,382 457,038 57,275 3,446 -
Current assets MEEE 65,605 17,124 25,695 26,486 34,758 4,717
Current liabilities mEAR (61,903) (51,169) (53,765) (3,244) (1,063) (1,105)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (134,599)  (261,230)  (206,611) . - -
TOTAL EQUITY R 357,415 221,107 222,357 80,517 37,141 3,612

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 %
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